
PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
141 Union Boulevard, Suite 150 

Lakewood, Colorado 80228-1898 
Tel: 303-987-0835   800-741-3254 

Fax: 303-987-2032 
https:// www.prairiecentermd7.colorado.gov 

 
NOTICE OF ASPECIAL MEETING AND AGENDA 

 
Board of Directors: Office: Term/Expiration: 

Michael Tamblyn President 2027/May 2027 
Ashley Licursi Treasurer 2025/May 2025 
Melissa Zimmerman Assistant Secretary 2025/May 2025 
Amanda Coffey Assistant Secretary 2025/May 2025 
Ronald Johnson Assistant Secretary 2027/May 2027 
Peggy Ripko Secretary 
 
DATE:  Monday, December 9, 2024 
 
TIME: 6:00 P.M. 
 
LOCATION: Zoom: The meeting can be joined through the directions below. 

* Individuals requiring special accommodation to attend and/or participate in the meeting please 

advise the District Manager (pripko@sdmsi.com or 303-987-0835) of their specific need(s) before 

the meeting. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86267550643?pwd=V3RnRGRtWkRyUlZZc1VMWTJFZjFHdz09  
Meeting ID: 862 6755 0643 

Passcode: 987572 
Dial in: 719-359-4580 

 
I. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
A. Members of the public may express their views to the Board on matters that affect 

the District.  Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person. 
  
 

II ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

A. Present disclosures of potential conflicts of interest. 
  
 

B. Approve agenda, location of the meeting and posting of meeting notices. 
  
 

C. Review and approve the Minutes of the August 7, 2024 Special Meeting 
(enclosure). 
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D. Discuss business to be conducted in 2025 and location (virtual and/or physical) 
of meetings.  Schedule regular meeting dates (suggested dates are July 7, 2025 and 
November 10, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. in person and via Zoom) and consider adoption of 
Resolution No. 2024-12-01; Resolution Establishing Regular Meeting Dates, Time 
and Location, and Designating Location for Posting of 24-Hour Notices 
(enclosure). 
  
 

E. Insurance Matters: 

 
1. Authorize renewal of the District’s insurance and Special District 

Association (“SDA”) membership for 2025. 
  
 

F. Website Accessibility Matters: 

 
1. Discuss website accessibility matters. 

  
 

2. Establish Website Accessibility Committee to make final determinations 
regarding engagement and/or termination of service providers, if necessary. 
  
 

III. COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT MATTERS 
 

A. Community Management Report. 
  
 

B. Discuss status of possible Amendment to the Declaration of Master Design Review 
Covenant and Use Restrictions and delegation of rights and duties to the District. 
  
 

IV. FINANCIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Review and ratify the approval of the payment of claims for the period ending 
November 4, 2024 in the amount of $188,362.53 (enclosure). 
  
 

B. Review and accept unaudited financial statements through the period ending 
September 30, 2024 (enclosure). 
  
 

C. Consider engagement of Wipfli LLP for preparation of 2024 Audit (enclosure). 
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D. Conduct Public Hearing to consider Amendment of 2024 Budget.  If necessary, 
consider adoption of Resolution No. 2024-12-__, Resolution to Amend the 2024 
Budget and Appropriate Expenditures. 
  
 

E. Conduct Public Hearing on the proposed 2025 Budget and consider adoption of 
Resolution No. 2024-12-__, Resolution to Adopt the 2025 Budget and Appropriate 
Sums of Money, and Resolution No. 2024-12-__, Resolution to Set Mill Levies, for 
General Fund _______, Debt Service Fund _______, and Other Fund(s) _______ 
for a total mill levy of _______ (enclosures – preliminary AV, draft 2025 Budget, 
and Resolutions). 
  
 
1. Review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2024-12-__, Resolution 

Authorizing Adjustment of the District Mill Levy (enclosure).  
  
 

2. If necessary, authorize the preparation and execution of a resolution to 
amend the Second Amended Resolution Regarding the Imposition of 
District Fees.  
  

 
F. Consider authorizing the District Accountant to prepare and sign the DLG-70 Mill 

Levy Certification form and Mill Levy Public Information form for certification to 
the Board of County Commissioners and other interested parties.  
  
 

G. Consider appointment of the District Accountant to prepare the 2026 Budget and 
set the date for a Public Hearing to adopt the 2026 Budget for November 10, 2025, 
at 6:00 p.m., to be held via videoconference. 
  
 

H. Review and consider approval of Special Districts Preparation Statement of Work 
(“SOW”), Special Districts Billing Services SOW, and Special Districts Payroll 
Services SOW between the District and CliftonLarsonAllen LLP for 2025 
Accounting Services (enclosure). 
  
 

I. Review and consider approval of Engineer’s Report and Verification of Costs 
Associated with District Public Improvements and Primary Public Improvements 
Report No. 10, dated _______, 2024, prepared by Independent District Engineering 
Services, LLC, for the amount of $_____ (“Report No. 10”), if available. 
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V. LEGAL MATTERS 
 

A. Discuss May 6, 2025 Regular Directors’ Election and consider adoption of 
Resolution No. 2024-12-__; Resolution Calling a Regular Election for Directors on 
May 6, 2025, appointing the Designated Election Official (“DEO”), and 
authorizing the DEO to perform all tasks required for the conduct of a mail ballot 
election (enclosure).  Self-Nomination forms are due by February 28, 2025. 
  
 

B. Discuss requirements of Section 32-1-809, C.R.S., and direct staff regarding 
compliance for 2025 (Transparency Notice). 
  
 

C. Discuss and consider adoption of amended and restated policy regarding covenant 
enforcement.  
  
 

VI. OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
 

A. Review and consider ratifying approval of Change Order No. 2 to the Service 
Agreement for Snow Removal between the District and Magnum Snow Removal, 
Inc., to extend services for 2024-2025 (enclosure).  
  
 

B. Review and consider ratifying approval of Change Order No. 4 to the Service 
Agreement for Landscape Maintenance if District Tracts – Village I between the 
District and Vargas Property Services, Inc., for removal of dead trees and planning 
of new trees, for an increase in the contract amount of $20,681.18. (enclosure). 
  
 

C. Review and consider ratifying approval of Change Order No. 5 to the Service 
Agreement for Landscape Maintenance of District Tracts – Village I between the 
District and Vargas Property Services, Inc., for extension of services through 
December 2024 (enclosure). 
  
 
1 Review and consider proposals for landscape maintenance of District tracts 

for calendar year 2025 (enclosure). 
  

 
D. Review and consider ratifying approval of Hydrovac Service Proposal and 

Addendum to same between the District and Badger Daylighting Corp. (enclosure). 
  
  



Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 7 
December 9, 2024 Agenda 
Page 5 
 
 

 

E. Review and consider approval of proposal for holiday lighting from Vargas 
Property Services, Inc. (enclosures). 
  
 

F. Review proposals and consider approval of proposal for “no soliciting” signs 
(enclosures). 
  
 

G. Discuss and consider establishment and appointment of an Operations and 
Maintenance Committee of the Board to authorize the negotiation, approval and 
execution of service agreements and work orders for emergency repairs and 
maintenance of District improvements in amounts not to exceed $__________, 
subject to availability of funds and ratification by the Board of Directors. 
  
 

H. Discuss and consider establishment of one or more resident advisory committees to 
solicit community input and propose recommendations to the Board of Directors 
regarding District matters. 
  
 

VII. CAPITAL MATTERS 
 

A. Discuss the Prairie Center Village I Phase IV Improvements Projects. 
  
 

VIII. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A.   
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT THERE ARE NO MORE REGULAR MEETINGS SCHEDULED 

FOR 2024. 

 
Informational Enclosure: 
 
• Memo regarding New Rate Structure from Special District Management Services, Inc. 
• Memo regarding Summary of Fees and Charges for Legal Services from Altitude 

Community Law P.C. for 202 
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  MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE 

PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
(THE “DISTRICT”) 

HELD 
AUGUST 7, 2024 

 
A special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Prairie Center Metropolitan 
District No. 7 (referred to hereafter as the “Board”) was convened on 
Wednesday, August 7, 2024, at 6:00 p.m., in person at the Holiday Inn Express 
& Suites Denver NE – Brighton 2212 Medical Center Drive Brighton, CO 
80601 and via video / telephone conference.  The meeting was open to the 
public. 
  
 

ATTENDANCE  Directors In Attendance Were: 
Michael Tamblyn, President 
Ashley Licursi, Treasurer 
Melissa Zimmerman, Assistant Secretary 
Amanda Coffey, Assistant Secretary 
Ronald Johnson, Assistant Secretary 
 
Also, In Attendance Were: 
Peggy Ripko; Special District Management Services, Inc. 
 
Kathy Kanda, Esq.; McGeady Becher Cortese Williams P.C. 
 
Thuy Dam; CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
 
Linda Shields, Shawna Karman, Pamela Brooks, Tom Ganuche, and Cowan 
Meisner, and various other District Residents attending in person or via 
Zoom/telephone 
  
 

DISCLOSURE OF 
POTENTIAL 
CONFLICTS OF 
INTEREST 

 The Board discussed the requirements of Colorado law to disclose any potential 
conflicts of interest or potential breaches of fiduciary duty of the Board of 
Directors to the Secretary of State.  The members of the Board were requested 
to disclose any potential conflicts of interest with regard to any matters 
scheduled for discussion at this meeting and incorporated for the record those 
applicable disclosures made by the Board members prior to this meeting in 
accordance with statute.  It was noted by Attorney Kanda that a disclosure of 
potential conflicts of interest was filed for Director Tamblyn with the Secretary 
of State, and no additional conflicts were disclosed at the meeting. 
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ADMINISTRATIVE 
MATTERS 

 Meeting Location/Posting of Notice:  The Board entered into a discussion 
regarding the requirements of Section 32-1-903(1), C.R.S., concerning the 
location of the District's Board meeting.  Following discussion, and upon 
motion duly made by Director Zimmerman, seconded by Director Coffey, and 
upon vote unanimously carried, the Board determined to conduct the meeting 
at the above-stated date, time and location, which is within 20 miles of the 
District, and also via video/telephone conference.  It was further noted that 
notice of the time, date and location was duly posted and that no objections to 
the location or any requests that the meeting place be changed by taxpaying 
electors within the District’s boundaries have been received. 
 
Agenda: The Board reviewed the Agenda for the meeting. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Zimmerman, 
seconded by Director Coffey, and upon vote unanimously carried, the Board 
approved the Agenda, as amended. 
 
Minutes of December 4, 2023 Special Meeting, and the December 4, 2023 
Statutory Annual Meeting:  The Board reviewed the Minutes of the December 
4, 2023 Special Meeting, and the December 4, 2023 Statutory Annual Meeting. 
 
Following review and discussion, upon motion duly made by Director 
Zimmerman, seconded by Director Johnson, and upon vote unanimously 
carried, the Board approved the Minutes. 
 
2024 Special District Association’s Annual Conference:  Ms. Ripko 
discussed with the Board authorizing interested Board Members to attend the 
2024 Special District Association’s Annual Conference in Keystone on 
September 10, 11 and 12, 2024.  No action was taken by the Board. 
 
Website Accessibility Matters:  Ms. Ripko discussed website accessibility 
matters with the Board.  No action was necessary.  
  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  The Board and consultants answered questions posed by interested parties. 
  
 

COMMUNITY 
MANAGEMENT 
MATTERS 

 Community Management Report:  Ms. Ripko provided the Community 
Management Report: 
 
Landscape Fire:  The Board discussed the landscape fire.  The Board directed 
Ms. Ripko to obtain more information regarding the fire. 
 
Fencing:  The Board discussed the sections of fence that have not been painted.  
The Board directed Ms. Ripko to check status of project with Meritage Homes 
Corporation. 
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Dog Station:  The Board discussed a dog station that was hit by riding mower. 
 
School Area and Park:  Ms. Ripko informed the Board the school area and park 
are being maintained on a regular basis. 
 
Above-Ground Pools:  The Board discussed above-ground pools. 
 
Signs:  The Board discussed installing covenant control signs and no solicitation 
at the entrances to the community.  
 
Amendment to the Declaration of Master Design Review Covenant:  The 
Board discussed the status of a possible Amendment to the Declaration of 
Master Design Review Covenant and Use Restrictions and the delegation of 
rights and duties to the District.  Attorney Kanda reviewed the history of the 
architectural approval process for the community.  The Board deferred action. 
  
 

FINANCIAL 
MATTERS 

 Payment of Claims:  The Board reviewed the claims for the period of 
November 30, 2023 through August 1, 2024, totaling $269,225.44. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Johnson, seconded 
by Director Licursi, and upon vote the Board ratified approval of the payment 
of claims in the amount of $269,225.44. 
 
Unaudited Financial Statements and Cash Position:  The Board reviewed 
the unaudited financial statements and cash position for the period ending June 
30, 2024 with the Board. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Licursi, seconded 
by Director Coffey, and upon vote unanimously carried, the Board accepted the 
unaudited financial statements and cash position, as presented. 
 
2023 Audit:  The Board reviewed the 2023 Audit. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Johnson, seconded 
by Director Tamblyn, and upon vote unanimously carried, the Board approved 
the 2023 Audit, subject to final legal review and receipt of an unmodified 
opinion, and authorized execution of the Representations Letter. 
 
Engineer’s Report and Verification of Costs Associated with District 
Public Improvements and Primary Public Improvements Report No. 9, 
prepared by Independent District Engineering Services, LLC:  The Board 
reviewed Cost Certification Report No. 9, dated January 5, 2024, prepared by 
Independent District Engineering Services, LLC, certifying District Public 
Improvements and Primary Public Improvements in the amount of $359,492.22 
(“Report No. 9”). 
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Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Licursi, seconded 
by Director Coffey and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board approved 
Report No. 9. 
  
 

LEGAL 
MATTERS 

 There were no legal matters. 
  
 

OPERATIONS AND 
MAINTENANCE 
MATTERS 

 Change Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement for Dog Station Services 
between the District and Poop 911:  The Board reviewed Change Order No. 
1 to the Service Agreement for Dog Station Services between the District and 
Poop 911, for increases in services and bag costs and the addition of auto-
renewal of the Service Agreement. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Licursi, seconded 
by Director Tamblyn and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board ratified 
approval of Change Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement for Dog Station 
Services between the District and Poop 911, for increases in services and bag 
costs and the addition of auto-renewal of the Service Agreement. 
 
Change Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement for Landscape Maintenance 
of District Tracts – Village I between the District and Vargas Property 
Services, Inc.:  The Board reviewed Change Order No. 1 to the Service 
Agreement for Landscape Maintenance of District Tracts – Village I between 
the District and Vargas Property Services, Inc. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Licursi, seconded 
by Director Tamblyn and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board ratified 
approval of Change Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement for Landscape 
Maintenance of District Tracts – Village I between the District and Vargas 
Property Services, Inc., for October 2023 – September 2024 landscape 
maintenance services, in the amount of $29,571.59. 
 
Change Order No. 2 to the Service Agreement for Landscape Maintenance 
of District Tracts – Village I between the District and Vargas Property 
Services, Inc.:  The Board reviewed Change Order No. 2 to the Service 
Agreement for Landscape Maintenance of District Tracts – Village I between 
the District and Vargas Property Services, Inc., for backflow device 
replacement. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Licursi, seconded 
by Director Tamblyn and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board ratified 
approval of Change Order No. 2 to the Service Agreement for Landscape 
Maintenance of District Tracts – Village I between the District and Vargas 
Property Services, Inc., for backflow device replacement, in the amount of 
$5,677.14. 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

 

Pg. 5 08.07.2024 PCMD7 

Change Order No. 3 to the Service Agreement for Landscape Maintenance 
of District Tracts – Village I between the District and Vargas Property 
Services, Inc.:  The Board reviewed Change Order No. 3 to the Service 
Agreement for Landscape Maintenance of District Tracts – Village I between 
the District and Vargas Property Services, Inc., for additional backflow device 
replacement. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Licursi, seconded 
by Director Tamblyn and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board ratified 
approval of Change Order No. 3 to the Service Agreement for Landscape 
Maintenance of District Tracts – Village I between the District and Vargas 
Property Services, Inc., for additional backflow device replacement, in the 
amount of $6,041.10. 
 
Change Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement for Exterior Light 
Inspection between the District and Colorado Lighting, Inc. (d/b/a CLI 
Services):  The Board reviewed Change Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement 
for Exterior Light Inspection between the District and CLI Services, for light 
inspection services from January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Licursi, seconded 
by Director Tamblyn and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board ratified 
approval of Change Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement for Exterior Light 
Inspection between the District and CLI Services, for light inspection services 
from January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024, on a time and materials 
basis. 
 
Change Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement for Trash Removal Services 
between the District and Waste Management of Colorado, Inc.:  The Board 
reviewed Change Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement for Trash Removal 
Services between the District and Waste Management of Colorado, Inc., for a 
change in the scope of services/compensation. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Licursi, seconded 
by Director Tamblyn and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board ratified 
approval of Change Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement for Trash Removal  
Services between the District and Waste Management of Colorado, Inc., for a 
change in the scope of services/compensation effective May 1, 2024. 
 
Change Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement for Snow Removal between 
the District and Magnum Snow Removal, Inc.:  The Board reviewed Change 
Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement for Snow Removal between the District 
and Magnum Snow Removal, Inc., for snow removal services. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Licursi, seconded 
by Director Tamblyn and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board ratified 
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approval of Change Order No. 1 to the Service Agreement for Snow Removal 
between the District and Magnum Snow Removal, Inc., for snow removal 
services from November 1, 2023 through May 31, 2024. 
 
Proposal from Vargas Property Services, Inc. for Tree Replacements:  The 
Board reviewed the proposal from Vargas Property Services, Inc. for tree 
replacements. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Johnson, seconded 
by Director Licursi and, upon vote with Director Johnson voting “yes” and 
Directors Tamblyn, Coffey, Licursi and Zimmerman voting “no, ”the Board 
declined to approve the proposal from Vargas Property Services, Inc. for tree 
replacements in the amount of $35,542.84. 
 
Following further discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Tamblyn, 
seconded by Director Johnson and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board 
requested an updated proposal from Vargas Property Services, Inc. for the 
removal of dead trees and the replacement of pine trees only. 
  
 

CAPITAL 
MATTERS 

 Prairie Center Village I Phase IV Improvements Projects:  Director 
Tamblyn discussed the Prairie Center Village I Phase IV Improvements 
Projects. 
  
 

OTHER MATTERS  Operations and Maintenance Committee:  The Board discussed establishing 
a committee to review and approve change orders and contract renewals as 
needed for existing consultants with an increase of no more than ten percent 
(10%). 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Johnson, seconded 
by Director Coffey and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board established 
the Operations and Maintenance Matters Committee and appointed Directors 
Tamblyn and Coffey to the committee. 
  
 

ADJOURNMENT  There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, the 
meeting was adjourned. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

By ______________________________ 
 Secretary for the Meeting 

 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-12-01 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 

ESTABLISHING REGULAR MEETING DATES, TIME, AND LOCATION, AND  

DESIGNATING LOCATION FOR POSTING OF 24-HOUR NOTICES 

A. Pursuant to Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S., special districts are required to designate 
a schedule for regular meetings, indicating the dates, time and location of said meetings. 

B. Pursuant to Section 32-1-903(5), C.R.S., “location” means the physical, telephonic, 
electronic, or virtual place, or a combination of such means where a meeting can be 
attended.  “Meeting” has the same meaning as set forth in Section 24-6-402(1)(b), C.R.S., and 
means any kind of gathering, convened to discuss public business, in person, by telephone, 
electronically, or by other means of communication. 

C. Pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(c)(I), C.R.S., special districts are required to 
designate annually at the board of directors of the district’s first regular meeting of each calendar 
year, the public place at which notice of the date, time and location of regular and special meetings 
(“Notice of Meeting”) will be physically posted at least 24 hours prior to each meeting 
(“Designated Public Place”).  A special district is deemed to have given full and timely notice of 
a regular or special meeting if it posts its Notice of Meeting at the Designated Public Place at least 
24 hours prior to the meeting. 

D. Pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(c)(III), C.R.S., special districts are relieved of the 
requirement to post the Notice of Meeting at the Designated Public Place, and are deemed to have 
given full and timely notice of a public meeting if a special district posts the Notice of Meeting 
online on a public website of the special district (“District Website”) at least 24 hours prior to 
each regular and special meeting. 

E. Pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(c)(III), C.R.S., if a special district is unable to post 
a Notice of Meeting on the District Website at least 24 hours prior to the meeting due to exigent 
or emergency circumstances, then it must physically post the Notice of Meeting at the Designated 
Public Place at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  

F. Pursuant to Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S., all meetings of the board that are held 
solely at physical locations must be held at physical locations that are within the boundaries of the 
district or that are within the boundaries of any county in which the district is located, in whole or 
in part, or in any county so long as the physical location does not exceed twenty (20) miles from 
the district boundaries unless such provision is waived. 

G. The provisions of Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S., may be waived if:  (1) the 
proposed change of the physical location of a meeting of the board appears on the agenda of a 
meeting; and (2) a resolution is adopted by the board stating the reason for which meetings of the 
board are to be held in a physical location other than under Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S., and 
further stating the date, time and physical location of such meeting. 



 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Prairie Center 
Metropolitan District No. 5 (the “District”), Adams County, Colorado: 

1. That the provisions of Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S., be waived pursuant to the 
adoption of this Resolution. 

2. That the Board of Directors (the “District Board”) has determined that conducting 
meetings at a physical location pursuant to Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S., would be inconvenient 
and costly for the directors and consultants of the District in that they live and/or work outside of 
the twenty (20) mile radius requirement.  

3. That regular meetings of the District Board for the year 2024 shall be held on July 
7, 2025 and November 10, 2025 at 6:00 p.m., at Holiday Inn Express located at 2212 Medical 
Center Drive in Brighton, CO 80601, and via Zoom.  

4. That special meetings of the District Board shall be held as often as the needs of 
the District require, upon notice to each director. 

5. That, until circumstances change, and a future resolution of the District Board so 
designates, the physical location and/or method or procedure for attending meetings of the District 
Board virtually (including the conference number or link) shall appear on the agenda(s) of said 
meetings. 

6. That the residents and taxpaying electors of the District shall be given an 
opportunity to object to the meeting(s) physical location(s), and any such objections shall be 
considered by the District Board in setting future meetings. 

7. That the District has established the following District Website, 
https://prairiecentermd7.colorado.gov and the Notice of Meeting of the District Board shall be 
posted on the District Website at least 24 hours prior to meetings pursuant to Section 24-6-
402(2)(c)(III), C.R.S. and Section 32-1-903(2), C.R.S.  

8. That, if the District is unable to post the Notice of Meeting on the District Website 
at least 24 hours prior to each meeting due to exigent or emergency circumstances, the Notice of 
Meeting shall be posted within the boundaries of the District at least 24 hours prior to each meeting, 
pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(c)(I) and (III), C.R.S., at the following Designated Public Place: 

(a) At the northwest corner of Eagle Blvd. and Peregrine Drive 

9. Special District Management Services, Inc., or his/her designee, is hereby 
appointed to post the above-referenced notices. 
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[SIGNATURE PAGE TO RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING REGULAR MEETING 

DATES, TIME, AND LOCATION, AND DESIGNATING LOCATION FOR 24-HOUR 

NOTICES] 

RESOLUTION APPROVED AND ADOPTED on December 9, 2024. 

PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN 

DISTRICT NO. 7 
 

By:  
 President 

 
Attest: 
 
 
 
Secretary 
 



Date Payee Document no. Amount
8/19/2024 A510309 - 000016--City of Brighton 24,798.48
8/19/2024 A510309 - 000019--CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 1998 8,313.02
8/19/2024 A510309 - 000020--CNA Surety 1999 255.00
8/19/2024 A510309 - 000027--Colorado Lighting, Inc, 2000 30.00
8/19/2024 A510309 - 000032--Diversified Underground 2001 315.00
8/19/2024 A510309 - 000063--McGeady Becher Cortese Williams, PC 2002 4,694.45
8/19/2024 A510309 - 000075--Poop 911 2003 150.00
8/19/2024 A510309 - 000090--Special District Association 2004 202.38
8/19/2024 A510309 - 000091--Special District Mgmt. Services, Inc 2005 4,054.27
8/19/2024 A510309 - 000104--United Power Inc ACH 158.84
8/19/2024 A510309 - 000105--Utility Notification Center of CO 2006 63.21
8/19/2024 A510309 - 000106--Vargas Property Service Inc 2007 7,387.08
9/4/2024 A510309 - 000090--Special District Association Voided - 2004 202.38
9/4/2024 A510309 - 000090--Special District Association Voided - 2004 -202.38
9/18/2024 A510309 - 000016--City of Brighton ACH 26,717.31
9/18/2024 A510309 - 000019--CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 2008 8,301.84
9/18/2024 A510309 - 000027--Colorado Lighting, Inc, 2009 30.00
9/18/2024 A510309 - 000032--Diversified Underground 2010 235.00
9/18/2024 A510309 - 000063--McGeady Becher Cortese Williams, PC 2011 3,676.40
9/18/2024 A510309 - 000069--Omerta Storm Water Management 2012 3,025.60
9/18/2024 A510309 - 000075--Poop 911 2013 160.00
9/18/2024 A510309 - 000080--Redland Consulting Group Inc 2014 250.00
9/18/2024 A510309-000017--Special District Management Services, Inc. 2015 5,577.99
9/18/2024 A510309 - 000104--United Power Inc ACH 159.98
9/18/2024 A510309 - 000105--Utility Notification Center of CO 2016 42.57
9/18/2024 A510309 - 000106--Vargas Property Service Inc 2017 30,381.69
9/18/2024 A510309 - 000110--WIPFLI 2018 6,000.00
10/22/2024 A510309 - 000006--Badger Daylighting Corp 2019 5,904.24
10/22/2024 A510309 - 000016--City of Brighton ACH 21,207.59
10/22/2024 A510309 - 000019--CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 2020 8,521.57
10/22/2024 A510309 - 000027--Colorado Lighting, Inc, 2021 30.00
10/22/2024 A510309 - 000032--Diversified Underground 2022 135.00
10/22/2024 A510309 - 000035--DTJ Design, Inc. 2023 1,238.98
10/22/2024 A510309 - 000075--Poop 911 2024 100.00
10/22/2024 A510309 - 000080--Redland Consulting Group Inc 2025 6,197.74
10/22/2024 A510309-000022--Robert & Carol Geisler 2026 202.50
10/22/2024 A510309-000017--Special District Management Services, Inc. 2027 3,657.96
10/22/2024 A510309 - 000104--United Power Inc ACH 160.28
10/22/2024 A510309 - 000105--Utility Notification Center of CO 2028 34.83
10/22/2024 A510309 - 000106--Vargas Property Service Inc 2029 5,991.73

Total for 1st Bank - PCMD7 188,362.53$  

Prairie Center Metro District No. 7

August 2, 2024 - November 4, 2024
Check register
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General Debt Service Capital Projects Total

Assets
Checking Account $ 121,949.78 $ - $ 188,819.87 $ 310,769.65
UMB - Series 2020 Revenue - 1,159,444.42 - 1,159,444.42
UMB - Series 2020 Reserve - 822,257.23 - 822,257.23
UMB - Series 2020 Restricted Proj - - 657,552.03 657,552.03
UMB - Series 2020 Unrestricted Proj - - 1,513.14 1,513.14
UMB - Series 2020 Bond Interest - 198,984.62 - 198,984.62
UMB - Series 2020 Mandatory Redemption - 4,516.41 - 4,516.41
UMB - Series 2021 Sub Project - - 11,207.30 11,207.30
Due from Other Districts - 4,508.00 - 4,508.00
Accounts Receivable 12,966.76 - - 12,966.76
Receivable from County Treasurer 712.56 3,562.88 - 4,275.44
Due from Other Funds - - 68,980.16 68,980.16
Refundable Deposits - - 5,000.00 5,000.00

Total Assets $ 135,629.10 $ 2,193,273.56 $ 933,072.50 $ 3,261,975.16

Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 58,062.63 $ - $ 9,945.35 $ 68,007.98
Retainage Payable - - 48,336.40 48,336.40
Due to Other Funds - 68,980.16 - 68,980.16
Project management fees payable - - 706,972.69 706,972.69
Project management fees interest payable - - 117,996.50 117,996.50

Total Liabilities 58,062.63 68,980.16 883,250.94 1,010,293.73

Fund Balances 77,566.47 2,124,293.40 49,821.56 2,251,681.43

Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 135,629.10 $ 2,193,273.56 $ 933,072.50 $ 3,261,975.16

Prairie Center Metro District No. 7
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

September 30, 2024

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial
statements, and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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Annual Budget Actual Variance

Revenues
Administrative costs transfer fee $ 30,000.00 $ 31,000.00 $ (1,000.00)
Property taxes 155,936.00 155,321.16 614.84
Specific ownership taxes 10,916.00 5,538.66 5,377.34
Operations and maintenance fee 233,000.00 180,502.94 52,497.06
Interest Income - 14.63 (14.63)
Other Revenue 10,000.00 5,133.38 4,866.62

Total Revenue 439,852.00 377,510.77 62,341.23

Expenditures
Accounting 45,000.00 34,806.18 10,193.82
Auditing 6,000.00 6,000.00 -
County Treasurer's Fee 2,339.00 2,342.17 (3.17)
Directors' fees 1,600.00 - 1,600.00
Dues and Membership 1,500.00 809.50 690.50
Insurance 12,000.00 10,981.00 1,019.00
District management 30,000.00 11,668.13 18,331.87
Billing 24,000.00 18,828.00 5,172.00
Legal 33,000.00 15,191.77 17,808.23
Miscellaneous 15,561.00 3,526.45 12,034.55
Repairs and maintenance - District Tracts 2,500.00 1,697.49 802.51
Landscaping - District Tracts 70,000.00 46,451.73 23,548.27
Community management 35,000.00 24,997.41 10,002.59
Tree care program 15,000.00 20,681.18 (5,681.18)
Snow removal 30,000.00 14,488.97 15,511.03
Pet Station services 2,000.00 938.00 1,062.00
Underdrain system maintenance 5,000.00 - 5,000.00
Site lighting 2,500.00 - 2,500.00
Irrigation Water- DistrictTracts 95,000.00 90,556.63 4,443.37
Electricity - District Tracts 2,000.00 1,427.59 572.41
Contingency 30,000.00 - 30,000.00

Total Expenditures 460,000.00 305,392.20 154,607.80

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Developer advance 25,348.00 27,881.45 (2,533.45)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 25,348.00 27,881.45 (2,533.45)

Net Change in Fund Balances 5,200.00 100,000.02 (94,800.02)

Fund Balance - Beginning 8,000.00 (22,433.55) 35,033.55
Fund Balance - Ending $ 13,200.00 $ 77,566.47 $ (59,766.47)

Prairie Center Metro District No. 7
General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ending September 30, 2024

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial
statements, and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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Annual Budget Actual Variance

Revenues
Property taxes $ 779,679.00 $ 776,604.84 $ 3,074.16
Specific ownership taxes 54,578.00 27,693.23 26,884.77
Interest Income 50,000.00 66,178.03 (16,178.03)
Facilities fees 114,000.00 105,000.00 9,000.00
Credit public improvement fees 76,000.00 96,434.50 (20,434.50)
Add-On public improvement fees 76,000.00 96,434.49 (20,434.49)
Drainage impact fees 256,480.00 105,268.00 151,212.00
Rebated City fees 405,420.00 236,486.56 168,933.44
Neighborhood Park impact fees 110,376.00 94,608.00 15,768.00

Total Revenue 1,922,533.00 1,604,707.65 317,825.35

Expenditures
County Treasurer's Fee 11,695.00 11,710.68 (15.68)
Paying agent fees 8,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
Bond interest 400,000.00 182,821.87 217,178.13
Bond principal 1,700,000.00 640,000.00 1,060,000.00
Contingency 80,305.00 - 80,305.00

Total Expenditures 2,200,000.00 838,532.55 1,361,467.45

Net Change in Fund Balances (277,467.00) 766,175.10 (1,043,642.10)

Fund Balance - Beginning 1,265,024.00 1,358,118.30 948,821.70
Fund Balance - Ending $ 987,557.00 $ 2,124,293.40 $ (94,820.40)

Prairie Center Metro District No. 7
Debt Service Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ending September 30, 2024

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial
statements, and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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Annual Budget Actual Variance

Revenues
Interest Income $ 100,000.00 $ 51,598.30 $ 48,401.70
Credit public improvement fees - PRI 19,000.00 24,108.63 (5,108.63)

Total Revenue 119,000.00 75,706.93 43,293.07

Expenditures
PPI Expenditures

Village 1 - Phase 4 15,000.00 3,395.86 11,604.14
DPI Expenditures

Accounting 30,000.00 16,130.32 13,869.68
Engineering 10,000.00 2,043.75 7,956.25
Project management fee 5,000.00 2,359.78 2,640.22
Village 1 - Phase 2 - 950.00 (950.00)
Village 1 - Phase 4 85,000.00 28,300.34 56,699.66

General
Contingency 135,000.00 - 135,000.00

Total Expenditures 280,000.00 53,180.05 226,819.95

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Repay developer advance (2,000,000.00) (1,293,900.00) (706,100.00)
Developer advance 1,393,320.00 - 1,393,320.00
Developer advance - Project Management Fee 5,000.00 2,359.78 2,640.22

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (601,680.00) (1,291,540.22) 689,860.22

Net Change in Fund Balances (762,680.00) (1,269,013.34) 506,333.34

Fund Balance - Beginning 762,680.00 1,318,834.90 3,793,167.10
Fund Balance - Ending $ - $ 49,821.56 $ 4,299,500.44

Prairie Center Metro District No. 7
Capital Projects Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Period Ending September 30, 2024

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial
statements, and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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Delinquent Specific Net Total
Property Taxes, Rebates Ownership Treasurer's Senate Bill Due to Amount Cash 

Taxes and Abatements Taxes Interest Fees Reimbursement County Received Monthly Y-T-D Received Monthly Y-T-D

January 2,670.11$             -$ 2,693.97$            -$  (40.05)$               -$  - 5,324.03$              0.29% 0.29% 2,044.78$             0.00% 0.00%
February 367,998.20           - 3,899.51 - (5,519.97) - - 366,377.74            39.33% 39.62% 218,164.13$         41.70% 41.70%
March 20,317.09             - 3,884.71 - (304.76) - - 23,897.04              2.17% 41.79% 32,156.45$           5.65% 47.35%
April 109,406.61           - 3,724.65 26.10 (1,714.15) 4,843.15             - 116,286.36 11.69% 53.48% 32,021.37$           6.02% 53.37%
May 80,799.54             - 3,600.16 26.79 (1,212.39) - - 83,214.10 8.64% 62.12% 28,542.01$           4.61% 57.98%
June 349,439.40           - 3,751.73 - (5,241.59) - - 347,949.54 37.35% 99.47% 215,257.32$         41.15% 99.13%
July 400.20 - 3,157.66 - (6.00) - - 3,551.86                0.04% 99.51% 4,858.28$             0.33% 99.46%
August 894.85 - 4,244.06 34.85 (13.94) - - 5,159.82                0.10% 99.61% 3,373.28$             0.00% 99.46%
September - - 4,275.44 - - - - 4,275.44                0.00% 99.61% 3,395.86$             0.00% 99.46%
October - - - - - - - - 0.00% 99.61% 4,820.07$             0.36% 99.83%
November - - - - - - - - 0.00% 99.61% 4,848.34$             0.29% 100.12%
December - - - - - - - - 0.00% 99.61% 2,939.05$             0.00% 100.12%

- - - - - - 
931,926.00$         -$ 33,231.89$          87.74$ (14,052.85)$        4,843.15$           -$  956,035.93$          99.61% 99.61% 552,420.94$         100.12% 100.12%

 Taxes Levied  % of Levied 
 Property Taxes 

Collected  Totals 

Property Taxes General 157,725.11        
General Fund 155,936.00$  16.67% 155,321.17$       Debt Service 788,624.52        
Debt Service Fund 779,679.00 83.33% 776,604.83         Total 946,349.63        

935,615.00$  100.00% 931,926.00$       

Specific Ownership Taxes
General Fund 10,916.00$  16.67% 5,538.65$           
Debt Service 54,578.00 83.33% 27,693.24           

65,494.00$  100.00% 33,231.89$         

Treasurer's Fees
General Fund (2,339.00)$ 16.67% (2,342.14)$          
Debt Service (11,695.00) 83.33% (11,710.71)          

(14,034.00)$ 100.00% (14,052.85)$        

% of Total Property % of Total Property
Taxes Received Taxes Received

PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7
Property Taxes Reconciliation

2024

Current Year Prior Year

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial
statements, and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
2024 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

7

Services Provided 

Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 7 (District) is a quasi-municipal corporation located in the City of 
Brighton, Adams County, Colorado and is governed pursuant to the provisions of the Colorado Special 
District Act (Title 32, Article 1, Colorado Revised Statutes). The District was organized on June 6, 2006, 
concurrently with Prairie Center Metropolitan District Nos 3-6 and 8-10, pursuant to an order and decree 
of the Adams County District Court. The Service Plan for the District was approved by the City of Brighton 
on February 21, 2006, modified on November 13, 2006, and amended and restated on November 4, 
2008, and modified on April 14, 2013. 

The District was established to provide financing for the design, acquisition, installation, construction and 
completion of public improvements and services, including streets, transportation, drainage 
improvements, traffic and safety controls, park and recreation facilities, water, sewer, television relay and 
translation and mosquito and pest control services. The District is authorized to operate and maintain any 
improvements not otherwise conveyed to the City or other entities. 

During elections held on May 2, 2006, a majority of the District’s electors authorized general obligation 
indebtedness of $6,790,000,000, for the above listed facilities, intergovernmental agreements and debt 
refunding. Additionally, on May 2, 2006, the District’s voters authorized the District to collect, retain and 
spend all revenues in excess of TABOR spending, revenue raising or other limitations.   

Pursuant to the Service Plans of District Nos. 2–10, the maximum aggregate principal of debt that may 
be incurred by all of such Districts, together with District No. 1, collectively, is $750,000,000. 

The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the 
requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. Section 29-1-105 using its best estimates as of the 
date of the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions and its expected course 
of actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District believes are significant to the 
budget. There will usually be differences between the budget and actual results, because events and 
circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those differences may be material. 

Revenues 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes are levied by the District’s Board of Directors. The levy is based on assessed valuations 
determined by the County Assessor generally as of January 1 of each year. The levy is normally set by 
December 15 by certification to the County Commissioners to put the tax lien on the individual properties 
as of January 1 of the following year. The County Treasurer collects the determined taxes during the 
ensuing calendar year. The taxes are payable by April or, if in equal installments, at the taxpayer’s 
election, in February and June. Delinquent taxpayers are notified in August, and generally, sale of the 
tax liens on delinquent properties are held in November or December. The County Treasurer remits the 
taxes collected monthly to the District.  
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PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
2024 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Revenues – (continued) 

Property Taxes (Continued) 

For property tax collection year 2024, SB22-238 and SB23B-001 set the assessment rates and actual 
value reductions as follows: 

Category Rate Category Rate 
 Actual Value 

Reduction 
Amount 

Single-Family 
Residential 6.70% Agricultural Land 26.40% 

 Single-Family 
Residential 

$55,000 

Multi-Family 
Residential 6.70% 

Renewable 
Energy Land 26.40% 

 Multi-Family 
Residential 

$55,000 

Commercial 27.90% Vacant Land 27.90%  Commercial $30,000 

Industrial 27.90% Personal Property 27.90%  Industrial $30,000 

Lodging 27.90%  State Assessed 27.90%  Lodging $30,000 

Oil & Gas 
Production 87.50%

The calculation of the taxes levied is displayed on the Property Tax Summary page of the budget using 
the adopted mill levy imposed by the District. 

Specific Ownership Taxes 

Specific ownership taxes are set by the State and collected by the County Treasurer, primarily on vehicle 
licensing within the County as a whole. The specific ownership taxes are allocated by the County 
Treasurer to all taxing entities within the County. The budget assumes that the District’s share will be 
equal to approximately 7% of the property taxes collected. 

Interest Income 

Investment earned on the District’s available funds has been estimated based on historical interest 
earnings. 

Developer Advances 

A portion of operations, maintenance, and capital costs of the District is expected to be funded by the 
Developer. 

Operations and Administrative Costs Transfer Fees 

The District established an operations fee on each residential lot along with a one-time administrative 
costs transfer fee upon closing to cover the costs of operations and maintaining the District 
improvements. In 2024, the District increases the operations fee to $750 per year and the administrative 
costs transfer fee to $500 per closing. 
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PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
2024 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Revenues – (continued) 

Facilities Fees, Credit PIF, Add-On PIF, Drainage Impact Fees, Rebated City Fees, and 
Neighborhood Park Impact Fees 

The District entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Assignment of Revenues (the IGA) 
with Prairie Center Metro District No. 3 (District No. 3). Per the IGA, District No. 3 agrees to transfer to 
the District its rights to receive revenues as set forth in the IGA that are directly attributable to Village I. 
District No. 3 is relieved from providing any public improvements or management services related to 
Village I as it is being developed by the District, separately from the remaining development.  

These assigned revenues include: 

 Facilities Fees – being assessed for the use of the District’s improvements. The facilities fee
is $3,000 per single-family, detached dwelling unit, due on or before the date of issuance of a
building permit by the City of Brighton.

 Credit and Add-On PIF – being assessed on use tax transactions and collected at the time of
building permit issuance. The Credit PIF is calculated as 1.25% of 50% of the project
valuation. The Add-On PIF is calculated as 1.00% of 50% of the project valuation.

 Drainage Impact Fees – the City of Brighton shall reimburse the District, on a quarterly basis
from building permits issued, for the design, financing and construction of the stormwater
improvements.

 Rebated City Fees – the City of Brighton shall remit a per-lot rebated fee to the District, on a
quarterly basis from certificates of occupancy issued, in the amount of $6,756.75 per single-
family residential lot for a total reimbursement not to exceed $2,500,000 at the completion of
the Village 1 Subdivision.

 Neighborhood Park Impact Fees - the City of Brighton has agreed to remit the Neighborhood
Park Impact Fees to the District as reimbursement for the costs of construction of certain
Neighborhood Park Improvements in the amount of $1,971 per residential unit.

Expenditures 

General and Administrative  

General and administrative expenditures include the estimated costs of services necessary to maintain 
the District’s administrative viability such as legal, management, accounting, insurance and other 
administrative expenses.   

Operations and Maintenance 

Operations and maintenance expenditures include estimated expenditures for improvements within the 
District related to repairs and maintenance, landscaping maintenance, park maintenance, utility costs 
and snow removal. 
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PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
2024 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Expenditures (Continued) 

Treasurer’s Fees 

County Treasurer’s fees have been computed at 1.5% of property tax collections. 

Debt Service 

Payments on Series 2020 Bonds are based on the amount of funds available. Therefore, a scheduled 
amortization has not been included in the budget. 

Series 2021 Subordinate Bonds are also structured as cash flow bonds. A debt amortization schedule 
has not been provided as payments are made when funds are available. 

Capital Outlay 

The District anticipates infrastructure improvements as noted in the Capital Projects Fund. 

Debt and Leases 

Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 

The District issued Series 2020 Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds on August 12, 2020, in the par 
amount of $12,225,000. Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to finance a portion of the costs 
of constructing certain public infrastructure to serve the Development and certain other property within 
Prairie Center and repay advances made by the Developer to the District to construct such public 
infrastructure. A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will also be used to fund: (a) the Reserve Fund, (b) 
capitalized interest on the Bonds; and (c) costs of issuing the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as two 
term bonds. The first term bond bears interest at 4.125% and matures on December 15, 2036. The 
second term bond bears interest at 4.875% and matures on December 15, 2044. Interest on the Bonds 
is payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 (“Interest Payment Dates”), beginning on 
December 15, 2020, to the extent of available Pledged Revenue.   

The Bonds are structured as “cash flow” bonds, meaning that no regularly scheduled payments of 
principal are due on the term Bonds prior to their respective maturity dates. Instead, principal is payable 
on each June 15 and December 15 from available Pledged Revenue, if any, pursuant to a mandatory 
redemption, after paying interest due on such Interest Payment Date and after funding in full interest 
coming due on the next Interest Payment Date (the “Subsequent Interest Payment Date”), less any 
amounts on deposit in such account, including any deposits from capitalized interest. To the extent 
principal of any Bond is not paid when due, such principal shall remain outstanding until paid. To the 
extent interest on any Bond is not paid when due, such interest shall compound semiannually on each 
Interest Payment Date, at the rate then borne by the Bond.  

The Bonds are secured by and payable solely from Pledged Revenue, which includes property taxes 
derived from the Required Mill Levy net of the cost of collection, Specific Ownership Taxes attributable 
to the Required Mill Levy, Pledged PIF Revenues, PILOT revenues (if any), and any other legally 
available moneys of the District which the District deposits with the Trustee for application as Pledged 
Revenue. The forecast does not include Pledged PIF or PILOT revenues. The Bonds are also secured 
by amounts held in the Reserve Fund in the amount $812,672. 
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PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
2024 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Debt and Leases – (Continued) 

Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021 

The District issued Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds (the Subordinate Bonds) on 
November 30, 2021, in the par amount of $3,990,000. Proceeds from the sale of the Subordinate Bonds 
were used to repay advances made by the Developer to the District to construct such public infrastructure 
to serve the development and certain other property within Prairie Center, and to pay costs of issuing the 
Subordinate Bonds. 

The Subordinate Bonds bear interest at the rate of 6.375% per annum and are payable annually on 
December 15, beginning December 15, 2022, but only to the extent of available Subordinate Pledged 
Revenue. The Subordinate Bonds are structured as “cash flow” bonds meaning that there are no 
scheduled payments of principal or interest prior to the final maturity date of June 15, 2046. Principal on 
the Subordinate Bonds is payable on each December 15 from, and to the extent of, Subordinate Pledged 
Revenue available 45 days prior to such December 15. 

Accrued unpaid interest on the Subordinate Bonds compounds annually on each December 15 until 
sufficient Subordinate Pledged Revenue is available for payment or until discharged. In the event that 
any amount of principal or interest on the Subordinate Bonds remains unpaid after application of all 
Subordinate Pledged Revenue available therefor on December 15, 2056, the Subordinate Bonds will be 
deemed discharged. No payments are permitted to be made on the Subordinate Bonds until the 2020 
Senior Bonds and any other Senior Obligations issued by the District have been paid in full or defeased. 

The Subordinate Bonds are secured by and payable from moneys derived by the District from the 
following sources: (a) all Subordinate Property Tax Revenues; (b) all Subordinate Specific Ownership 
Tax Revenues; and (c) any other legally available moneys which the District determines, in its absolute 
discretion, to credit to the Subordinate Bond Fund. 
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PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
2024 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Debt and Leases – (Continued) 

The following is analysis of anticipated changes in the District’s long-term obligations for the year ending 
December 31, 2023 and 2024: 

Anticipated

Balance - Balance -

December 31, December 31,

2022 Additions Retirements 2023

Bonds Payable

Series 2020 - Senior 9,245,000$     -$      1,290,000$   7,955,000$     

Series 2021 - Subordinate 3,990,000       - - 3,990,000      

Accrued Interest on Bonds

Series 2021 - Subordinate 264,961          271,254       - 536,215 

Developer Advances:

571,599          115,857       - 687,456 

13,002,326     2,425,940     1,594,050 13,834,216

Accrued Interest 

  Operating 72,881            63,000         - 135,881 

  Capital 37,511            1,250,000     1,250,000 37,511 

Funding Fee Payable 67,837            136,000       - 203,837 

Total 27,252,115$    4,262,051$    4,134,050$   27,380,116$    

  Operating

  Capital

Anticipated Anticipated

Balance - Balance -

December 31, December 31,

2023 Additions Retirements 2024

Bonds Payable

Series 2020 - Senior 7,955,000$     -$      1,700,000$   6,255,000$     

Series 2021 - Subordinate 3,990,000       - - 3,990,000      

Accrued Interest on Bonds

Series 2021 - Subordinate 536,215          288,546       - 824,761 

Developer Advances:

687,456          25,348         - 712,804 

13,834,216     1,393,320     750,000    14,477,536

Accrued Interest 

  Operating 135,881          77,000         - 212,881 

  Capital 37,511            1,250,000     1,250,000 37,511 

Funding Fee Payable 203,837          145,000       - 348,837 

Total 27,380,116$    3,179,214$    3,700,000$   26,859,330$    

  Operating

  Capital

The District has no outstanding operating or capital leases. 



PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
2024 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Reserve Funds 

Emergency Reserve 

The District has provided for an Emergency Reserve equal to at least 3% of fiscal year spending for 
2024, as defined under TABOR. 

Debt Service Reserve 

The Series 2020 Bonds are also secured by funds to be held by the Trustee in the Reserve Funds, in 
the required amount of $812,672. 
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October 31, 2024 
 
Mike Tamblyn 
Board of Directors 
Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 7 
c/o CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
8390 E Crescent Pkwy, Suite 300 
Greenwood Village, Co 80111 
 
 
Dear Mike:
 
Wipfli LLP (“Wipfli”) is pleased to serve as the independent auditors for Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 
7 (“Client”) for the year ended December 31, 2024.  This letter, together with the attached “Wipfli LLP 
Professional Services Terms and Conditions,” confirms the terms of our engagement, and is collectively referred 
to herein as the “Letter” or the “Engagement Letter.” 
 
Fees 

Our fees and expenses for this engagement will be billed as work progresses, and progress billings may be 
submitted.  Based upon our discussions with representatives of Client, the fee for this engagement will be 
$6,200.  Our fee has been determined based on our understanding obtained through discussions with you 
regarding your preparedness for the engagement and your current operations.  To the extent we encounter 
circumstances outside of our expectations that warrant additional procedures and time, we will communicate 
that fact and advise you of options and the additional fees necessary to complete the engagement.  We will also 
charge a technology and administration fee equal to six percent (6%) of our professional fees.  We expect 
payment of our billings within 30 days after submission. 
 
Our fees for the services described below are based upon the value of the services performed and the time 
required by the individuals assigned to the engagement.  Our fee estimate and completion of our work are based 
upon the following criteria: 
 

1. Anticipated cooperation from Client personnel 
2. Timely responses to our inquiries 
3. Timely completion and delivery of client assistance requests 
4. Timely communication of all significant accounting and financial reporting matters 
5. The assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement. 

 
If any of the aforementioned criteria are not met, then the fees may increase.  Interim billings will be submitted 
as work progresses and as expenses are incurred.   
 
Audit Scope and Objectives 

We will audit Client’s financial statements, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024, and the disclosures 
(collectively, the “financial statements”), and if applicable, supplementary information. 
 

3615 Delgany St. 303.988.1900 
Suite 500 wipfli.com 
Denver, CO 80216 
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The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether Client’s financial statements taken 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion about whether Client’s financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).  Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAS”) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements, including omissions, can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements. 
 
The supplementary information accompanying the financial statements will be subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with GAAS, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
The Other Information accompanying the financial statements will not be subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in our audit of the financial statements, and our auditor’s report will not provide an opinion or any 
assurance on that other information. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and will include tests of your accounting records and other 
procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion.  As part of an audit in accordance 
with GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.   
 
An audit includes an evaluation of the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as an evaluation of the overall presentation of the 
financial statements, including the disclosures, to assess whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  To express an opinion, we are 
required to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation 
of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to Client or to acts by 
management or employees acting on behalf of Client. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that some 
material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in 
accordance with GAAS.  In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of 
laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  
However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial 
reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention.  We will also inform the appropriate level of 
management of any violations of laws or government regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly 
inconsequential.  Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend 
to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 
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In the conduct of our audit, we will obtain an understanding of Client and its environment, including internal 
control relevant to the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control.  An audit 
is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify deficiencies in internal control.  
Accordingly, we will express no such opinion.  However, during the audit, we will communicate to management 
and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated 
under professional standards.  
 
In performing our audit, we will consider and conclude whether, based on the audit evidence obtained, there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, which raise substantial doubt about Client’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the 
accounts and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of cash, 
receivables, loan balances, and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected customers, funding 
sources, creditors, and financial institutions.  We may also request written representations from your attorneys 
as part of the engagement, and they may submit an invoice for responding to this inquiry. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and understands its responsibility for 
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including 
monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP.  Management is also responsible for 
making available to us drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related information, and for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information (including information from outside of the general and 
subsidiary ledgers).  Management is also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which it 
is aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, 
documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions, and 
other matters; (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit; and (3) unrestricted 
access to persons within Client from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.   
 
Management is responsible for adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for 
confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements 
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, 
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management is responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect 
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting Client involving (1) management, 
(2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.  Management is also responsible for informing us of its knowledge of any 
allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting Client received in communications from employees, former 
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employees, regulators, or others.  In addition, management is responsible for identifying and ensuring that 
Client complies with applicable laws and regulations. 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with GAAP.  
Management agrees to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains, 
and indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary information.  Management also agrees to include the 
audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report 
thereon. 
 
We cannot perform management functions or make management decisions on behalf of Client.  However, we 
may provide advice and recommendations to assist management in performing its functions and fulfilling its 
responsibilities.  We may advise management about appropriate accounting principles and their application, but 
the responsibility for the financial statements remains with management. 
 
At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from management about the 
financial statements and related matters. Because of the importance of management’s representations to an 
effective audit, Client agrees to release and indemnify Wipfli LLP (“Wipfli”), its partners, employees, agents, and 
assigns from any claim, liability, cost, or expense relating to our services under this Engagement Letter 
attributable in any respect to any knowing misrepresentation by management.  The preceding sentence shall 
not apply and shall be of no effect in the event its application, in the judgment of any government body or 
regulatory agency, would impair our independence as your auditor. 
 
Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Client’s financial statements.  Our report will be 
addressed to the Board of Directors.  Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected 
form and content based on the results of our audit.  Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be 
necessary for us to modify our opinion, add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter 
paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement.  If our opinion is other than 
unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance.  If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the 
audit or are unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or withdraw 
from this engagement. 
 
If Client intends to reproduce or publish these financial statements or any portion thereof, whether in paper or 
electronic form, subsequent to anticipated year-end filings, and make reference to our firm name in connection 
therewith, management agrees to provide us with proofs in sufficient time for our review and written approval 
before printing.  If in our professional judgment the circumstances require, we may withhold our approval.  
Client agrees to compensate Wipfli for the time associated with such review.  
 
Client acknowledges and agrees that any advice, recommendations, information, or work product provided to 
Client by Wipfli in connection with this engagement is for the sole use of Client and may not be relied upon by 
any third party.  Wipfli has no liability or responsibility to any third parties as a result of this engagement. 
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Management Assistance 

Assistance to be supplied by Client personnel, including the preparation of schedules and analysis of accounts, 
has been discussed with appropriate personnel.  Timely completion of this work will facilitate the completion of 
our engagement. 
 
Engagement Administration 

Greg Livin will be your audit engagement partner. 
 
Professional and certain regulatory standards require us to be independent in both fact and appearance.  Any 
discussions that you have with Wipfli personnel regarding employment could pose a threat to our 
independence.  Therefore, we request that you inform us immediately prior to any such discussions so that we 
can implement appropriate safeguards to maintain our independence. 
 
Other Services 

We may prepare (or assist in preparing) Client financial statements in conformity with GAAP based on 
information provided by management, but the responsibility for the financial statements remains with 
management. 
 
Management agrees to assume all management responsibilities for these services; oversee the services by 
designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; 
evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for them. 
 
Conclusion and Approval to Proceed 

If the terms of this Engagement Letter are acceptable to you and the services outlined are in accordance with 
your requirements, please return a signed copy of this Letter to us. 
 
We look forward to our continued association with you and management and appreciate the opportunity to 
serve you.  Please do not hesitate to call us if you have any questions about the work we are to perform or any 
other aspect of the services we can provide. 
 
Click here to insert Wipfli Signature  

Wipfli LLP 
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ACCEPTED: PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
 
 By:   
 
   
 (Print Name and Title) 
 
 Date:   
 
GL 
Enc. 
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1. Terms and Conditions and Related Engagement Documents 
These Wipfli LLP Professional Services Terms and Conditions (“Terms and 
Conditions”) apply to and govern Wipfli LLP’s provision of services to You.  
For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, any reference to “Wipfli,” 
“We,” “Us,” “Our,” or similar is a reference to Wipfli LLP, and includes any 
subsidiaries or subcontractors of Wipfli LLP, and any reference to “Client,” 
“You,” “Your,” or similar is a reference to the party or parties that have 
engaged Us to provide services, and the parties ultimately responsible for Our 
fees and expenses. 

These Terms and Conditions may be appended to or incorporated into an 
engagement letter outlining the delivery of specific services by Us to You, and 
in that case such engagement letter and any appendices thereto and these 
Terms and Conditions form the entire agreement between You and Wipfli 
with respect to the services described therein, and supersede and merge all 
prior or contemporaneous agreements and understandings (oral or written) 
between or among the parties regarding the subject matter thereof, including 
prior proposals of Wipfli regarding the engagement or services, 
understandings, and agreements (oral or written) between the parties 
relating to the subject matter including, without limitation, the terms of any 
request for proposal issued by Client or the standard printed terms on any 
purchase order issued by Client and any non-disclosure or confidentiality 
agreement between Wipfli and Client dated prior to the date of the 
engagement letter.  No modification, amendment, supplement to, or waiver 
of these Terms and Conditions shall be binding upon the parties unless made 
in writing and duly signed by both parties.  To the greatest extent reasonably 
possible, the provisions of the Terms and Condition and any engagement 
letter, its appendices any other exhibit, attachment, schedule, or other 
document referenced in or by the engagement letter, shall be read together 
and harmonized to give effect to the parties’ intent.  In the event of a direct 
conflict among the express provisions of the foregoing, the engagement letter 
shall be given controlling effect.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, whether or 
not covered by an engagement letter, services, support and advice provided 
by Wipfli shall be governed by these Terms and Conditions. 

2. Change Orders 
Unless an engagement letter specifies otherwise, services that fall outside 
the agreed-upon scope of Wipfli’s engagement under any engagement letter 
shall be covered by a Change Order, or, if the nature and amount of such 
services are not material to the overall engagement, shall be delineated and 
included on Wipfli’s invoice for such services.  A “Change Order” means a 
mutually agreed-upon change in the scope of work or services, schedule or 
the time for Wipfli’s performance of the work or services under an 
engagement letter, or a change in the fees or the basis of the fees to be paid 
to Wipfli by Client, which is reduced to a writing that is executed or 
otherwise acknowledged by an authorized representative of each for Wipfli 
and Client.  Services performed under a Change Order shall be subject to 
these Terms and Conditions. 

3. Commencement and Term 
Our engagement will commence when acceptance of these Terms and 
Conditions and any related engagement letter is delivered to Wipfli through 
execution thereof by a duly authorized representative of Client and shall 
continue until the services contemplated under the engagement letter are 
Complete (as reasonably determined by Wipfli) unless earlier terminated by 
either party as provided herein.  Each person executing an engagement letter 
or Change Order on behalf of a party represents and warrants to the other 
that he or she has all power and authority to bind the party on whose behalf 
he or she is executing same.  For the purposes of this paragraph, “Complete” 
means the delivery by Wipfli of the report or other deliverables contemplated 
by the engagement letter, or where no deliverables are contemplated, three 
(3) months after the last date of services rendered by Wipfli with respect to 
the services at issue.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, services, support and 
advice provided by Wipfli in respect of an engagement after the termination 
of such engagement shall be governed by these Terms and Conditions. 

4. Termination of Services 
Wipfli’s services may be terminated as follows:  (i) by either party immediately 
upon written notice to the other if either party hereto becomes the subject of 
voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy or other insolvency proceeding, (ii) by 
Wipfli or Client if either party defaults in the performance of any of its 
covenants and agreements and such default is not cured within thirty (30) 
days after notice from the other party specifying the nature of such default, 
and (iii) by Wipfli or Client with or without cause upon providing thirty (30) 
days written notice.  Wipfli has the right to terminate services with 
immediate effect if We determine applicable professional standards require 
Us to do so, if Client does not in a timely manner provide Us with information 
reasonably requested by Us to perform the contemplated services, refuses to 
cooperate with Our reasonable requests for assistance in connection with the 
delivery of Our services, or misrepresents any material facts.  Our withdrawal 
will release Us from any obligation to complete the services and will 
constitute termination of Our engagement.  Termination of Our engagement 

shall have no effect on either party’s obligation to pay any amount due and 
owing with respect to such periods prior to the effective date of such 
termination and Client agrees to compensate Us for Our time and out-of-
pocket expenses through the effective date of termination. 

5. Fee Estimates and Expenses  
An engagement letter may set forth specific fee amounts, hourly rates, or 
certain ranges for Wipfli’s fees in respect of the services contemplated by the 
engagement letter.  Where Wipfli provides an estimate of fees, Client 
acknowledges that Wipfli provides fee estimates as an accommodation to 
Client.  These estimates depend on various assumptions, including without 
limitation: (a) anticipated cooperation from Client personnel, (b) timely 
responses to Our inquiries, (c) timely completion and delivery of Client 
assistance requests, (d) timely communication of all significant accounting 
and financial reporting matters, (e) the assumption that unexpected 
circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement, and (f) where 
applicable, the assumption that Client’s hardware platform/computer system 
will, at the commencement of the services, be fully operable as intended and 
designed, functioning as necessary and available to Wipfli without material 
restriction for the duration of the services.  Unless otherwise indicated in an 
engagement letter, fee estimates shall not be construed as or deemed to be a 
minimum or maximum fee quotation.  Although Wipfli reasonably believes 
suggested fee ranges are accurate, Wipfli’s actual fees may vary from its fee 
estimates. 

Unless otherwise agreed in an engagement letter, a technology and 
administration fee of six percent (6%) of professional fees will be added to all 
invoices, along with any direct travel expenses incurred.  The technology and 
administration fee is in lieu of other direct expenses and charges which might 
otherwise apply.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the cost of software and 
software licenses or subscriptions and similar miscellaneous tools provided 
or acquired specifically for Client or for Client’s use in connection with the 
performance of services may be invoiced separately. 

6. Payment of Fees and Expenses 
All invoices are due and payable within thirty (30) days of the invoice date.  All 
business or commercial accounts will be charged interest at the lesser of one 
percent (1%) per month or the maximum rate permitted by law, except where 
prohibited by law, on the balance due to Wipfli that is outstanding over thirty 
(30) days.  At Our discretion, services may be suspended if Client’s account 
becomes overdue and services will not be resumed until Client’s account is 
paid in full.  Client acknowledges and agrees that We are not required to 
continue services in the event of a failure to pay on a timely basis for services 
rendered.  Client further acknowledges and agrees that in the event Wipfli 
suspends or terminates services as a result of Client’s failure to pay as agreed 
on a timely basis for services rendered, Wipfli shall not be liable to Client for 
any damages that occur whether direct or indirect, foreseen or unforeseen, 
and whether or not the parties have been advised of the possibility of such 
damages, and Client agrees to indemnify and hold Wipfli harmless against any 
such damages or claims. 

7. Engagement Staffing 
Wipfli expressly reserves the right to replace, in Our reasonable discretion, 
any of Our team members as necessary to provide quality and timely service 
to Client.  From time to time, and depending upon circumstances, Wipfli may 
use third-party service providers, such as independent contractors, 
specialists, or vendors to assist Us in providing professional services, 
including tax services.  These parties and their personnel may be located 
within or outside the United States.  We may also use personnel from 
affiliates of Wipfli and other Wipfli-related entities (including Our wholly-
owned subsidiary based in India and contractors in the Philippines). 

We remain responsible to Client for the supervision of all independent 
contractors, service providers, entities, and personnel who assist Us in 
rendering professional services hereunder and for protecting the 
confidentiality of Client information.  Client hereby consents and authorizes 
Us to disclose Client information to the foregoing parties for the purpose of 
providing services to Client.  Applicable rules in some states require that We 
advise you that some persons who own an interest in Wipfli may not be 
licensed as Certified Public Accountants and may provide services. 

8. Confidentiality, Information Security and Electronic Information Storage 
The performance of services by Wipfli may result in the parties having access 
to information that is confidential to one another, including, without 
limitation, source code, documentation, specifications, databases, system 
design, file layouts, tool combinations, development methods, or business or 
financial affairs, which may incorporate business methods, marketing 
strategies, pricing, competitor information, product development strategies 
and methods, customer lists, customer information, and financial results 
(collectively “Confidential Information”).  Confidential Information may 
include information received from third parties, both written and oral, that 
each party is obligated to treat as confidential. 
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Confidential Information shall not include any information that (i) is already 
known by the receiving party or its affiliates, free of any obligation to keep it 
confidential, (ii) is or becomes publicly known through no wrongful act of the 
receiving party or its affiliates, (iii) is received by the receiving party from a 
third party without any restriction on confidentiality, (iv) is independently 
developed by the receiving party or its affiliates without the use of disclosing 
party’s Confidential Information, (v) is disclosed to third parties by the 
disclosing party without any obligation of confidentiality, or (vi) is approved 
for release by prior written authorization of the disclosing party. 

Except as permitted hereunder and necessary for the performance of 
services hereunder, without the advance written consent of the other party 
or as required by law, regulation, legal process, or to comply with 
professional standards applicable to a party, neither party shall disclose to a 
third party Confidential Information of the other party.  Each party agrees to 
maintain at least the same procedures regarding the Confidential Information 
of the other as it maintains with respect to its own Confidential Information.  
Each party may use the Confidential Information received from the other 
party only in connection with fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement.  
The parties further agree that expiration or termination of this Agreement, 
for any reason, shall not relieve either party, nor minimize their obligations 
with respect to Confidential Information, as set forth herein. 

Wipfli may utilize third-party service providers, including cloud-based 
service providers, who may collect, use, transfer, transmit, store, or otherwise 
process Client Confidential Information in connection with the delivery of 
certain services and Client consents to their use.  Wipfli will ensure that it 
maintains appropriate policies, procedures and safeguards to protect the 
confidentiality of Client Confidential Information.  In addition, to the extent 
possible and practicable We will ensure that Our agreements with all third-
party service providers contain appropriate provisions to protect Client 
Confidential Information.  We may use electronic media to transmit Client 
Confidential Information and such use in itself will not constitute a breach of 
any security or confidentiality obligation.  Client acknowledges that Wipfli has 
no control over the unauthorized interception or breach of any 
communications or electronic data once it has been transmitted or if it has 
been subject to unauthorized access while stored, notwithstanding all 
reasonable security measures employed by Us.  You consent to Our use of 
electronic devices and applications in the delivery of Our services. 

Wipfli is committed to protecting personal information that can be linked to 
specific individuals, including health information (“Personal Data”).  Any 
Personal Data provided to Us by Client will be kept confidential and not 
disclosed to any third party not described above (parties providing Us 
assistance in rendering professional services) unless necessary to deliver 
services, expressly permitted by Client, or required by law, regulation, legal 
process, or to comply with professional standards applicable to Wipfli.  Client 
is responsible for obtaining, pursuant to law or regulation, consents from 
parties that provided Client with their personal information which will be 
obtained, used, and disclosed by Wipfli to render services, and Wipfli may rely 
on the representation that Client has obtained such consents. 

9. Intellectual Property Rights, Client Records, Wipfli Workpapers; Use of 
Deliverables and Drafts 
Wipfli acknowledges that all Client materials, data or other information 
provided to Wipfli to permit Wipfli to perform services (“Client IP”) belongs to 
and shall remain the property of Client.  Client acknowledges that proprietary 
information, documents, materials, management techniques and other 
intellectual property (collectively “Wipfli IP”) are a material asset to Wipfli and 
source of services We perform for Client and others were developed prior to 
performing services for Client.  Client acknowledges that Wipfli owns all 
right, title and interest in Wipfli IP including enhancements thereto produced 
or developed by Wipfli throughout the duration of this engagement, 
excluding any pre-existing ownership right of Client and without implying 
any ownership interest in any Client IP, all of which shall remain the property 
of Client.  Upon completion of the services and full payment by Client of all 
related invoices, Wipfli grants to Client a perpetual paid-up license to use or 
modify, for internal purposes only, any deliverable produced by Wipfli and 
actually delivered to Client (including embedded Wipfli IP), provided that any 
use or modification of such deliverable, other than for the purposes stated in 
the related engagement letter, is not authorized.  In addition, Client shall not 
alter or remove any of Wipfli’s trademarks, copyright registration marks, 
patent, or other intellectual property notices applicable to any of Wipfli’s 
goods, products, services, marketing material, or advertising media and shall 
not in any way alter any of Wipfli’s products.  Neither party shall acquire any 
right, title, or interest in or to the other party’s code, data, business 
processes, or other information to which such party may have access during 
the term of the engagement hereunder.  All such code, data, business 
process, and other information shall be solely and exclusively the property of 
the originating party. 

Client’s original documents, data, books and records are the property of 
Client, and it is Client’s responsibility to maintain all such materials.  Wipfli 

has no responsibility to do so unless specifically undertaken by Wipfli in an 
engagement letter.  Workpapers, documentation and files created by Us in 
the course of providing services are the property of Wipfli.  We will retain 
workpapers, documentation, and files pursuant to Our record retention 
policy.  In the event We are required to respond to a subpoena, court order, 
government regulatory inquiry, or other legal process related to Client or its 
management (other than a matter in which Wipfli is named as a party) for the 
production of workpapers, documents, files and/or testimony relative to 
information We obtained and/or prepared during the course of rendering 
services, We will, to the extent permitted by law and applicable professional 
standards, notify You of the matter, but You agree We have no obligation to 
You in the event We determine We are obligated to provide documents or 
other information.  You agree to compensate Us for all time We expend in 
connection with such response, at Our regular rates, and to reimburse Us for 
all related out-of-pocket costs, including reasonable attorney’s fees, that We 
may incur.  Any services under this paragraph will be deemed a separate 
engagement subject to these Terms and Conditions. 

10. Third-Party Software, Technology Tools and Related Products and 
Limitations Thereon 
Wipfli may use software, technology tools, or related products (“Third-Party 
Products”) to deliver services to Client.  Where Wipfli uses Third-Party 
Products or is engaged to provide services related to the selection, 
implementation or use of Third-Party Products, Wipfli will employ 
commercially reasonable efforts to research, learn, and assist Client in the 
selection, implementation and use of such Third-Party Products.  However, 
Wipfli shall not be held liable for any issues, errors, or malfunctions related to 
or arising from the Third-Party Products not directly caused by Wipfli’s fraud 
or willful misconduct.  Client acknowledges that Wipfli does not have control 
over the functionality, performance or availability of Third-Party Products 
and cannot assure or make any representation that the Third-Party Products 
are free from defects, malware, viruses, trojan horses, and similar risks.  
Consequently, Wipfli disclaims any warranties or guarantees, express or 
implied, regarding the performance, reliability, or results obtained from the 
use of Third-Party Products and Client acknowledges that the use of such 
Third-Party Products is subject to the terms of any end user agreement 
associated with each of the Third-Party Products and accepts such terms. 

11. Tax Services 
Tax services are subject to and will be performed in accordance with 
Treasury Department Circular 230, the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (AICPA) and other professional standards applicable to tax 
services.  Our fees for services do not include time spent responding to IRS or 
state or local inquiries, and Client understands that We are not responsible 
for IRS or state or local disallowance of doubtful deductions or deductions 
unsupported by adequate documentation, nor for resulting taxes, penalties, 
and interest.  Client’s tax returns may be selected for review by the taxing 
authorities.  Any proposed adjustments by an examining agent are subject to 
certain rights of appeal.  In the event of such tax examination, We will be 
available upon request to represent Client and will charge additional fees for 
the time and expenses incurred.  Any such services will constitute a separate 
and distinct engagement. 

If Client is an individual with respect to whom IRC 7216 and the related 
regulations (“7216”) are applicable, Wipfli will not utilize foreign persons or 
resources to provide tax services without first obtaining appropriate consent 
from Client, and any provision of these Terms and Conditions which would 
contravene the requirements of 7216 shall be inapplicable. 

12. Allocation of Risk and Limitation of Liability 
In no event will Wipfli or Client be liable to the other for claims of punitive, 
consequential, special, or indirect damages, whether or not a party was 
advised of the possibility of such damages, regardless of whether they were 
foreseeable, and regardless of whether such damages arise under a theory of 
contract, tort, strict liability or otherwise.  Wipfli’s liability for all claims, 
damages and costs of Client arising from Wipfli’s services performed under an 
engagement letter, Change Order or otherwise shall be limited to the amount 
of fees paid by Client to Wipfli for the specific services which give rise to the 
claim for damages or, in the case of services provided in respect of an 
engagement which spans a period of more than twelve (12) months, the fees 
paid by Client to Wipfli in the twelve (12) months preceding the event giving 
rise to the claim.  The limitation of liability in the preceding sentence shall not 
apply in the event of Wipfli’s fraud or willful misconduct or where disallowed 
by applicable law, regulation or professional standards applicable to the 
services performed under these Terms and Conditions.  Because Wipfli will 
rely on Client and its management for the accuracy of the representations 
made to Wipfli to perform services, and except where indemnity is disallowed 
by applicable law, regulation or professional standards applicable to the 
services performed under these Terms and Conditions, Client holds harmless 
and releases Wipfli and its owners and employees from all claims, liabilities, 
losses and costs of any kind arising which arise from: (i) a knowing 
misrepresentation, withholding or concealment of information by Client or 
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its management; or (ii) a wrongful act by Client or a member of Client’s 
management or ownership group. 

13. Dispute Resolution; Choice of Law and Statute of Limitations 

If any dispute arises regarding the subject matter hereof or services provided 
by Wipfli to Client and such dispute cannot be resolved through informal 
negotiations and discussion, prior to resorting to litigation the parties will try 
in good faith to settle the dispute by non-binding mediation administered by 
the American Arbitration Association under its applicable rules for resolving 
professional accounting and related services disputes.  Either party may 
request mediation and costs of any mediation proceeding shall be shared 
equally.  In the event of litigation, Wipfli and Client hereby agree not to elect 
or request a trial by jury of any issue triable by right of jury and waive any 
right to trial by jury fully to the extent that any such right shall now or 
hereafter exist with respect to the services, these Terms and Conditions, or 
any claim, counterclaim or other action arising therewith. 

The parties agree that any dispute arising out of Wipfli’s services or these 
Terms and Conditions shall be governed by the laws of the state of Illinois, 
without regard to conflict of laws principles.  Except for an action by Us to 
collect payment of Our invoices, Wipfli and Client agree that no claim arising 
out of services rendered by Wipfli shall be filed after the earlier of the 
expiration of the applicable statute of limitations, or: (i) in the case of any 
report or deliverable issued by Wipfli under the engagement letter, no later 
than two years from the date of such report or deliverable (or if no report or 
deliverable is issued, two years from the date of any related engagement 
letter), or (ii) in the case of any tax form or similar governmental filing, no 
later than three years after the extended due date of such tax form or filing. 

14. Regulatory Matters and Impact On Independence 
Where Wipfli is (a) providing services to an entity that is registered with the 
SEC or an affiliate of such registrant, or (b) providing services to an entity or 
affiliate that is subject to professional standards more stringent than those 
which exist under the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct, any provision of 
these Terms and Conditions which would be prohibited by such professional 
standards or deemed to impair Wipfli’s independence relative to Client under 
such professional standards shall not apply to the extent necessary to avoid 
such prohibition or independence impairment, it being the intent of Wipfli 
and Client to ensure Wipfli and Client’s compliance with applicable 
professional standards in respect of Wipfli’s engagement by Client and to 
ensure, where appropriate and necessary, Wipfli’s independence from Client.  

15. Certain Sales (and Similar) Tax Responsibilities 

To the extent applicable, Client shall pay and be solely and exclusively liable 
for all sales, use, ad valorem, excise, or other taxes or governmental charges 
imposed on the installation, implementation, licensure, or sale of goods or 
services by Wipfli or third parties to Client. 

16. Severability 
The provisions of these Terms and Conditions shall be severable, so that the 
invalidity or unenforceability of any provisions will not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining provisions; provided that no such severability 
shall be effective if it materially changes the economic benefit of these Terms 
and Conditions to either party. 

17. Independent Contractor Status and Non-Exclusivity  
The relationship between Wipfli and Client is solely and exclusively that of 
independently contracting parties.  No right of exclusivity is granted, 
guaranteed, or implied by Wipfli by entry into an engagement letter or the 
performance of services.  Client acknowledges that Wipfli regularly performs 
the same or similar services as are being provided hereunder to third parties. 

18. Insurance 
Wipfli will carry and maintain in force at all times during the term of its 
engagement with Client appropriate insurance coverages, including polices 
covering professional liability errors and omissions, cyber liability, general 
liability, automotive, and worker’s compensation. 

19. Notices 
All notices required to be given to either party hereunder shall be in writing 
and sent by email or traceable carrier to each party’s address (including an 
email address) indicated on any engagement letter, or such other address as a 
party may indicate by at least ten (10) business days’ prior written notice to 
the other party.  Notices shall be effective upon receipt.  A copy of such 
notice shall be provided to wipfli-legal@wipfli.com. 

20. Counterparts and Electronic Signatures  
Any document contemplated hereby may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original and all of which, 
when taken together, will be deemed to constitute one and the same 
document.  Each party hereto agrees that any electronic signature of a party 

to any document contemplated hereby is intended to authenticate such 
writing and shall be as valid, and have the same force and effect, as a manual 
signature.  Any such electronically signed document shall be deemed (i) to be 
"written" or "in writing," (ii) to have been signed, and (iii) to constitute a 
record established and maintained in the ordinary course of business and an 
original written record when printed from electronic files.  Each party hereto 
also agrees that electronic delivery of a signature to any such document (via 
email or otherwise) shall be as effective as manual delivery of a manual 
signature. 

21. Assignment 
These Terms and Conditions and related engagement letters and agreements 
shall be binding on the parties hereto and their respective successors and 
assigns.  Neither party may make assignment thereof without prior written 
consent of the other party, except that Wipfli may assign its rights and 
obligations hereunder without approval of Client to an entity that acquires all 
or substantially all of the assets of Wipfli or to any subsidiary or affiliate or 
successor in a merger, acquisition, or change of control of Wipfli; provided 
that in no event shall such assignment relieve Wipfli of its obligations 
hereunder or under any applicable engagement letter. 

22. Force Majeure 
Either party may suspend (or if such suspension continues for more than 
thirty (30) days, terminate) its obligations (except the obligation to pay for 
services previously rendered) hereunder or under any engagement letter or 
Change Order, if such obligations are delayed, prevented, or rendered 
impractical or impossible due to circumstances beyond its reasonable 
control, including, without limitation, events generally understood to be “Acts 
of God.” 

23. Certain Disclosures 
Wipfli’s services do not constitute legal or investment advice.  We are not in a 
fiduciary relationship with You.  Wipfli does not provide investment advisory 
services.  Wipfli owns a membership interest in Creative Planning Holdco, 
LLC which in turn owns Creative Planning, LLC, an SEC registered investment 
adviser (“Creative”).  Certain Wipfli employees also dually serve as a Creative 
investment adviser representative (“IAR”).  If Client requires investment 
advisory services, Wipfli will introduce Client to a Wipfli employee who dually 
serves as an IAR.  If Client subsequently engages Creative, Creative will in 
most cases share a portion of its ongoing investment advisory fee with the 
IAR.  The IAR is required to remit such amounts to Wipfli as the IAR’s 
employer.  Wipfli’s receipt of a portion of the Creative advisory fee will not 
result in Client’s payment of a higher Creative investment advisory fee than if 
Client had engaged Creative independent of Wipfli and the IAR.  The IAR will 
provide Client with written disclosure of the relationship and economic 
arrangement by and among Wipfli, the IAR and Creative.  All investment 
advisory services are provided exclusively by Creative per the terms and 
conditions of a separate written agreement between Client and Creative.  
Wipfli does not provide investment advisory services but Wipfli’s receipt of 
compensation as described does present the potential of a conflict of 
interest.  The IAR’s role is limited to the introduction of Creative.  Creative’s 
written disclosure brochure and Form CRS discussing its advisory services 
and fees is available at www.creativeplanning.com.  No Client is under any 
obligation to engage Creative or to continue engaging with Creative after 
having decided to engage Creative. 
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ANNUAL BUDGET 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2025 

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



12/4/24

ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 

2023 2024 9/30/2024 2024 2025

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 4,157,348$    2,035,704$    2,654,519$    2,654,519$    1,296,483$    

REVENUES

    Property taxes 524,772         935,615         931,926         935,615         1,011,494      

    Specific ownership taxes 35,250           65,494           33,232           44,400           60,689           

    Operations and maintenance fee 152,250         233,000         180,503         243,000         290,400         

    Administrative costs transfer fee 12,200           30,000           31,000           38,500           10,000           

    Interest Income 222,927         150,000         117,791         145,015         40,000           

    Developer advance 2,244,295      1,418,668      27,881           1,017,052      -                    

    Facilities fees 207,000         114,000         105,000         105,000         -                    

    Other Revenue 7,068             10,000           5,133             6,000             5,000             

    Developer advance - Project Management Fee 62,618           5,000             1,637             15,400           -                    

    Credit public improvement fees 159,088         76,000           96,435           96,435           -                    

    Add-On public improvement fees 159,088         76,000           96,434           96,434           -                    

    Credit public improvement fees - PRI 39,772           19,000           24,109           24,109           -                    

    Drainage impact fees 361,820         256,480         105,268         119,008         -                    

    Rebated City fees 459,459         405,420         236,487         493,244         -                    

    Neighborhood Park impact fees 114,318         110,376         94,608           94,608           -                    

Total revenues 4,761,925      3,905,053      2,087,444      3,473,820      1,417,583      

Total funds available 8,919,273      5,940,757      4,741,963      6,128,339      2,714,066      

EXPENDITURES

General and administrative 133,004         277,000         100,223         141,025         235,500         

Operations and maintenance 193,843         283,000         220,067         286,481         347,500         

Debt service 1,700,606      2,100,000      822,822         2,166,000      1,100,000      

Capital projects 4,237,301      2,280,000      1,338,613      2,238,350      -                    

Total expenditures 6,264,754      4,940,000      2,481,725      4,831,856      1,683,000      

Total expenditures and transfers out 

requiring appropriation 6,264,754      4,940,000      2,481,725      4,831,856      1,683,000      

ENDING FUND BALANCES 2,654,519$    1,000,757$    2,260,238$    1,296,483$    1,031,066$    

EMERGENCY RESERVE 8,000$           13,200$         11,400$         13,600$         14,600$         

AVAILABLE FOR O&M RESERVE -                    -                    -                    34,888           14,976           

SERIES 2020 - REQUIRED DEBT SERVICE 812,672         812,672         812,672         812,672         812,672         

CREDIT PIF - PRI RESERVE -                    -                    -                    174,164         174,164         
TOTAL RESERVE 820,672$       825,872$       824,072$       1,035,324$    1,016,412$    

PRAIRE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7
SUMMARY

2025 BUDGET
 WITH 2023 ACTUAL AND 2024 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
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ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 

2023 2024 9/30/2024 2024 2025

ASSESSED VALUATION

Residential - Single Family 5,620,000$    9,720,250$    9,720,250$    9,720,250$    11,773,730$  

State assessed 3,290             3,870             3,870             3,870             4,510             

Vacant land 2,175,020      2,585,770      2,585,770      2,585,770      1,028,460      

Personal property 120,760         203,020         203,020         203,020         216,600         

Certified Assessed Value 7,919,070$    12,512,910$  12,512,910$  12,512,910$  13,023,300$  

MILL LEVY

General 11.031 12.462 12.462 12.462 12.944

Debt Service 55.156 62.310 62.310 62.310 64.724

Total mill levy 66.187 74.772 74.772 74.772 77.668

PROPERTY TAXES

General 87,355$         155,936$       155,936$       155,936$       168,574$       

Debt Service 436,784         779,679         779,679         779,679         842,920         

Levied property taxes 524,139         935,615         935,615         935,615         1,011,494      

Adjustments to actual/rounding 633                -                 (3,689)            -                 -                 

Budgeted property taxes 524,772$       935,615$       931,926$       935,615$       1,011,494$    

BUDGETED PROPERTY TAXES
General 87,460$         155,936$       155,321$       155,936$       168,574$       
Debt Service 437,312         779,679         776,605         779,679         842,920         

524,772$       935,615$       931,926$       935,615$       1,011,494$    

PRAIRE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7
PROPERTY TAX SUMMARY INFORMATION

2025 BUDGET
 WITH 2023 ACTUAL AND 2024 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
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ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 1 BUDGET 2 

2023 2024 9/30/2024 2024 2025 2025

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES (18,624)$        8,000$           (22,433)$        (22,433)$        48,488$         48,488$         

REVENUES

    Property taxes 87,460           155,936         155,321         155,936         168,574         168,574         

    Specific ownership taxes 5,875             10,916           5,539             7,400             10,114           10,114           

    Operations and maintenance fee 152,250         233,000         180,503         243,000         276,600         290,400         

    Interest Income 44                  -                     15                  15                  -                     -                     

    Developer advance 43,585           25,348           27,881           27,881           -                     -                     

    Administrative costs transfer fee 12,200           30,000           31,000           38,500           10,000           10,000           

    Other Revenue 7,068             10,000           5,133             6,000             5,000             5,000             

Total revenues 308,482         465,200         405,392         478,732         470,288         484,088         

Total funds available 289,858         473,200         382,959         456,299         518,776         532,576         

EXPENDITURES

General and administrative

    Accounting 43,514           45,000           33,120           47,000           50,000           50,000           

    Auditing 4,900             6,000             6,000             6,000             6,600             6,600             

    County Treasurer's Fee 1,311             2,339             2,342             2,339             2,529             2,529             

    Directors' fees 1,200             1,600             -                     1,200             1,600             1,600             

    Dues and Membership 1,238             1,500             810                810                1,500             1,500             

    Insurance 11,231           12,000           10,981           10,981           13,000           13,000           

    District management 13,982           30,000           11,668           20,000           25,000           25,000           

    Legal 24,668           33,000           16,065           26,000           30,000           30,000           

    Miscellaneous 14,558           15,561           3,526             7,000             5,271             5,271             

    Election 1,846             -                     -                     -                     20,000           20,000           

    Contingency -                     30,000           -                     -                     -                     -                     

Operations and maintenance 

    Repairs and maintenance - District Tracts 932                2,500             1,697             2,300             2,500             2,500             

    Landscaping - District Tracts 43,897           70,000           46,452           65,000           105,000         105,000         

Tree care -                     15,000           20,681           20,681           15,000           15,000           

    Electricity - District Tracts 1,531             2,000             1,428             2,000             2,000             2,000             

    Community management 33,284           35,000           24,997           36,000           51,000           51,000           

    Billing 25,232           24,000           18,828           24,000           25,000           25,000           

    Snow removal 12,014           30,000           14,489           25,000           25,000           25,000           

    Underdrain system maintenance -                     5,000             -                     -                     10,000           10,000           

    Irrigation Water- DistrictTracts 75,715           95,000           90,557           110,000         110,000         110,000         

    Site lighting -                     2,500             -                     -                     -                     -                     

    Pet Station services 1,238             2,000             938                1,500             2,000             2,000             

Total expenditures 312,291         460,000         304,579         407,811         503,000         503,000         

Total expenditures and transfers out 

requiring appropriation 312,291         460,000         304,579         407,811         503,000         503,000         

ENDING FUND BALANCES (22,433)$        13,200$         78,380$         48,488$         15,776$         29,576$         

EMERGENCY RESERVE 8,000$           13,200$         11,400$         13,600$         14,200$         14,600$         

AVAILABLE FOR O&M RESERVE -                     -                     -                     34,888           1,576             14,976           

TOTAL RESERVE 8,000$           13,200$         11,400$         48,488$         15,776$         29,576$         

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

PRAIRE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7
GENERAL FUND 

2025 BUDGET
 WITH 2023 ACTUAL AND 2024 ESTIMATED

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
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ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 

2023 2024 9/30/2024 2024 2025

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 1,067,541$    1,265,024$    1,358,118$    1,358,118$    1,073,831$    

REVENUES

    Property taxes 437,312         779,679         776,605         779,679         842,920         

    Specific ownership taxes 29,375           54,578           27,693           37,000           50,575           

    Credit public improvement fees 159,088         76,000           96,435           96,435           -                     

    Add-On public improvement fees 159,088         76,000           96,434           96,434           -                     

    Interest Income 78,279           50,000           66,178           80,000           40,000           

    Drainage impact fees 361,820         256,480         105,268         119,008         -                     

    Facilities fees 207,000         114,000         105,000         105,000         -                     

    Rebated City fees 459,459         405,420         236,487         493,244         -                     

    Neighborhood Park impact fees 114,318         110,376         94,608           94,608           -                     

Total revenues 2,005,739      1,922,533      1,604,708      1,901,408      933,495         

Total funds available 3,073,280      3,187,557      2,962,826      3,259,526      2,007,326      

EXPENDITURES

General and administrative

    County Treasurer's Fee 6,556             11,695           11,711           11,695           12,644           

    Paying agent fees 8,000             8,000             4,000             8,000             8,000             

    Contingency -                     80,305           -                     -                     59,356           

Debt Service 

    Bond interest 410,606         400,000         182,822         353,000         300,000         

    Bond principal 1,290,000      1,700,000      640,000         1,813,000      800,000         

Total expenditures 1,715,162      2,200,000      838,533         2,185,695      1,180,000      

Total expenditures and transfers out 

requiring appropriation 1,715,162      2,200,000      838,533         2,185,695      1,180,000      

ENDING FUND BALANCES 1,358,118$    987,557$       2,124,293$    1,073,831$    827,326$       

SERIES 2020 - REQUIRED DEBT SERVICE 812,672$       812,672$       812,672$       812,672$       812,672$       

TOTAL RESERVE 812,672$       812,672$       812,672$       812,672$       812,672$       

PRAIRE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7
DEBT SERVICE FUND 

2025 BUDGET
 WITH 2023 ACTUAL AND 2024 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
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ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED BUDGET 

2023 2024 9/30/2024 2024 2025

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 3,108,431$    762,680$       1,318,834$    1,318,834$    174,164$       

REVENUES

    Interest Income 144,604         100,000         51,598           65,000           -                     

    Developer advance 2,200,710      1,393,320      -                     989,171         -                     

    Developer advance - Project Management Fee 62,618           5,000             1,637             15,400           -                     

    Credit public improvement fees - PRI 39,772           19,000           24,109           24,109           -                     

Total revenues 2,447,704      1,517,320      77,344           1,093,680      -                     

Total funds available 5,556,135      2,280,000      1,396,178      2,412,514      174,164         

EXPENDITURES

Capital projects

    Accounting 29,010           30,000           17,817           22,000           -                     

    Legal 13,856           -                     -                     -                     -                     

    Project management fee 62,618           5,000             1,720             15,400           -                     

    Project management fee interest 75,169           -                     -                     -                     -                     

    Engineering 12,438           10,000           2,044             10,000           -                     

    Contingency -                     135,000         -                     -                     -                     

    Repay developer advance 2,233,600      2,000,000      1,293,900      2,000,000      -                     

PPI

    Village 1 - Phase 3 15,707           -                     -                     -                     -                     

    Village 1 - Phase 4 913,288         15,000           3,396             15,000           -                     

DPI

    Village 1 - Phase 2 -                     -                     950                950                -                     

    Village 1 - Phase 3 46,607           -                     -                     -                     -                     

    Village 1 - Phase 4 835,008         85,000           18,786           175,000         -                     

Total expenditures 4,237,301      2,280,000      1,338,613      2,238,350      -                     

Total expenditures and transfers out 

requiring appropriation 4,237,301      2,280,000      1,338,613      2,238,350      -                     

ENDING FUND BALANCES 1,318,834$    -$                   57,565$         174,164$       174,164$       

CREDIT PIF - PRI RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   174,164$       174,164$       

TOTAL RESERVE -$                   -$                   -$                   174,164$       174,164$       

PRAIRE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

2025 BUDGET
 WITH 2023 ACTUAL AND 2024 ESTIMATED

For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
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PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
2025 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 
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Services Provided 
 
Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 7 (District) is a quasi-municipal corporation located in the City of 
Brighton, Adams County, Colorado and is governed pursuant to the provisions of the Colorado Special 
District Act (Title 32, Article 1, Colorado Revised Statutes). The District was organized on June 6, 2006, 
concurrently with Prairie Center Metropolitan District Nos 3-6 and 8-10, pursuant to an order and decree 
of the Adams County District Court. The Service Plan for the District was approved by the City of Brighton 
on February 21, 2006, modified on November 13, 2006, and amended and restated on November 4, 
2008, and modified on April 14, 2013. 
 
The District was established to provide financing for the design, acquisition, installation, construction and 
completion of public improvements and services, including streets, transportation, drainage 
improvements, traffic and safety controls, park and recreation facilities, water, sewer, television relay and 
translation and mosquito and pest control services. The District is authorized to operate and maintain any 
improvements not otherwise conveyed to the City or other entities. 
 
During elections held on May 2, 2006, a majority of the District’s electors authorized general obligation 
indebtedness of $6,790,000,000, for the above listed facilities, intergovernmental agreements and debt 
refunding. Additionally, on May 2, 2006, the District’s voters authorized the District to collect, retain and 
spend all revenues in excess of TABOR spending, revenue raising or other limitations.   
 
Pursuant to the Service Plans of District Nos. 2–10, the maximum aggregate principal of debt that may 
be incurred by all of such Districts, together with District No. 1, collectively, is $750,000,000. 
 
The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the 
requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. Section 29-1-105 using its best estimates as of the 
date of the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions and its expected course 
of actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District believes are significant to the 
budget. There will usually be differences between the budget and actual results, because events and 
circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those differences may be material. 
 
 

Revenues 
 
Property Taxes 
 
Property taxes are levied by the District’s Board of Directors. The levy is based on assessed valuations 
determined by the County Assessor generally as of January 1 of each year. The levy is normally set by 
December 15 by certification to the County Commissioners to put the tax lien on the individual properties 
as of January 1 of the following year. The County Treasurer collects the determined taxes during the 
ensuing calendar year. The taxes are payable by April or, if in equal installments, at the taxpayer’s 
election, in February and June. Delinquent taxpayers are notified in August, and generally, sale of the 
tax liens on delinquent properties are held in November or December. The County Treasurer remits the 
taxes collected monthly to the District.  
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Revenues – (continued) 
 
Property Taxes (Continued) 
 
For property tax collection year 2025, SB22-238 and SB23B-001, SB 24-233, and HB24B-1001 set the 
assessment rates and actual value reductions as follows: 
 

Category Rate  Category Rate 
 Actual Value 

Reduction 
Amount 

Single-Family 
Residential 6.70%  Agricultural Land 26.40% 

 Single-Family 
Residential 

$55,000 

Multi-Family 
Residential 6.70%  

Renewable 
Energy Land 26.40% 

 Multi-Family 
Residential 

$55,000 

Commercial 27.90%  Vacant Land 27.90%  Commercial $30,000 

Industrial 27.90%  Personal Property 27.90%  Industrial $30,000 

Lodging 27.90%  State Assessed 27.90%  Lodging $30,000 

   
Oil & Gas 
Production 87.50% 

   

 
The calculation of the taxes levied is displayed on the Property Tax Summary page of the budget using 
the adopted mill levy imposed by the District. 
 
Specific Ownership Taxes 
 
Specific ownership taxes are set by the State and collected by the County Treasurer, primarily on vehicle 
licensing within the County as a whole. The specific ownership taxes are allocated by the County 
Treasurer to all taxing entities within the County. The budget assumes that the District’s share will be 
equal to approximately 6% of the property taxes collected. 
 
Interest Income 
 
Investment earned on the District’s available funds has been estimated based on historical interest 
earnings. 
 
Developer Advances 
 
A portion of operations, maintenance, and capital costs of the District is expected to be funded by the 
Developer. 
 
Operations and Administrative Costs Transfer Fees 
 
The District established an operations fee on each residential lot along with a one-time administrative 
costs transfer fee upon closing to cover the costs of operations and maintaining the District 
improvements. In 2025, the District increases the operations fee to $____ per year and the administrative 
costs transfer fee to $500 per closing. 
 
 
 
 

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 
2025 BUDGET 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 
 
 

8 

Revenues – (continued) 
 
Facilities Fees, Credit PIF, Add-On PIF, Drainage Impact Fees, Rebated City Fees, and 
Neighborhood Park Impact Fees 
 
The District entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Assignment of Revenues (the IGA) 
with Prairie Center Metro District No. 3 (District No. 3). Per the IGA, District No. 3 agrees to transfer to 
the District its rights to receive revenues as set forth in the IGA that are directly attributable to Village I. 
District No. 3 is relieved from providing any public improvements or management services related to 
Village I as it is being developed by the District, separately from the remaining development.  

 
These assigned revenues include: 
 

 Facilities Fees – being assessed for the use of the District’s improvements. The facilities fee 
is $3,000 per single-family, detached dwelling unit, due on or before the date of issuance of a 
building permit by the City of Brighton.  
 

 Credit and Add-On PIF – being assessed on use tax transactions and collected at the time of 
building permit issuance. The Credit PIF is calculated as 1.25% of 50% of the project 
valuation. The Add-On PIF is calculated as 1.00% of 50% of the project valuation. 

 

 Drainage Impact Fees – the City of Brighton shall reimburse the District, on a quarterly basis 
from building permits issued, for the design, financing and construction of the stormwater 
improvements. 

 

 Rebated City Fees – the City of Brighton shall remit a per-lot rebated fee to the District, on a 
quarterly basis from certificates of occupancy issued, in the amount of $6,756.75 per single-
family residential lot for a total reimbursement not to exceed $2,500,000 at the completion of 
the Village 1 Subdivision. 
 

 Neighborhood Park Impact Fees - the City of Brighton has agreed to remit the Neighborhood 
Park Impact Fees to the District as reimbursement for the costs of construction of certain 
Neighborhood Park Improvements in the amount of $1,971 per residential unit.  

 
 

Expenditures 
 
General and Administrative  
 
General and administrative expenditures include the estimated costs of services necessary to maintain 
the District’s administrative viability such as legal, management, accounting, insurance and other 
administrative expenses.   

 
Operations and Maintenance 
 
Operations and maintenance expenditures include estimated expenditures for improvements within the 
District related to repairs and maintenance, landscaping maintenance, park maintenance, utility costs 
and snow removal. 
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Expenditures (Continued) 
 
Treasurer’s Fees 
 
County Treasurer’s fees have been computed at 1.5% of property tax collections. 
 
Debt Service 
 
Payments on Series 2020 Bonds are based on the amount of funds available. Therefore, a scheduled 
amortization has not been included in the budget. 
 
Series 2021 Subordinate Bonds are also structured as cash flow bonds. A debt amortization schedule 
has not been provided as payments are made when funds are available. 
 
Capital Outlay 
 
The District anticipates infrastructure improvements as noted in the Capital Projects Fund. 

 
 

Debt and Leases 
 
Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 
 
The District issued Series 2020 Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds on August 12, 2020, in the par 
amount of $12,225,000. Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to finance a portion of the costs 
of constructing certain public infrastructure to serve the Development and certain other property within 
Prairie Center and repay advances made by the Developer to the District to construct such public 
infrastructure. A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will also be used to fund: (a) the Reserve Fund, (b) 
capitalized interest on the Bonds; and (c) costs of issuing the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as two 
term bonds. The first term bond bears interest at 4.125% and matures on December 15, 2036. The 
second term bond bears interest at 4.875% and matures on December 15, 2044. Interest on the Bonds 
is payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 (“Interest Payment Dates”), beginning on 
December 15, 2020, to the extent of available Pledged Revenue.   
 
The Bonds are structured as “cash flow” bonds, meaning that no regularly scheduled payments of 
principal are due on the term Bonds prior to their respective maturity dates. Instead, principal is payable 
on each June 15 and December 15 from available Pledged Revenue, if any, pursuant to a mandatory 
redemption, after paying interest due on such Interest Payment Date and after funding in full interest 
coming due on the next Interest Payment Date (the “Subsequent Interest Payment Date”), less any 
amounts on deposit in such account, including any deposits from capitalized interest. To the extent 
principal of any Bond is not paid when due, such principal shall remain outstanding until paid. To the 
extent interest on any Bond is not paid when due, such interest shall compound semiannually on each 
Interest Payment Date, at the rate then borne by the Bond.  
 
The Bonds are secured by and payable solely from Pledged Revenue, which includes property taxes 
derived from the Required Mill Levy net of the cost of collection, Specific Ownership Taxes attributable 
to the Required Mill Levy, Pledged PIF Revenues, PILOT revenues (if any), and any other legally 
available moneys of the District which the District deposits with the Trustee for application as Pledged 
Revenue. The forecast does not include Pledged PIF or PILOT revenues. The Bonds are also secured 
by amounts held in the Reserve Fund in the amount $812,672. 
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Debt and Leases – (Continued) 
 
Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021 
 
The District issued Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds (the Subordinate Bonds) on 
November 30, 2021, in the par amount of $3,990,000. Proceeds from the sale of the Subordinate Bonds 
were used to repay advances made by the Developer to the District to construct such public infrastructure 
to serve the development and certain other property within Prairie Center, and to pay costs of issuing the 
Subordinate Bonds. 
 
The Subordinate Bonds bear interest at the rate of 6.375% per annum and are payable annually on 
December 15, beginning December 15, 2022, but only to the extent of available Subordinate Pledged 
Revenue. The Subordinate Bonds are structured as “cash flow” bonds meaning that there are no 
scheduled payments of principal or interest prior to the final maturity date of June 15, 2046. Principal on 
the Subordinate Bonds is payable on each December 15 from, and to the extent of, Subordinate Pledged 
Revenue available 45 days prior to such December 15. 
 
Accrued unpaid interest on the Subordinate Bonds compounds annually on each December 15 until 
sufficient Subordinate Pledged Revenue is available for payment or until discharged. In the event that 
any amount of principal or interest on the Subordinate Bonds remains unpaid after application of all 
Subordinate Pledged Revenue available therefor on December 15, 2056, the Subordinate Bonds will be 
deemed discharged. No payments are permitted to be made on the Subordinate Bonds until the 2020 
Senior Bonds and any other Senior Obligations issued by the District have been paid in full or defeased. 
 
The Subordinate Bonds are secured by and payable from moneys derived by the District from the 
following sources: (a) all Subordinate Property Tax Revenues; (b) all Subordinate Specific Ownership 
Tax Revenues; and (c) any other legally available moneys which the District determines, in its absolute 
discretion, to credit to the Subordinate Bond Fund. 
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Debt and Leases – (Continued) 
 
The following is analysis of anticipated changes in the District’s long-term obligations for the year ending 
December 31, 2024 and 2025: 

Anticipated

Balance - Balance -

December 31, December 31,

2023 Additions Retirements 2024

Bonds Payable

Series 2020 - Senior 7,955,000$    -$                1,813,000$  6,142,000$    

Series 2021 - Subordinate 3,990,000      -                  -                 3,990,000      

Accrued Interest on Bonds

Series 2021 - Subordinate 549,039         289,364       -                 838,403         

Developer Advances:

615,184         27,881         -                 643,065         

14,027,185    989,171       479,170      14,537,186    

Accrued Interest 

  Operating 135,916         69,000         -                 204,916         

  Capital 254,830         1,266,000     1,520,830   -                    

Funding Fee Payable 121,595         55,000         -                 176,595         

Total 27,648,749$   2,696,416$   3,813,000$  26,532,165$   

  Operating

  Capital

 
 

Anticipated Anticipated

Balance - Balance -

December 31, December 31,

2024 Additions Retirements 2025

Bonds Payable

Series 2020 - Senior 6,142,000$    -$                800,000$    5,342,000$    

Series 2021 - Subordinate 3,990,000      -                  -                 3,990,000      

Accrued Interest on Bonds

Series 2021 - Subordinate 838,403         307,811       -                 1,146,214      

Developer Advances:

643,065         -                  -                 643,065         

14,537,186    -                  -                 14,537,186    

Accrued Interest 

  Operating 204,916         76,000         -                 280,916         

  Capital -                    1,308,000     -                 1,308,000      

Funding Fee Payable 176,595         55,000         -                 231,595         

Total 26,532,165$   1,746,811$   800,000$    27,478,976$   

  Operating

  Capital

 
 

The District has no outstanding operating or capital leases. 
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Reserve Funds 

 
Emergency Reserve 
 
The District has provided for an Emergency Reserve equal to at least 3% of fiscal year spending for 
2025, as defined under TABOR. 

 
Debt Service Reserve 
 
The Series 2020 Bonds are also secured by funds to be held by the Trustee in the Reserve Funds, in 
the required amount of $812,672. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This information is an integral part of the accompanying budget. 

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION



 

1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - 12 - ___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 

TO ADOPT THE 2025 BUDGET AND APPROPRIATE SUMS OF MONEY 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 7 

(“District”) has appointed the District Accountant to prepare and submit a proposed 2025 budget 
to the Board at the proper time; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Accountant has submitted a proposed budget to this Board on or 
before October 15, 2024, for its consideration; and 
 

WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, published or posted in accordance with the law, 
said proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing 
was held on December 9, 2024, and interested electors were given the opportunity to file or register 
any objections to said proposed budget; and 
 

WHEREAS, the budget has been prepared to comply with all terms, limitations and 
exemptions, including, but not limited to, reserve transfers and expenditure exemptions, under 
Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution ("TABOR") and other laws or obligations 
which are applicable to or binding upon the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, whatever increases may have been made in the expenditures, like increases 
were added to the revenues so that the budget remains in balance, as required by law. 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District has made provisions therein for revenues 
in an amount equal to or greater than the total proposed expenditures as set forth in said budget; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, it is not only required by law, but also necessary to appropriate the revenues 
provided in the budget to and for the purposes described below, as more fully set forth in the 
budget, including any interfund transfers listed therein, so as not to impair the operations of the 
District. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Prairie Center 

Metropolitan District No. 7: 
 

1. That the budget as submitted, amended, and summarized by fund, hereby is 
approved and adopted as the budget of the Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 7 for the 2025 
fiscal year. 

 
2. That the budget, as hereby approved and adopted, shall be certified by the Secretary 

of the District to all appropriate agencies and is made a part of the public records of the District. 
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3. That the sums set forth as the total expenditures of each fund in the budget attached 
hereto as EXHIBIT A and incorporated herein by reference are hereby appropriated from the 
revenues of each fund, within each fund, for the purposes stated. 
 

ADOPTED this 9th day of December, 2024. 
 
 
   
 Secretary 
 (SEAL) 
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EXHIBIT A 

(Budget) 
 



 

 
 

I, Peggy Ripko, hereby certify that I am the duly appointed Secretary of the Prairie Center 
Metropolitan District No. 7, and that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the budget for the 
budget year 2025, duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Prairie Center 
Metropolitan District No. 7 held on December 9, 2024. 
 
 
 

By:    
 Secretary 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - 12 - ___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 

TO SET MILL LEVIES 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 7 
(“District”) has adopted the 2025 annual budget in accordance with the Local Government Budget 
Law on December 9, 2024; and 
 

WHEREAS, the adopted budget is attached to the Resolution of the Board of Directors to 
Adopt the 2025 Budget and Appropriate Sums of Money, and such budget is incorporated herein 
by this reference; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for general fund 
expenses from property tax revenue is identified in the budget; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Prairie Center 
Metropolitan District No. 7: 
 

1. That for the purposes of meeting all general fund expenses of the District during 
the 2025 budget year, the District determined to levy mills upon each dollar of the total valuation 
for assessment of all taxable property within the District, as set forth in the budget, to raise the 
required revenue. 
 

2. That for the purposes of meeting all debt service fund expenses of the District 
during the 2025 budget year, the District determined to levy mills upon each dollar of the total 
valuation for assessment of all taxable property within the District, as set forth in the budget, to 
raise the required revenue. 
 

3. That the District Accountant of the District is hereby authorized and directed to 
immediately certify to the County Commissioners of Adams County, Colorado, the mill levies for 
the District as set forth in the District’s Certification of Tax Levies (attached hereto as EXHIBIT 
A and incorporated herein by reference), recalculated as needed upon receipt of the final 
certification of valuation from the County Assessor in order to comply with any applicable revenue 
and other budgetary limits. 

 
ADOPTED this 9th day of December, 2024. 
 
 

 
   
 Secretary 
 
 (SEAL) 
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EXHIBIT A 

(Certification of Tax Levies) 
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I, Peggy Ripko, hereby certify that I am the duly appointed Secretary of the Prairie Center 
Metropolitan District No. 7, and that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Certification 
of Mill Levies for the budget year 2025, duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 7 held on December 9, 2024. 

 
Secretary 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-12-____ 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF PRAIRIE CENTER 

METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 AUTHORIZING  

ADJUSTMENT OF THE DISTRICT MILL LEVY 

A. Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 7 (the “District”) is a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado pursuant to Title 32, Colorado 
Revised Statutes. 

B. The District operates pursuant to its First Amended and Restated Service Plan 
(which superseded the District’s original Service Plan as approved on February 21, 2006) 
approved by the City of Brighton, Colorado (the “City”), on November 4, 2008 (the “Service 

Plan”), which provides the District with the authority to impose mill levies on taxable property.  
Such mill levies will be the primary source of revenue for repayment of debt service, public 
improvements, and operations and maintenance costs of the District. 

C. The Service Plan authorizes a maximum mill levy of fifty (50) mills for debt 
service (the “Maximum Debt Mill Levy”). 

D. Section VI.C.1 of the Service Plan authorizes adjustment of the Maximum Debt 
Mill Levy in the event that the method of calculating assessed valuation is changed after January 
1, 2006 (the “Baseline Year”), by any change in law, change in method of calculation, or in the 
event of any legislation or constitutionally mandated tax credit, cut, or abatement.  The 
Maximum Debt Mill Levy may be increased or decreased to reflect such changes. Such increases 
or decreases shall be determined by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) in good faith (such 
determination to be binding and final) so that, to the extent possible, the actual tax revenues 
generated by the mill levy, as adjusted, are neither diminished nor enhanced as a result of such 
changes. 

E. The Service Plan provides that, for purposes of the foregoing, a change in the 
ratio of actual valuation shall be deemed to be a change in the method of calculating assessed 
valuation. 

F. Section VI.F. of the Service Plan provides that the District’s mill levy for 
operation and maintenance services together with debt service shall not exceed sixty (60) mills 
(the “Combined Mill Levy”) without prior written consent of the City Council of the City. 

G. Pursuant to City Council Resolution No. 2017-96, adopted September 5, 2017 
(the “City Resolution”), the City Council of the City consented to the adjustment of the 
Combined Mill Levy if, on or after the Baseline Year, there are changes in the method for 
calculating assessed valuation or any constitutionally mandated tax credit, cut or abatement; the 
Combined Mill Levy of sixty (60) mills may be increased or decreased to reflect such changes, 
such increases to be determined by the Board of Directors in good faith (such determination to be 
binding and final) so that to the extent possible, the actual tax revenues generated by the 
Combined Mill Levy, as adjusted for changes occurring after the Baseline Year are neither 
diminished nor enhanced as a result of such changes.   



  

H. The City Resolution further provides that, for purposes of the foregoing, a change 
in the ratio of actual valuation to assessed valuation shall be deemed to be a change in the 
method of calculating assessed valuation.  

I. The history of the residential assessment ratio in Colorado since property tax 
assessment year 1995, as set by the Colorado General Assembly (the “General Assembly”), or 
as voted by the electors of the State of Colorado, is set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

J. At the time of the Baseline Year, the residential assessment ratio set by the 
General Assembly was 7.96%. 

K. In 2024, the General Assembly passed Senate Bill 24-233 and House Bill 24B-
1001 (collectively, the “2024 Legislation”), which amended Section 39-1-104.2, C.R.S., by 
setting for, among other things, the ratio of valuation for: 

1. Multi-family residential real property at 6.7%, after a deduction from the actual 
value of the lesser of either: (i) $55,000; or (ii) the amount that causes assessed 
valuation to be $1,000, for property tax assessment year 2024; 

2. Residential real property other than multi-family residential real property at 6.7%, 
after a deduction from the actual value of the lesser of either: (i) $55,000; or (ii) 
the amount that causes assessed valuation to be $1,000, for property tax 
assessment year 2024. 

L. As authorized by the Service Plan and the consent of the City, in order to mitigate 
the effect of the reduction in the ratios of valuation for applicable classes of property within the 
District, the Board determines it to be in the best interest of the District, its property owners, and 
the public, to adjust the Maximum Debt Mill Levy and the Combined Mill Levy, so that the 
actual tax revenues to be received by the District are neither diminished nor enhanced as a result 
of the change in the ratios of valuation for assessment since the Baseline Year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Prairie Center 
Metropolitan District No. 7, Brighton, Colorado: 

1. The Board hereby authorizes the adjustment of the Maximum Debt Mill Levy for 
assessment year 2025 to 64.608 mills (the “Adjusted Debt Mill Levy”) and the adjustment of 
the Combined Mill Levy for assessment year 2025 to 77.529 mills  (the “Adjusted Combined 

Mill Levy”).  Both the Adjusted Debt Mill Levy and the Adjusted Combined Mill Levy shall be 
reflected in District’s Certification of Tax Levies to be submitted to the County Assessor of 
Adams County, Colorado, on or before January 10, 2025, for collection in 2025. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  



  

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADJUSTMENT OF THE 

DISTRICT MILL LEVY] 

RESOLUTION APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON December 9, 2024. 

PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN 

DISTRICT NO. 7 

 
 

 
Michael Tamblyn, President 

 
Attest: 
 
 
 
Secretary 
 
 



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

 https://www.claconnect.com

Date: September 27, 2024

Special Districts Preparation Statement of Work

This agreement constitutes a statement of work ("SOW") under the master service agreement ("MSA") 

made by and between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and Prairie Center Metro 

District No. 7 (“you,” “your,” “board of directors” or “the district”) dated October 15, 2023 or any 

superseding MSA. The purpose of this SOW is to outline certain services you wish us to perform through 

December 31, 2025 in connection with that agreement.

Scope of professional services

Gigi Pangindian is responsible for the performance of the preparation engagement and other services 

identified in this agreement. They may be assisted by one or more of our authorized signers in the 

performance of the preparation engagement.

Ongoing normal accounting services:

• Outsourced accounting activities 

• For each fund of the district, CLA will generally prepare and maintain the following 

accounting records:

- Cash receipts journal

- Cash disbursements journal

- General ledger

- Accounts receivable journals and ledgers

- Deposits with banks and financial institutions

- Schedule of disbursements

- Bank account reconciliations

- Investment records

• Detailed records and a tracking system of fee impositions, due dates and payments; and at 
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direction of the board of directors, provide reporting of fee imposition and payments to 

the board of the district

• Process accounts payable including: confirmation that for payment of any vendors that 

there are sufficient funds budgeted and available, prior to the preparation and issuance of 

checks for approval by the board of directors

• Coordinate with the district manager and/or district general counsel (in the event of legal 

issues) regarding financial matters and determine prior to the district entering any 

contract for capital or operations services that there are sufficient appropriations for same

• To the extent applicable, read and understand Developer Funding Agreements and 

coordinate funding from Developer necessary for the district to pay its obligations

• Prepare billings, record billings, enter cash receipts, and track revenues

• Reconcile certain accounts regularly and prepare journal entries 

• Prepare depreciation schedules 

• Prepare quarterly financial statements and supplementary information, but not perform a 

compilation with respect to those financial statements; additional information is provided 

below

• Prepare a schedule of cash position to monitor the district’s cash deposits, funding for 

disbursements, and investment programs in accordance with policies established by the 

district’s board of directors and in accordance with state law

• At the direction of the board of directors, assist with the coordination and execution of 

banking and investment transactions and documentation

• In collaboration with district consultants and the board of directors, assist with the 

preparation and filing of the annual budget as required by statute

• In collaboration with district consultants and the board of directors, assist with the 

preparation and filing of the Certification of Tax Levies with the respective county or 

counties

• Assist the district’s board of directors in monitoring actual expenditures against 

appropriation/budget: at the direction of the board of directors, evaluate budget to actual 

expenses and provide a report to the district board; advise the district board prior to 

paying any vendor amounts in excess of budgeted amounts

• If an audit is required, prepare the year-end financial statements (additional information 

is provided below) and related audit schedules for use by the district’s auditors
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• If an audit is not required, prepare the Application for Exemption from Audit, perform a 

compilation engagement with respect to the Application for Exemption from Audit, and 

assist with the filing of the Application for Exemption from Audit – additional 

information is provided below

• Monitor compliance with bond indentures and trust agreements, including preparation of 

continuing disclosure reports to the secondary market as required

• Read cost verifications and obtain acceptance and approval by the board of directors for 

the district prior to the requisition or disbursement of funds

• Read and understand intergovernmental agreements that create financial or cost sharing 

obligations of the district

• Review claims for reimbursement from related parties prior to the board of directors’ 

review and approval

• Read supporting documentation related to the district’s acquisition of infrastructure or 

other capital assets completed by related parties for overall reasonableness and 

completeness

- Procedures in excess of providing overall reasonableness and completeness will be 

subject to a separate SOW

- These procedures may not satisfy district policies, procedures, and agreements’ 

requirements

- Note: our procedures should not be relied upon as the final authorization for this 

transaction

• Attend board meetings as requested

• Be available during the year to consult with you on any accounting matters related to the 

district

• Review and approve monthly reconciliations and journal entries prepared by staff  

• Reconcile complex accounts monthly and prepare journal entries  

• Analyze financial statements and present to management and the board of directors

• Develop and track key business metrics as requested and review periodically with the 

board of directors

• Document accounting processes and procedures  

• Continue process and procedure improvement implementation  
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• Report on cash flows  

• Assist with bank communications

• Perform other non-attest services

Compilation services

If an audit is not required, we will complete the Application for Exemption from Audit in the form 

prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and perform a compilation engagement with respect 

to the Application for Exemption from Audit.

Preparation services - financial statements

We will prepare the quarterly financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 

activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 

remaining fund information if applicable of the district, which comprise the balance sheet – governmental 

funds and the related statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance – general fund and 

the related statement(s) or schedule(s) of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance(s) for other 

applicable funds. The financial statements will not include the related notes to the financial statements; the 

government-wide financial statements; the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 

balances – governmental funds; statement of cash flows for business type activities, if applicable; and 

required supplementary information.

Preparation services - annual

If an audit is required, we will prepare the year-end financial statements of the government wide 

governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, 

each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information if applicable, and Management Discussion 

and Analysis, if applicable, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the district, and the 

related notes to the financial statements. The year-end financial statements, including the related notes to 

the financial statements, will be prepared for use by the district’s auditors.

Preparation services – prospective financial information (i.e., unexpired budget 

information)

You have requested that we prepare the financial forecast, which comprises the forecasted financial 

statements identified below.

 
A financial forecast presents, to the best of management’s knowledge and belief, the entity’s expected 

financial position, results of operations, and cash flows for the forecast period. It is based on management’s 

assumptions reflecting conditions it expects to exist and the course of action it expects to take during the 

forecast period. 

 
The financial forecast will omit substantially all of the disclosures required by the guidelines for 

presentation of a financial forecast established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

(AICPA presentation guidelines) other than those related to the significant assumptions. 

 
The supplementary information accompanying the financial forecast will be prepared and presented for 

Page 4 of 11



purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial forecast. 

References to financial statements in the remainder of this SOW are to be taken as a reference to also 

include the prospective financial information, where applicable.

Engagement objectives and our responsibilities

The objectives of our engagement are to:

a) Prepare quarterly financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP), except for the departures from U.S. 

GAAP identified above, based on information provided by you and information generated 

through our outsourced accounting services. (GAAP stands for Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles and refers to a common set of account rules, standards, and procedures.)

b) As requested, apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the 

presentation of your quarterly financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide 

any assurance that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial 

statements in order for them to be in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except for the departures 

from U.S. GAAP identified above.

c) Prepare the annual budget in accordance with the requirements prescribed by Colorado 

Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 based on information provided by you. 

d) Apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of the 

annual budget without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there are no 

material modifications that should be made to the annual budget in order for the annual budget 

to be in accordance with requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 

29-1-105.  

e) If an audit is required, prepare the year-end financial statements in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) based on 

information provided by you.

f) If applicable, we will complete the Application for Exemption from Audit in the form prescribed 

by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and perform a compilation engagement on the 

application.

We will conduct our preparation and compilation engagements in accordance with Statements on 

Standards for Accounting and Review Services (SSARSs) promulgated by the Accounting and Review 

Services Committee of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and comply with the 

AICPA's Code of Professional Conduct, including the ethical principles of integrity, objectivity, professional 

competence, and due care.

Engagement procedures and limitations

We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided to us 

for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing an opinion or a conclusion. 
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Accordingly, we will not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on the financial 

statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit (if an audit is not required), the 

year-end financial statements (if an audit is required), and the supplementary information.

 
Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any misstatements, in the quarterly financial 

statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit, and the year-end financial 

statements including misstatements caused by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing 

within the district or noncompliance with laws and regulations. However, if any of the foregoing are 

identified as a result of our engagement, we will promptly report this information to the board of directors 

of the district. We have no responsibility to identify and communicate deficiencies in your internal control 

as part of this engagement, but will promptly report them to the board of directors of the district if they are 

identified. You agree that we shall not be responsible for any misstatements in the district’s financial 

statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit, and the year-end financial 

statements that we may not identify as a result of misrepresentations made to us by you.

Our report

If an exemption from audit applies: the compilation report on the Application for Exemption from Audit 

will state that management is responsible for the accompanying application included in the prescribed 

form, that we performed a compilation of the application, that we did not audit or review the application, 

and that, accordingly, we do not express an opinion a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on it. 

The report will also state that the Application for Exemption from Audit is presented in accordance with the 

requirements of the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and is not intended to be a presentation in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The report will 

include a statement that the report is intended solely for the information and use of the Colorado Office of 

the State Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than this specified party 

and may not be suitable for another purpose.

 
There may be circumstances in which the report may differ from its expected form and content. If, for any 

reason, we are unable to complete the compilation on the Application for Exemption from Audit (if an audit 

is not required), we will not issue report on the Application for Exemption from Audit as a result of this 

engagement. No compilation is performed in situations where an audit is required.

No assurance statements

The quarterly financial statements prepared for the district will not be accompanied by a report. However, 

management agrees that each page of the financial statements will include a statement clearly indicating 

that no assurance is provided on them.

 
As part of our preparation of financial statements each page of the financial statements and supplementary 

information will include the following statement: “No assurance is provided on these financial statements. 

Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, and the statement of 

revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted if 

applicable, For business type activities, the Statement of Cash Flows has been omitted”.

 
If an audit is required, the year-end financial statements prepared for use by the district’s auditors will not 

be accompanied by a report. However, management agrees that each page of the year-end financial 
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statements will include a statement clearly indicating that no assurance is provided on them.

Management responsibilities

The financial statement engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management 

acknowledges and understands that our role is to prepare financial statements in accordance with U.S. 

GAAP and assist management in the presentation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. 

GAAP, except for the departures from U.S. GAAP identified above. 

 
The annual budget engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges 

and understands that our role is to prepare the annual budget in accordance with the requirements 

prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29.1.105 and assist management in the presentation of the 

annual budget in accordance with the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 

29.1.105.

 
The Application for Exemption from Audit engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that 

management acknowledges and understands that our role is to prepare the Application for Exemption from 

Audit in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and assist 

management in the presentation of the Application for Exemption from Audit in accordance with the 

requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor. 

 
We are required by professional standards to identify management’s responsibilities in this agreement. 

Professional standards define management as the persons with executive responsibility for the conduct of 

the district’s operations and may include some or all of those charged with governance. Those standards 

require that you acknowledge and understand that management has the following overall responsibilities 

that are fundamental to our undertaking the engagement in accordance with SSARSs:

a) The selection of the financial reporting framework to be applied in the preparation of the 

financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit.

b) The preparation and fair preparation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, 

except as identified as above, the preparation and fair presentation of the annual budget in 

accordance with the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29.1.105, and 

the preparation and fair presentation of the Application for Exemption from Audit (if 

applicable) in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State 

Auditor. 

c) The presentation of the supplementary information.

d) The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for 

Exemption from Audit (if applicable) that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error.

e) The prevention and detection of fraud.
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f) To ensure that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities.

g) The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other 

information, including significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement to prepare 

financial statements.

h) To provide us with the following:

i) Access to all information relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements, and the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit (if 

applicable) such as records, documentation, and other matters.

ii) Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the engagement.

iii) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity with whom we determine it necessary to 

communicate.

We understand that you are engaging us to make recommendations and perform services to help you meet 

your responsibilities relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, the 

annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable).

 
For all accounting services we may provide to you, including the preparation of your financial statements, 

the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable), management agrees to 

assume all management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual (i.e., the board 

treasurer); evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for the results of the 

services.

Fees and terms

Billing rates guaranteed through December 31, 2025: 

 
Services performed by Rate per hour

Principal $300-$650

Consulting CFO $290-$400

Consulting Controller $240-$380

Assistant Controller $210-$300

Senior $150-$230
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Staff $130-$190

Administrative Staff $120-$170

 

Subsequent to the billing rate guarantee date, the rates may be adjusted as agreed between you and CLA 

through a new SOW.

Our professional fees will be billed based on the degree of responsibility and contribution of the 

professionals working on the engagement. We will also bill for expenses (including internal and 

administrative charges) plus a technology and client support fee of five percent (5%) of all professional fees 

billed. 

Use of financial statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit

The financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) 

are for management’s use. If you intend to reproduce and publish the financial statements, the annual 

budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) and our report thereon, they must be 

reproduced in their entirety. Inclusion of the financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application 

for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) in a document, such as an annual report or an offering document, 

should be done only with our prior approval of the document. You are responsible to provide us the 

opportunity to review such documents before issuance.

 
With regard to the electronic dissemination of financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application 

for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) that have been subjected to a compilation engagement, including 

financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) 

published electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute 

information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in those sites or to 

consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document.

 
We may issue preliminary draft financial statements to you for your review. Any preliminary draft financial 

statements should not be relied on or distributed.

Municipal advisors

For the avoidance of doubt, the district is not engaging CLA as a municipal advisor, and CLA is not a 

municipal advisor as defined in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 

Protection Act or under Section 158 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”). CLA is not 

recommending an action to you, is not acting as an advisor to you, and does not owe a fiduciary duty to you 

pursuant to Section 158 of the Act with respect to the information and material contained in the 

deliverables issued under this engagement. You should discuss any information and material contained in 

the deliverables with any and all internal and external advisors that you deem appropriate before acting on 

this information or material.

Agreement

We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms 
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and provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please sign 

below and return a signed copy to us to indicate your acknowledgment and understanding of, and 

agreement with, this SOW.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Gigi Pangindian 

Principal 

3032657821 

gigi.pangindian@claconnect.com 

Response

This SOW correctly sets forth the understanding of Prairie Center Metro District No. 7 and is accepted by:
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CLA
CLA

Gigi Pangindian, Principal

SIGNED  11/1/2024, 8:48:40 AM MDT

Client
Prairie Center Metro District No. 7

SIGN:

Mike Tamblyn

DATE:
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

 https://www.claconnect.com

Date: September 27, 2024

Special Districts Billing Services Statement of Work

This agreement constitutes a statement of work ("SOW") under the master service agreement ("MSA") 

made by and between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and Prairie Center Metro 

District No. 7 (“you,” “your,” “board of directors” or “the district”) dated October 15, 2023 or any 

superseding MSA. The purpose of this SOW is to outline certain services you wish us to perform through 

December 31, 2025 in connection with that agreement.

Scope of professional services

Thuy Dam is responsible for the performance of the engagement and other services identified in this 

agreement. 

Billing services:

• Customer calls or emails

• Develop payment arrangements for past due customers

• Late notice inquiries

• Owner/renter changes

• Title company inquiries

• HOA specific inquiries

• Lockbox processing

• Manual payments

• Inventory analyses/processing

• Late notice processing

• Account adjustments

• Customer setups
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• Payment processing and online payment processing

• Monthly accounting/financial management interface

• Prepare accounts receivable report as requested by the board

Engagement objectives and our responsibilities

Provide periodic billing and collection services to customers as requested and/or in accordance with the 

organization’s policies.

Fees and terms

Billing rates guaranteed through December 31, 2025: 

 
Services performed by Rate per hour

Additional Accounting Support $120-$420

Supervisor / Director $200-$250

Senior Technician $155-$185

Technician I / Technician II $110-$155

 

Subsequent to the billing rate guarantee date, the rates may be adjusted as agreed between you and CLA 

through a new SOW.

Our professional fees will be billed based on the degree of responsibility and contribution of the 

professionals working on the engagement. We will also bill for expenses (including internal and 

administrative charges) plus a technology and client support fee of five percent (5%) of all professional fees 

billed. 

Unless otherwise stated in the organization’s fee and collections resolution, CLA Billing Services staff shall 

be authorized to execute penalty or fee waivers per account, per calendar year, not to exceed $100 in the 

aggregate. Any penalty or fee waivers in excess of $100, per account, or any additional waivers requested by 

individual account holders must be approved by the board of directors.

Municipal advisors

For the avoidance of doubt, the district is not engaging CLA as a municipal advisor, and CLA is not a 

municipal advisor as defined in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 

Protection Act or under Section 158 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”). CLA is not 

recommending an action to you, is not acting as an advisor to you, and does not owe a fiduciary duty to you 
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pursuant to Section 158 of the Act with respect to the information and material contained in the 

deliverables issued under this engagement. You should discuss any information and material contained in 

the deliverables with any and all internal and external advisors that you deem appropriate before acting on 

this information or material.

Agreement

We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms 

and provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please sign 

below and return a signed copy to us to indicate your acknowledgment and understanding of, and 

agreement with, this SOW.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Thuy Dam 

Principal 

303-793-1426 

thuy.dam@claconnect.com 

Response

This SOW correctly sets forth the understanding of Prairie Center Metro District No. 7 and is accepted by:
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CLA
CLA

Thuy Dam, Principal

SIGNED  11/4/2024, 11:27:16 AM MST

Client
Prairie Center Metro District No. 7

SIGN:

Mike Tamblyn

DATE:
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

 https://www.claconnect.com

Date: September 27, 2024

Special Districts Payroll Services Statement of Work

This agreement constitutes a statement of work ("SOW") under the master service agreement ("MSA") 

made by and between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and Prairie Center Metro 

District No. 7 (“you,” “your,” “board of directors” or “the district”) dated October 15, 2023 or any 

superseding MSA. The purpose of this SOW is to outline certain services you wish us to perform through 

December 31, 2025 in connection with that agreement.

Scope of payroll services

We will provide the following payroll preparation services each pay period based on information you 

provide:

• Perform payroll calculations within ADP

• Facilitate ADP’s preparation of payroll checks and/or pay stubs

• Use ADP to initiate the electronic transfer of funds for employee net pay and payroll tax deposit

We will assist with the preparation of the following government forms, when applicable, for each calendar 

quarter-end and year-end with the understanding that ADP directly handles filing the payroll tax returns 

and payments:

• Form 941 – Employers Quarterly Tax Return

• State Employers Quarterly Withholding Return

• State Employers Quarterly Unemployment Return (SUTA)

• Form 940 – Employers Annual Federal Unemployment Tax Return

• All copies of required forms W-2 and W-3 – Transmittal of Tax and Wage Statements (annual)

• All necessary state forms (annual)

Our responsibility to you and limitations of the payroll services

We will prepare your federal and state (when applicable) payroll forms and tax returns.
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We will not audit or otherwise verify the accuracy or completeness of the information we receive from you 

for the preparation of the payroll and related returns, and our engagement cannot be relied upon to 

uncover errors or irregularities in the underlying information. However, we will inform the appropriate 

level of management of any material errors and of any evidence or information that comes to our attention 

during the performance of our payroll preparation services that fraud may have occurred. In addition, we 

will inform you of any evidence or information that comes to our attention during the performance of our 

payroll preparation services regarding illegal acts that may have occurred, unless they are clearly 

inconsequential. We have no responsibility to identify and communicate deficiencies in your internal 

control as part of this engagement. You agree that we shall not be responsible for any misstatements in the 

entity’s payroll that we may not identify as a result of misrepresentations made to us by you. 

 
If applicable, our payroll preparation services will include electronically transmitting management-

approved information to taxing authorities and your financial institution to facilitate the electronic transfer 

of funds. 

 
If applicable, our payroll preparation services will include transmitting management-approved federal 

Form W-2, federal Form 1099, and payroll data forms to federal and state taxing authorities on your behalf. 

 
CLA's relationship with you shall be solely that of an independent contractor and nothing in the MSA or a 

SOW shall be construed to create or imply any relationship of employment, agency, partnership, or any 

relationship other than an independent contractor.

Your responsibilities

It is your responsibility to provide us with all of the information needed to prepare complete and accurate 

payrolls and to facilitate ADP’s preparation of payroll tax returns. We will have no obligations with regards 

to a particular payroll or withholding taxes and filing returns in a particular state or local tax jurisdiction 

until you have provided such information to us.

 
Additionally, it is your responsibility to provide us with all of the information needed to facilitate ADP’s 

preparation of payroll tax returns. We will have no obligations with regards to particular withholding taxes 

and filing returns in a particular state or local tax jurisdiction until you have provided such information to 

us.

Specifically, your responsibilities include:

• Accuracy of information used in the preparation of the payrolls and payroll tax returns.

• Review and approval of paychecks or paystubs prior to issuance, and payroll registers for each 

pay period prior to submission of payroll information to ADP.

• Evaluation of information used in the preparation and filing of all government forms for 

accuracy.

• Before submission of payroll information to ADP, review and approval of each electronic funds 

transfer to be initiated on your behalf for employee net pay amounts, payroll tax, withholding 
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liabilities, and related benefit amounts. 

• One-time authorization to your financial institution for it to make transfers and direct deposits 

in accordance with future instructions from ADP.

• One-time authorization for ADP to submit tax filings and complete electronic fund transfers on 

your behalf.

• Sign or approve ADP issuance of all physical and/or electronic payroll checks.

If applicable, we will advise you with regard to tax positions taken in the preparation of the payroll forms 

and tax returns, but the responsibility for the payroll forms and tax returns remains with you.

 
Even if you have authorized CLA to file your employment tax returns and make your business and/or 

employment tax payments for you, please be aware that you are responsible for the timely filing of 

employment tax returns and the timely payment of business and/or employment taxes. Therefore, the 

Internal Revenue Service recommends that you enroll in the U.S. Department of the Treasure Electronic 

Federal Tax Payment System (EFTPS) to monitor your account and ensure that timely tax payments are 

being made for you. You may enroll in the EFTPS online at www.eftps.gov, or call 800-555-4477 for an 

enrollment form. Individual states have similar programs that allow you to monitor your account. A list of 

links by state is provided online at http://www.americanpayroll.org/weblink/statelocal-wider/.

Fees and terms

The billing rates (guaranteed through one year from 1st payroll live date) for these 

services are as follows:

 
Services performed by Rate per hour

Payroll Analyst I $90-$95

Payroll Analyst II $100-$110

Senior Payroll Analyst $125-$130

 

Subsequent to the billing rate guarantee date, the rates may be adjusted as agreed between you and CLA 

through a new SOW. 

 
Our professional fees will be billed based on the degree of responsibility and contribution of the 

professionals working on the engagement. We will also bill for expenses (including internal and 

administrative charges) plus a technology and client support fee of five percent (5%) of all professional fees 

billed. 
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This agreement will automatically renew for one year from the rate guarantee expiration date unless it is 

cancelled in writing at least 30 days prior to the expiration date or is changed by the mutual signing of a 

new SOW. The terms of the applicable MSA shall continue to govern this SOW if the SOW is automatically 

renewed.

We do not anticipate encountering the need to perform additional services beyond those described in this 

letter. Below are examples of services considered to be outside the scope of our engagement. We will bill 

you for additional services you would like us to provide at an hourly fee at periodic dates after the 

additional service has been performed.

• Reprocessing for corrected information provided to us subsequent to original payroll 

• Preparation of non-standard reports

• Calculation of fringe benefit additions

• Processing retirement plan contribution payments

• Preparation of retirement plan and other census information

• Responding to workers compensation insurance audits

• Responding to employment verification requests

• Preparation of additional state tax registrations

• Preparation of amended payroll tax returns

• Responding to tax notices

Tax examinations

All government forms and returns are subject to potential examination by the IRS and state taxing 

authorities. In the event of an examination, we will be available, at your request, to assist or represent you 

subject to a separate SOW. Services in connection with tax examinations are not included in our fee for 

preparation of your payroll returns. Our fee for such services will be billed to you separately, along with any 

direct costs pursuant to a separate SOW.

Record retention

You are responsible for retaining all documents, records, payroll journals, canceled checks, receipts, or 

other evidence in support of information and amounts reported in your payroll records and on your 

quarterly and calendar year-end payroll forms and tax returns. These items may be necessary in the event 

the taxing authority examines or challenges your returns. These records should be kept for at least seven 

years. Your copy of the payroll forms and tax returns should be retained indefinitely.

 
In preparing the payrolls, payroll forms, and tax returns, we rely on your representation that you 

understand and have complied with these documentation requirements. You are responsible for the proper 
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recording of transactions in the books of accounts, for the safeguarding of assets, and for the substantial 

accuracy of your financial records.

 
All of the records that you provide to us to prepare your payrolls and related forms and tax returns will be 

returned to you after our use. Our working papers, including any copies of your records that we chose to 

make, are our property and will be retained by us in accordance with our established records retention 

policy. This policy states, in general, that we will retain our working papers for a period of seven years. After 

this period expires, our working papers and files will be destroyed. Furthermore, physical deterioration or 

catastrophic events may shorten the time our records are available. The working papers and files of our firm 

are not a substitute for the records of you.

Tax consulting services

This SOW also covers tax consulting services that may arise for which the entity seeks our consultation and 

advice, both written and oral, that are not the subject of a separate SOW. These additional services are not 

included in our fees for the preparation of the payroll and related federal and state forms and tax returns. 

 
We will base our tax analysis and conclusions on the facts you provide to us, and will not independently 

verify those facts. We will review the applicable tax authority rules, all of which are subject to change. At 

your request, we will provide a memorandum of our conclusions. Written advice provided by us is for the 

entity’s information and use only and is not to be provided to any third party without our express written 

consent. 

 
Unless we are separately engaged to do so, we will not continuously monitor and update our advice for 

subsequent changes or modifications to the tax regulations, or to the related judicial and administrative 

interpretations.

Legal compliance

The entity agrees to assume sole responsibility for full compliance with all applicable federal and state laws, 

rules or regulations, and reporting obligations that apply to the entity or the entity’s business, including the 

accuracy and lawfulness of any reports the entity submits to any government regulator, authority, or 

agency. The entity also agrees to be solely responsible for providing legally sufficient substantiation, 

evidence, or support for any reports or information supplied by the entity to any governmental or 

regulatory body, or for any insurance reimbursement in the event that the entity is requested to do so by 

any lawful authority. CLA, its successors, affiliates, officers, and employees do not assume or undertake any 

duty to perform or to be responsible in any way for any such duties, requirements, or obligations.

Agreement

We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms 

and provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please sign 

below and return a signed copy to us to indicate your acknowledgment and understanding of, and 

agreement with, this SOW.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Thuy Dam 

Principal 
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303-793-1426 

thuy.dam@claconnect.com 

Response

This SOW correctly sets forth the understanding of Prairie Center Metro District No. 7 and is accepted by:
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CLA
CLA

Thuy Dam, Principal

SIGNED  11/4/2024, 11:26:25 AM MST

Client
Prairie Center Metro District No. 7

SIGN:

Mike Tamblyn

DATE:
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RESOLUTION NO. 2024-12-____ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7 

CALLING A REGULAR ELECTION FOR DIRECTORS 

ON MAY 6, 2025 

A. The terms of the offices of Directors Amanda Coffey, Ashley Licursi, and Melissa 
Zimmerman shall expire upon the election of their successors at the regular election, to be held 
on May 6, 2025 (“Election”), and upon such successors taking office. 

B. In accordance with the provisions of the Special District Act (“Act”) and the 
Uniform Election Code (“Code”), the Election must be conducted to elect three (3) Directors to 
serve until the second regular election, to occur May 8, 2029. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Prairie Center 
Metropolitan District  No. 7 (the “District”) of the City of Brighton, Adams County, Colorado: 

1. Date and Time of Election.  The Election shall be held on May 6, 2025, between 
the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 7:00 P.M. pursuant to and in accordance with the Act, Code, and 
other applicable laws.  At that time, three (3) Directors shall be elected to serve until the second 
regular election, to occur May 8, 2029. 

2. Precinct.  The District shall consist of one (1) election precinct for the 
convenience of the eligible electors of the District. 

3. Conduct of Election.  The Election shall be conducted as an independent mail 
ballot election in accordance with all relevant provisions of the Code.  The Designated Election 
Official shall have on file, no later than fifty-five (55) days prior to the Election, a plan for 
conducting the independent mail ballot Election. 

4. Designated Election Official.  Peggy Ripko shall be the Designated Election 
Official and is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with any action necessary or 
appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this Resolution and of the Act, Code or other 
applicable laws.  The Election shall be conducted in accordance with the Act, Code and other 
applicable laws.  Among other matters, the Designated Election Official shall appoint election 
judges as necessary, arrange for the required notices of election (either by mail or publication) 
and printing of ballots, and direct that all other appropriate actions be accomplished. 

5. Call for Nominations.  The Designated Election Official shall provide Call for 
Nominations as required under Section 1-13.5-501, C.R.S., as applicable. 

6. Absentee Ballot Applications.  NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN, pursuant to 
Section 1-13.5-1002, C.R.S., that applications for and return of absentee ballots may be filed 
with Peggy Ripko, the Designated Election Official of the District, c/o Special District 
Management Services, Inc., 141 Union Blvd., Suite 150, Lakewood, CO 80228, between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., until the close of business on the Tuesday immediately 
preceding the Election (April 29, 2025). 
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7. Self-Nomination and Acceptance Forms.  Self-Nomination and Acceptance 
Forms are available and can be obtained from Peggy Ripko, the Designated Election Official of 
the District, c/o Special District Management Services, Inc., 141 Union Blvd., Suite 150, 
Lakewood, CO 80228 (phone 303-987-0835), and on the District’s website at:  
prairiecentermd7@colorado.gov. 

8. Cancellation of Election.  If the only matter before the electors is the election of 
Directors of the District and if, at 5:00 P.M. on March 4, 2025, the sixty-third day prior to the 
regular election, there are not more candidates than offices to be filled at the Election, including 
candidates timely filing affidavits of intent, the Designated Election Official shall cancel the 
Election and declare the candidates elected.  Notice of such cancellation shall be published and 
posted in accordance with law. 

9. Severability.  If any part or provision of this Resolution is adjudged to be 
unenforceable or invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remaining 
provisions of this Resolution, it being the Board of Director’s intention that the various 
provisions hereof are severable. 

10. Repealer.  All acts, orders and resolutions, or parts thereof, of the Board of 
Directors which are inconsistent or in conflict with this Resolution are hereby repealed to the 
extent only of such inconsistency or conflict. 

11. Effective Date.  The provisions of this Resolution shall take effect as of the date 
adopted and approved by the Board of Directors of the District. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]  
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[SIGNATURE PAGE TO RESOLUTION 

 CALLING A REGULAR ELECTION FOR DIRECTORS ON MAY 6, 2025] 

RESOLUTION APPROVED AND ADOPTED on December 9, 2024. 

PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN 

DISTRICT NO. 7 

 
 

By:  
 President 

 
Attest: 
 
 
 
Secretary 
 



4890-0528-5870, v. 2

Change Order No:  2 Date Issued:  December 9, 2024 
Name of Agreement:  Service Agreement for Snow Removal 

Date of Agreement:  November 10, 2022 District(s):  Prairie Center Metropolitan District 
No. 7 

Other Party/Parties:  Magnum Snow Removal, Inc. 

CHANGE IN SCOPE OF SERVICES (describe):  The term of the Agreement is hereby 
extended for the period November 1, 2024, through May 31, 2025.  Additionally, the Agreement 
is further amended to provide that the rates for the Services effective as of November 1, 2024, 
shall be as follows: 

2024 - 2025 Rates for Snow Removal 

Standard Plow Truck $165.00/Hr. 
15’ Scoop/Plow $320.00/Hr. 

3 Yrd. Dump Truck $185.00Hr. 
5 Yrd. Dump Truck $220.00/Hr. 

RTV $150.00/Hr. 
ATV $145.00/Hr. 

Walker $110.00/Hr. 
Skidsteer $165.00/Hr. 
Tractor $320.00/Hr. 

Snow Blower $135.00/Hr. 
Hand Shovel $95.00/Hr 

Ice Melt/Sand (Including Application) $2.10/lb. 
Ice Slicer $285.00/Ton 

*Mobilization starts at time of dispatch

CHANGE IN AGREEMENT PRICE: CHANGE IN TERM OF AGREEMENT: 

Original Price: 
$_____N/A___ 

Original Term: 
Expires  May 31, 2023 

Increase of this Change Order: 
$_____N/A____ 

New Term: 
Expires  May 31, 2025 

Price with all Approved Change Orders: 
$______N/A___ 

Agreement Time with all Approved Change 
Orders: 



  

  

  

              

4890-0528-5870, v. 2 

APPROVED: APPROVED: 

By: By: 

District Consultant 
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APPROVED:  APPROVED: 
   
By:   By:  
 District   Consultant 

 



 

 

 
Change Order No:  4 Date Issued:  August 7, 2024 
Name of Agreement:  Service Agreement for Landscape Maintenance of District Tracts – 
Village I 
 
Date of Agreement:  November 10, 2022 
 

District(s):  Prairie Center Metropolitan District 
No. 7 

Other Party/Parties:  Vargas Property Services, Inc. 
 

 
CHANGE IN SCOPE OF SERVICES (describe):  The Agreement is hereby amended to add 
to the Services removal of 30 dead trees and planting of 6 trees for an amount not to exceed 
$20,681.18 as more specifically described below and as depicted on the attached map. 
 
Description Qty Rate Total 

Disposal 30 Yd 1 ea. $1,200.00 $1,200.00 
Planter’s mix 5 ea. $75.85 $379.25 
T. Austrian Pine 10’ 3 ea. $1,416.25 $4,248.75 
T. Southwestern Pine 8’ 3 ea. $946.06 $2,838.18 
Tree Removal  30 ea. $275.00 $8,250.00 
Total   $20,681.18 

 
CHANGE IN AGREEMENT PRICE:  CHANGE IN TERM OF AGREEMENT: 

   
Original Price: 
 $_______ 

 
 

Original Term: 
 Expires  September 30, 2023 

   
Increase of this Change Order: 
 $20,681.18 

 
 

New Term: 
 Expires  September 30, 2024 

   
Price with all Approved Change Orders: 
 $_______ 

 
 

Agreement Time with all Approved Change 
Orders:  As described above 

   
 
APPROVED:  APPROVED: 
   
By:   By:  
 District   Consultant 
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Change Order No:  5 Date Issued:  December 9, 2024 
Effective:  October 1, 2024 

Name of Agreement:  Service Agreement for Landscape Maintenance of District Tracts – 
Village I 
 
Date of Agreement:  November 10, 2022 
 

District(s):  Prairie Center Metropolitan District 
No. 7 

Other Party/Parties:  Vargas Property Services, Inc. 
 

 
CHANGE IN SCOPE OF SERVICES (describe):  The Agreement is hereby amended to 
extend the Services for the period October 2024 – December 2024, at the rate of $3,485.47 per 
month. 
 
 
CHANGE IN AGREEMENT PRICE:  CHANGE IN TERM OF AGREEMENT: 

   
Original Price: 
 $ N/A 

 
 

Original Term: 
 Expires  September 30, 2023 

   
Increase of this Change Order: 
 $ 10,456.41 

 
 

New Term: 
 Expires  December 31, 2024 

   
Price with all Approved Change Orders: 
 $ N/A 

 
 

Agreement Time with all Approved Change 
Orders:  As described above 

   
 
APPROVED:  APPROVED: 
   
By:   By:  
 District   Consultant 

 
4925-6031-2067 v.1 
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Mike Tamblyn
Prairie Center Metro District #7 c/o Clifton Larson Allen 8390 E Crescent
Pkwy.
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Phone: (303) 378-4166 Mike Tamblyn

270 Interlocken Blvd
Broomfield, CO 80021
Phone: 303-466-9196

Proposal

Date

Quote #

11/18/2024

978

Project

PCDM #7 CM Renewal Jan - Dec 2025

Site Location

Prairie Center Metro District #7 c/o Clifton Larson Allen 8390 E Crescent Pkwy.
Greenwood Village, CO 80111

Description TotalQty Rate

0Contract Maintenance
PCDM #7 Contract Maintenance 2025- Added Phase 4 new areas of
responsibilities (Native Area Maintained 4x Year)

***New billing for the add-on of Phase 4 begins January 2025

Turf Mowing, Edging, Weed Control, Pruning Tree & Shrub, Litter Control,
Disposal,  Spring and Fall Clean-up, Aeration x 1 year, Native Mows 4x year -
March - September 2025 (28 Weeks)

$69,888.00$69,888.00

0Contract Maintenance
Litter Control & Disposal (Weekly January & February 2025 and October
through December 2025) - (24 Weeks)

$6,280.00$6,280.00

0Irrigation System Maintenance
Irrigation System Bi-Weekly Checks - Spring Start Up & Winterizing Irrigation
System - March - September 2025 - (28 Weeks)

$17,850.00$17,850.00

0Pesticides
Weed Control Application 2x year & Fertilization 2x year

$9,023.22$9,023.22

Date Total: $103,041.22

Subtotal: $103,041.22

Tax: $0.00

Thank you for your business.

Approval Signature



Badger Hydrovac Service Proposal

United States

Prepared By:
 

David Townsend 
 

Email:
 

jtownsend@badgerinc.com
 

Phone:
 

970-821-6542 
 

Date:
 

08/29/2024 
 

Estimate Number:
 

CPQ-106344v1 
 

Project Name:
 

Prairie Center CCTV inspection 
 



   

Estimate
 

 

Badger Daylighting Corp
ACT UNDERGROUND DENVER CO
OP 
9501 E. 104th Ave 
Henderson, CO  80640
"An equal opportunity employer"
 
 

Date
 

08/29/2024 
 

Reference
 

CPQ-106344 
 

Prepared By
 

David Townsend 
 

Customer Information 

Company 
PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT #7  
  Contact Name 

Mike Tamblyn 
 

Contact Phone # 
+1 (303) 378-4166 
  Email  mtamblyn@thekroenkegroup.

com 
 

Billing Address 
211 N STADIUM BLVD, SUITE 201 
  Title   

 

Billing City/State  Columbia MO 65203
 

Account Number 
9538413 
 

Service Address 
1853 Griffin Dr   Brighton CO 80601 
 

Scope Of Work 

CCTV Inspection will be charged at a by the hour basis. From port to port. This is a time and material rate sheet only. Below is an example of a (9) hour

day.  
 

Service Item  Item Description 
Unit Cost
 

UOM
 

Quantity
  Amount 

CCTV CAMERA UNIT 2 MAN CREW OVERTIME 
 

 
 

$335.00
 

HR 
 

1
 

$335.00 
 

CONSUMABLE MATERIALS 
 

 
 

$70.00
 

EA 
 

1
 

$70.00 
 

CCTV CAMERA UNIT 2 MAN CREW 
 

 
 

$305.00
 

HR 
 

8
 

$2,440.00 
 

FLUCTUATING FUEL RECOVERY 
 

 
 

$426.75
 

EA 
 

1
 

$426.75 
 

           

Total
 

 

$3,271.75 
 

 

This proposal contains the budgetary estimate to complete the work as described above under the heading "Scope of Work". If any part of the work
varies from that described in Scope of Work, or if unexpected digging conditions are encountered (eg rocks, rubble, roots, etc...), then additional charges
shall apply. All work will be done on a time and material basis. All work will be done in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in Badger
Daylighting Corp.'s standard terms and conditions (USA) attached hereto. 

 

 

Customer (Company)
  _______________

 

PO #:
  _______________

 

Name (Please Print)
  _______________

 

Title:
  _______________

 

Signature
  _______________

 

Date:
  _______________

 

 

I am authorized to bind the Company
 

   

 

www.badgerinc.com
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Michael Tamblyn
PCMD#7

PM
9/16/24

http://www.badgerinc.com


General Notes, Conditions, & Badger Responsibilities:  

1. Travel rates apply when traveling from the closest Badger Operation to the client's project site.

2.  Badger will off load material at contracted facility. Travel to and from a designated facility is considered part of the work day and charged at the

hourly rate.

3.  Any additional third party services provided by Badger Daylighting outside of our typical Hydrovac activities shall be charged out at cost +.

4.  With any Hydrovac project, there are possible additional charges that are application and site specific. For example, items such as water trucks,

specialized equipment and attachments (remote hose, etc.), crew trucks, and other items may be required. Rather than provide an extensive listing of

all possible considerations, this is best implemented on a project-by-project basis and evaluated at the field operations level. The information

presented in this document represents the complete proposal.

5.  This proposal is valid for 30 days from the date posted on this proposal document.

6.  Any and all quotes, offers and transactions are pending Credit Approval by Badger.

7.  Terms of Payment - Net 30 days from date of invoice. Late invoices subject to service fees.

8.  Zero (0) % retainage is withheld.

9.  Taxes – tax will be added to quote pricing as required by State/Local governments.

10.  All invoices will be assessed a Fluctuating Fuel Recover Fee on the entire amount of the invoice. This fee is reviewed regularly and is subject to

change. Badger utilizes information from the US Department of Energy and the Canadian Department of Natural Resources when calculating the fee.

 
 

Customer responsibilities include: 

1.  Access to the Hydrovac site, including permits and permission from property owners, utilities, and government agents.

2.  Surface locates, survey marks and traffic control, if needed unless agreed to in writing prior.

3.  Breaking, removal, and restoration of asphalt and or concrete unless agreed to in writing prior.

4.  Establish, maintain, and remediate accessible water source and disposal site.

5.  Specific direction and locations for Hydrovac excavation.

6.  Backfill and site restoration unless agreed to in writing prior to completing work.

7.  Materials to secure and cover the excavation unless agreed to in writing prior.

8.  Shoring, maintenance, and barricading.

9.  Ownership of the soil and debris removed by the Hydrovac including any soils or material contaminated or suspect.

10.  Any project delays caused by others that result in downtime of Badger Hydrovac units will be billed at the hourly rates.

11.  Pay for all specialized training that is required by contractor/owner/Badger to be on the site to work.

12.  Notify Badger of all billing requirements and any appropriate purchase orders, job numbers, AFE, etc. that would be necessary to release payment

to Badger. This must be done prior to the first day of work.

13.  Notify Badger of any of the following: Certified payrolls, OCIP requirements, prevailing wages.

14.  Additional insurance requirements over what Badger already has in place
 

Customer Representative
 

Badger Representative
 

Printed Name:
 

_______________
 

Printed Name:
 

_______________
 

Signature:
 

_______________
 

Signature:
 

_______________
 

Date:
 

_______________
 

Date:
 

_______________
 

 

I am authorized to bind the Company
 

   

 

www.badgerinc.com
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BADGER DAYLIGHTING CORP. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS (USA) 
1. Definitions. "Service Provider" shall mean Badger Daylighting Corp. "Buyer" shall mean any party who contracts to purchase Services from Service

Provider, as indicated on a service agreement or a statement of work. "Services" shall mean those services and any related goods ordered by Buyer

from Service Provider pursuant to a service agreement accepted by Service Provider. "Credit Application" shall mean Service Provider's form of credit

application, as may be amended from time to time, the review and written approval of which is a pre-requisite to Service Provider entering into any type

of binding agreement with Buyer to provide Services. "USA" shall mean the United States of America.

2. Terms of Service Agreement Acceptance and Complete Agreement

(a) Acceptance. Buyer's order for Services is binding only when accepted in writing by an authorized representative of Service Provider, and is accepted

subject to all of Service Provider's Standard Terms and Conditions of Services, which constitute the complete agreement between the parties. Buyer's

acceptance of delivery and performance of Services evidences Buyer's acceptance of all of Service Provider's Standard Terms and Conditions of

Services.

(b) No Acceptance. Service Provider's performance under any Buyer service agreement or a statement of work does not constitute an acceptance of any

provision of any Buyer service agreement that is different from or additional to Service Provider's Standard Terms and Conditions of Services, and any

such different or additional provisions are hereby expressly rejected and are void.

3. Buyer's Obligations.

(a) Services. Buyer shall: (i) cooperate with Service Provider in all matters relating to Services and provide such access to Buyer's premises, and other

facilities as may reasonably be requested by Service Provider, for the purposes of performing Services; (ii) respond promptly to any Service Provider

request to provide direction, information, approvals, authorizations or decisions that are reasonably necessary for Service Provider to perform Services

in accordance with the requirements of the service agreement; (iii) provide such Buyer materials or information as Service Provider may reasonably

request and Buyer considers reasonably necessary to carry out Services in a timely manner and ensure that such Buyer materials or information are

complete and accurate in all material respects; and (iv) obtain and maintain all necessary permits and consents and comply with all applicable laws in

relation to Services before the date on which Services are to start.

(b) Shipment and Delivery. Any goods provided in relation to the Services are sold EXW Service Provider's Facility Incoterms 2010. The method and

route of shipment shall be as mutually agreed in each accepted service agreement. Service Provider shall tender delivery of all such related goods to a

carrier for transportation to Buyer's place of business. All costs of transportation, including, without limitation, taxes and standard insurance shall be

assessed by Service Provider and borne by Buyer unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Service Provider. Service Provider shall invoice Buyer for all

shipping related costs.

All risk of loss shall pass to Buyer when such related goods are made available to the carrier at Service Provider's facility, including, without limitation, all

risks of loading, transportation, and shipment. Delivery and acceptance shall not be affected by a delay on the part of Buyer in accepting delivery.

Shipment of such related goods held by reason of Buyer's request or inability to receive such related goods will be at the risk and expense of Buyer.

Claims for shortages in shipment shall be deemed waived by Buyer unless made in writing to Seller within thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.

4. Buyer's Acts or Omissions. If Service Provider's performance of its obligations under this Agreement is prevented or delayed by any act or omission

of Buyer or its agents, subcontractors, consultants or employees, Service Provider shall not be deemed in breach of its obligations under the service

agreement or otherwise liable for any costs, charges or losses sustained or incurred by Buyer, in each case, to the extent arising directly or indirectly

from such prevention or delay. breach of its obligations under the service agreement or otherwise liable for any costs, charges or losses sustained or

incurred by Buyer, in each case, to the extent arising directly or indirectly from such prevention or delay.

5. Taxes and Fees. Unless expressly stated and agreed to in writing by Service Provider, quoted prices do not include any shipping and handling

charges, sales, use, excise, or similar taxes or duties. Buyer shall pay these taxes directly if the law permits or shall reimburse Service Provider if Service

Provider is required to collect and pay them.

6. Representations and Warranties; Limitation of Remedy.

(a) Service Provider represents and warrants to Buyer that it shall perform Services using personnel of required skill, experience and qualifications and

in a professional and workmanlike manner in accordance with generally recognized industry standards for similar services and shall devote adequate

resources to meet its obligations under the service agreement.

(b) Service Provider shall not be liable to a breach of the warranty set forth in Section 6(a) unless Buyer gives written notice of the defective Services,

reasonably described, to Service Provider with three (3) days of the time when Buyer discovers or ought to have discovered that Services were defective.

(c) The sole and exclusive remedy of Buyer for any liability of Service Provider of any kind, including (i) warranty, express or implied, whether contained

in the terms and conditions hereof or in any terms additional or supplemental hereto, (ii) contract, (iii) negligence, (iv) tort, or (v) otherwise, is limited to

Service Provider's repair or re-performance of Services. The sole and exclusive remedy for goods related to Services shall be Service Provider's repair

or replacement of those related goods the examination of which by Service Provider reveals material defects during the warranty period or, at Service

Provider's option, a refund to Buyer of the money paid to Services Provider for such goods. The warranty period  shall begin on the date of completion of

Services on Service Provider's invoice and shall continue for a period of one (1) year therefrom for all Services. This limited warranty shall not extend to

any Services that have been modified, disassembled, altered, changed, damaged, misused, repaired, misapplied or negligently maintained in any

manner.

(d) EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS LIMITED WARRANTY SET FORTH IN SECTION 6(a) ABOVE, SERVICE PROVIDER MAKES NO WARRANTY

WHATSOEVER WITH RESPECT TO SERVICES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY (i) WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY; OR (ii)

WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE; OR (iii) WARRANTY OF TITLE; OR (iv) WARRANTY AGAINST INFRINGEMENT OF

 

www.badgerinc.com
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF A THIRD PARTY; WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED BY LAW, COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF

PERFORMANCE, USAGE OF TRADE OR OTHERWISE.

7. Limitation of Liability.

(a) SERVICE PROVIDER'S LIABILITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE COST OF REPAIR AND RE-PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES WITHIN A

REASONABLE PERIOD OF TIME FOLLOWING PROPER AND TIMELY NOTICE BY BUYER. IN NO EVENT SHALL SERVICE PROVIDER BE LIABLE

TO BUYER OR TO ANY THIRD PARTY FOR ANY LOSS OF USE, REVENUE, OR PROFIT; OR FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL,

INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING

NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHERWISE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH DAMAGES WERE FORESEEABLE AND WHETHER OR NOT SERVICE

PROVIDER HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ANY AGREED OR

OTHER ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. IN NO EVENT SHALL SERVICE PROVIDER'S AGGREGATE LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THE

SERVICE AGREEMENT, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR

OTHERWISE, EXCEED THE AGGREGATE AMOUNTS PAID OR PAYABLE TO SERVICE PROVIDER. Buyer agrees to indemnify and hold Service

Provider harmless from and against all liabilities, claims, or demands of third parties of any kind relating to Services and the use of any related goods

arising after performance of Services.

(b) The limitation of liability set forth in Section 7(a) above shall not apply to (i) liability resulting from Service Provider's gross negligence or willful

misconduct and (ii) death or bodily injury resulting from Service Provider's negligent acts or omissions.

8. Rejection or Claims. A rejection of Services for non-conformity, or a claim of incomplete performance and/or damage by Buyer, shall not be effective

unless it is made, and written notice thereof is given to Service Provider, within thirty (30) days after Services are provided to Buyer; or, with respect to

any goods related to Services, within thirty (30) days after such related goods arrive at the destination specified in Service Provider's statement of work.

Service Provider reserves the right to inspect the site of supposed non-conforming Services and to determine lack of conformity in its sole discretion.

9. Performance Dates. Service Provider shall use reasonable efforts to meet any performance dates specified in the service agreement, and any such

dates shall be estimates only.

10. Failure to Take Delivery. If Buyer fails to take delivery of any goods related to Services, or any part thereof, such related goods not delivered shall

be held at Buyer's sole risk in all respects. Service Provider, acting as Buyer's agent and at Buyer's expense, may thereafter store, insure and/or

otherwise protect such related goods or may resell same for Buyer's account. The delivery date(s) quoted are based on Service Provider's best estimate

of a realistic time when delivery to the carrier will be made, and are subject to confirmation at time of acceptance of any resulting Service Agreement.

Service Provider reserves the right to make either early delivery or partial delivery upon prior notice to Buyer as provided in Section 23 hereof and to

invoice Buyer accordingly.

11. Title and Risk of Loss or Damage. Title, risk of loss and/or damage shall pass to Buyer when any goods related to Services are made available to

the carrier at Service Provider's facility.

12. Payment Terms.

All payments are due thirty (30) days from date of invoice in U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise specified by Service Provider. Buyer's failure to make

payment when due will be a material breach of the service agreement and these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services. Subject to applicable law,

amounts unpaid after such date may, at Service Provider's discretion, bear interest from the date of the invoice at a rate of one and one-half percent

(1.5%) per month, or eighteen percent (18%) per annum. Service Provider shall be entitled to reimbursement from Buyer for all costs and fees, including

reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by Service Provider in the collection of any overdue amounts. Service Provider, at its sole option and without

incurring any liability, may suspend its performance of Services until such time as any overdue payment is made or Service Provider receives

assurances, adequate in Service Provider's opinion, that the payment will be promptly made. In the event of such suspension of performance of Services

by Service Provider, there will be an equitable adjustment made to the remaining performance schedule and pricing to reflect the duration and cost

resulting from such suspension. Buyer may only suspend performance upon Service Provider's written consent. In the event of such Buyer suspension,

the performance time will be changed, taking into account the suspension, and Buyer will promptly pay Service Provider for all costs, including related

overhead costs, resulting from such suspension. All terms of the Credit Application are incorporated into and are part of this Agreement.

For your convenience, Badger accepts payment in multiple forms including check, ACH, EFT, and certain credit cards. To the extent permitted by

applicable law, payments made by credit card are subject to a surcharge equal to 3% of the transaction amount (or the highest percentage permitted by

applicable law, if less than 3%).

13. Cancellation. Except as otherwise expressly provided in a statement of work, the service agreement shall be cancelled only by mutual written

consent of the parties. Notice is hereby given that Service Provider shall not consent to cancellation if Buyer has bound itself to purchase Services. If

Buyer is in default by failure to pay any previous invoice within credit terms at the expected date of performance of Services or any part thereof, has not

otherwise performed or complied with any of the terms of the service agreement, in whole or in part; or becomes insolvent, files a petition for bankruptcy

or commences or has commenced against it proceedings relating to bankruptcy, receivership, reorganization or assignment for the benefit of creditors, or

if Service Provider has received any adverse credit information about Buyer, Service Provider may delay performance and/or cancel performance of

Services without liability. In the event of U.S. or foreign government intervention, trade restrictions, and/or quotas, which may delay or prevent

performance of Services or any part thereof, Service Provider, at Service Provider's option, may cancel the performance of Services without liability. In

the event any Services shall become subject to any governmental fees or duties not presently in effect or to any increase in any existing fee or duty,

including any antidumping duty or countervailing duty, Service Provider shall have the right to cancel performance of Services without liability.
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14. Default. If Buyer breaches or is otherwise in default under the service agreement or under any other contract between the parties hereto, Service

Provider at its sole option, may defer performance of Services until the default is cured, or may treat the default as a repudiation by Buyer of the service

agreement in its entirety, and hold Buyer liable for such damages as Service Provider may incur, including consequential and incidental damages. For

purposes hereof, Buyer's insolvency shall be a default.

15. Waiver. No waiver by Service Provider of any of the provisions of the service agreement is effective unless explicitly set forth in writing and signed by

Service Provider. No failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any rights, remedy, power or privilege arising from the service agreement operates or may

be construed as a waiver thereof. No single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder precludes any other or further exercise

thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or privilege.

16. Force Majeure. Service Provider shall be free from any liability for delay or failure in performance of Services arising from strikes, lockouts, labor

troubles of any kind, accidents, perils of the sea, fire, earthquake, civil commotion, terrorist acts, war or consequences of war, government acts,

restrictions or requisitions, failure of manufacturers or suppliers to deliver, bankruptcy or insolvency of manufacturers or suppliers, suspension of shipping

facilities, act or default of carrier or any other contingency of whatsoever nature beyond Service Provider's control affecting production and performance

of Services, including disturbances existing on the date of the service agreement or a statement of work. In such a situation, if performance is not made

during the period contracted for, Buyer shall accept performance under the service agreement when performance is made; provided, however, Buyer

shall not be obligated to accept performance if performance is not made within a reasonable time after the cessation of the aforementioned impediments

or causes.

17. Intellectual Property. All the designs, know-how, innovations, inventions and discoveries related to Services provided under this transaction shall be

and remain the property of Service Provider.

18. Confidential Information.

(a) All non-public, confidential or proprietary information of Service Provider, including, but not limited to, trade secrets, technology, information pertaining

to business operations and strategies, and information pertaining to customers, pricing, and marketing (collectively, the "Confidential Information"),

disclosed by Service Provider to Buyer, whether disclosed orally or disclosed or accessed in written, electronic or other form or media, and whether or

not marked, designated or otherwise identified as "confidential," in connection with the provision of Services and the service agreement is confidential,

and shall not be disclosed or copied by Buyer without the prior written consent of Service Provider. Confidential Information does not include information

that is (i) in the public domain; (ii) known to Buyer at the time of the disclosure; or (iii) rightfully obtained by Buyer on a non-confidential basis from a third

party.

(b) Buyer agrees to use the Confidential Information only to make use of Services, and deliverables.

(c) Service Provider shall be entitled to injunctive relief for any violation of this Section.

19. Integration. The service agreement, these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services, and a statement of work supersede all prior negotiations,

representations, agreements, quotes and catalogues, whether written or oral, and shall not be modified, supplemented or interpreted by evidence of

course of dealing, course of performance or usage of trade. To the extent the provisions hereof conflict with any prior or subsequent agreement of the

parties, these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services will control. Any amendment to these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services must be in

writing and signed by both parties.

20. Assignment. Buyer acknowledges that no service agreement or statement of work, nor the obligations represented thereby, may be assigned or

delegated, in whole or in part by Buyer, without the prior written consent of Service Provider. Buyer's unauthorized attempt to assign or delegate any

rights or obligations shall serve as grounds for termination of the service agreement.

21. Severability. Service Provider and Buyer agree that each and every paragraph, sentence, clause, term and provision of these Standard Terms and

Conditions of Services is severable and that, in the event any portion hereof is adjudged to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining portions shall

remain in full force and effect to the fullest extent permitted by law.

22. Relationship of the Parties. The relationship between the parties is that of independent contractors. Nothing contained in these Standard Terms

and Conditions of Services or the service agreement shall be construed as creating any agency, partnership, joint venture or other form of joint

enterprise, employment or fiduciary relationship between the parties; and neither party shall have authority to contract for or bind the other party in any

manner whatsoever.

23. Notices. All notices, requests, consents, claims, demands, waivers and other communications hereunder (each, a "Notice") shall be in writing and

addressed to the parties at the addresses set forth in the service agreement or to such other address that may be designated by the receiving party in

writing. All Notices shall be delivered by personal delivery, nationally recognized overnight courier (with all fees prepaid), facsimile (with confirmation of

transmission) or certified or registered mail (in each case, return receipt requested, postage prepaid). Except as otherwise provided in the service

agreement, a Notice is effective only (a) upon receipt of the receiving party, and (b) if the party giving the Notice has complied with the requirements of

this Section.

24. Governing Law; Venue. All matters involving the validity, interpretation and application of these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services will be

controlled by the laws of the State of Indiana, United States of America and Buyer and Service Provider hereby irrevocably consent to the jurisdiction of

the state and federal courts located in Marion County, Indiana for the resolution of any disputes arising under these Standard Terms and Conditions of

Services and the service agreement.

25. Collection, Use and Disclosure of Information.
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Notwithstanding section 18, by submitting an application for the Services, Buyer consents to and authorizes Service Provider and its service providers to

use the personal information, confidential information, financial information and other details (collectively "Information") about Buyer that Buyer has

provided to:

(a) Exchange Information and reports about Buyer with credit reporting agencies, credit reporting services including Creditsafe USA Inc., and other

lenders (collectively "Credit Agencies") prior to the commencement of Services for the purposes of Service Provider providing credit to Buyer, including

in the form of an outstanding receivable with the Service Provider for Services to be performed pursuant to these Service Provider's Standard Terms and

Conditions of Services;

(b) Conduct, or arrange for a Credit Agency to conduct, "soft" or "hard" credit checks from time to time for up to one year after Buyer submits an

application and Service Provider exchanges Information with Credit Agencies;

(c) Conduct, or arrange for third parties to conduct, risk assessments and identity and payment verification checks from time to time;

(d) Assess Buyer's application for the Services based on the results of the credit, risk assessment, and identity and payment verification checks;

(e) Periodically review and verify Buyer creditworthiness, establish credit and hold limits, help Service Provider collect a debt or enforce an obligation

owed to Service Provider by Buyer, and/or manage and assess risk; and

(f) Issue a decision to grant or deny Buyer's application for credit.

Service Provider shall determine in its sole discretion whether to grant any credit to Buyer and, if so, the amount of any such credit. Service Provider has

no obligation to grant any credit, and any granting of credit is without commitment to provide any future credit. Buyer shall be responsible for all credit it

receives from Service Provider, whether or not such credit exceeds authorized credit limits. In the event that Service Provider grants credit to Buyer and

for a reasonable period of time afterwards, Service Provider may from time to time disclose Buyer's Information to other lenders and credit reporting

agencies requesting such Information. Service Provider may obtain Information and reports about Buyer from third party providers such as Creditsafe

USA Inc., and other Credit Agencies. Once Buyer has applied for credit with Service Provider, Buyer may not withdraw their consent to this exchange of

Information.
For more information about the Service Provider's privacy policy and our collection and use of personal information, please see: https://
www.badgerinc.com/learn-about-badger/privacy[1]antispam-web-policy/.

End
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Badger Hydrovac Service Proposal

United States

Prepared By:
 

David Townsend 
 

Email:
 

jtownsend@badgerinc.com
 

Phone:
 

970-821-6542 
 

Date:
 

08/29/2024 
 

Estimate Number:
 

CPQ-106350v1 
 

Project Name:
 

Prairie Center flushing quote 
 



   

Estimate
 

 

Badger Daylighting Corp
ACT UNDERGROUND DENVER CO
OP 
9501 E. 104th Ave 
Henderson, CO  80640
"An equal opportunity employer"
 
 

Date
 

08/29/2024 
 

Reference
 

CPQ-106350 
 

Prepared By
 

David Townsend 
 

Customer Information 

Company 
PRAIRIE CENTER METROPOLITAN DISTRICT #7  
  Contact Name 

Mike Tamblyn 
 

Contact Phone # 
+1 (303) 378-4166 
  Email  mtamblyn@thekroenkegroup.

com 
 

Billing Address 
211 N STADIUM BLVD, SUITE 201 
  Title   

 

Billing City/State  Columbia MO 65203
 

Account Number 
9538413 
 

Service Address 
1853 Griffin Dr   Brighton CO 80601 
 

Scope Of Work 

Combovac will be charged at a by the hour basis. From port to port. This is a time and material rate sheet only. Below is an example of a (9) hour day.  
 

Service Item  Item Description 
Unit Cost
 

UOM
 

Quantity
  Amount 

BADGER COMBO VAC WITH OPERATOR 
 

 
 

$305.00
 

HR 
 

8
 

$2,440.00 
 

BADGER COMBO VAC WITH OPERATOR
OVERTIME 
 

 
 

$335.00
 

HR 
 

1
 

$335.00 
 

DISPOSITION 
 

 
 

$210.00
 

EA 
 

1
 

$210.00 
 

CONSUMABLE MATERIALS 
 

 
 

$70.00
 

EA 
 

1
 

$70.00 
 

SUPPLY WATER 
 

 
 

$175.00
 

EA 
 

1
 

$175.00 
 

FLUCTUATING FUEL RECOVERY 
 

 
 

$484.50
 

EA 
 

1
 

$484.50 
 

           

Total
 

 

$3,714.50 
 

 

This proposal contains the budgetary estimate to complete the work as described above under the heading "Scope of Work". If any part of the work
varies from that described in Scope of Work, or if unexpected digging conditions are encountered (eg rocks, rubble, roots, etc...), then additional charges
shall apply. All work will be done on a time and material basis. All work will be done in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in Badger
Daylighting Corp.'s standard terms and conditions (USA) attached hereto. 

 

 

Customer (Company)
  _______________

 

PO #:
  _______________

 

Name (Please Print)
  _______________

 

Title:
  _______________

 

Signature
  _______________

 

Date:
  _______________

 

 

I am authorized to bind the Company
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General Notes, Conditions, & Badger Responsibilities:  

1. Travel rates apply when traveling from the closest Badger Operation to the client's project site.

2.  Badger will off load material at contracted facility. Travel to and from a designated facility is considered part of the work day and charged at the

hourly rate.

3.  Any additional third party services provided by Badger Daylighting outside of our typical Hydrovac activities shall be charged out at cost +.

4.  With any Hydrovac project, there are possible additional charges that are application and site specific. For example, items such as water trucks,

specialized equipment and attachments (remote hose, etc.), crew trucks, and other items may be required. Rather than provide an extensive listing of

all possible considerations, this is best implemented on a project-by-project basis and evaluated at the field operations level. The information

presented in this document represents the complete proposal.

5.  This proposal is valid for 30 days from the date posted on this proposal document.

6.  Any and all quotes, offers and transactions are pending Credit Approval by Badger.

7.  Terms of Payment - Net 30 days from date of invoice. Late invoices subject to service fees.

8.  Zero (0) % retainage is withheld.

9.  Taxes – tax will be added to quote pricing as required by State/Local governments.

10.  All invoices will be assessed a Fluctuating Fuel Recover Fee on the entire amount of the invoice. This fee is reviewed regularly and is subject to

change. Badger utilizes information from the US Department of Energy and the Canadian Department of Natural Resources when calculating the fee.

 
 

Customer responsibilities include: 

1.  Access to the Hydrovac site, including permits and permission from property owners, utilities, and government agents.

2.  Surface locates, survey marks and traffic control, if needed unless agreed to in writing prior.

3.  Breaking, removal, and restoration of asphalt and or concrete unless agreed to in writing prior.

4.  Establish, maintain, and remediate accessible water source and disposal site.

5.  Specific direction and locations for Hydrovac excavation.

6.  Backfill and site restoration unless agreed to in writing prior to completing work.

7.  Materials to secure and cover the excavation unless agreed to in writing prior.

8.  Shoring, maintenance, and barricading.

9.  Ownership of the soil and debris removed by the Hydrovac including any soils or material contaminated or suspect.

10.  Any project delays caused by others that result in downtime of Badger Hydrovac units will be billed at the hourly rates.

11.  Pay for all specialized training that is required by contractor/owner/Badger to be on the site to work.

12.  Notify Badger of all billing requirements and any appropriate purchase orders, job numbers, AFE, etc. that would be necessary to release payment

to Badger. This must be done prior to the first day of work.

13.  Notify Badger of any of the following: Certified payrolls, OCIP requirements, prevailing wages.

14.  Additional insurance requirements over what Badger already has in place
 

Customer Representative
 

Badger Representative
 

Printed Name:
 

_______________
 

Printed Name:
 

_______________
 

Signature:
 

_______________
 

Signature:
 

_______________
 

Date:
 

_______________
 

Date:
 

_______________
 

 

I am authorized to bind the Company
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BADGER DAYLIGHTING CORP. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS (USA) 
1. Definitions. "Service Provider" shall mean Badger Daylighting Corp. "Buyer" shall mean any party who contracts to purchase Services from Service

Provider, as indicated on a service agreement or a statement of work. "Services" shall mean those services and any related goods ordered by Buyer

from Service Provider pursuant to a service agreement accepted by Service Provider. "Credit Application" shall mean Service Provider's form of credit

application, as may be amended from time to time, the review and written approval of which is a pre-requisite to Service Provider entering into any type

of binding agreement with Buyer to provide Services. "USA" shall mean the United States of America.

2. Terms of Service Agreement Acceptance and Complete Agreement

(a) Acceptance. Buyer's order for Services is binding only when accepted in writing by an authorized representative of Service Provider, and is accepted

subject to all of Service Provider's Standard Terms and Conditions of Services, which constitute the complete agreement between the parties. Buyer's

acceptance of delivery and performance of Services evidences Buyer's acceptance of all of Service Provider's Standard Terms and Conditions of

Services.

(b) No Acceptance. Service Provider's performance under any Buyer service agreement or a statement of work does not constitute an acceptance of any

provision of any Buyer service agreement that is different from or additional to Service Provider's Standard Terms and Conditions of Services, and any

such different or additional provisions are hereby expressly rejected and are void.

3. Buyer's Obligations.

(a) Services. Buyer shall: (i) cooperate with Service Provider in all matters relating to Services and provide such access to Buyer's premises, and other

facilities as may reasonably be requested by Service Provider, for the purposes of performing Services; (ii) respond promptly to any Service Provider

request to provide direction, information, approvals, authorizations or decisions that are reasonably necessary for Service Provider to perform Services

in accordance with the requirements of the service agreement; (iii) provide such Buyer materials or information as Service Provider may reasonably

request and Buyer considers reasonably necessary to carry out Services in a timely manner and ensure that such Buyer materials or information are

complete and accurate in all material respects; and (iv) obtain and maintain all necessary permits and consents and comply with all applicable laws in

relation to Services before the date on which Services are to start.

(b) Shipment and Delivery. Any goods provided in relation to the Services are sold EXW Service Provider's Facility Incoterms 2010. The method and

route of shipment shall be as mutually agreed in each accepted service agreement. Service Provider shall tender delivery of all such related goods to a

carrier for transportation to Buyer's place of business. All costs of transportation, including, without limitation, taxes and standard insurance shall be

assessed by Service Provider and borne by Buyer unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Service Provider. Service Provider shall invoice Buyer for all

shipping related costs.

All risk of loss shall pass to Buyer when such related goods are made available to the carrier at Service Provider's facility, including, without limitation, all

risks of loading, transportation, and shipment. Delivery and acceptance shall not be affected by a delay on the part of Buyer in accepting delivery.

Shipment of such related goods held by reason of Buyer's request or inability to receive such related goods will be at the risk and expense of Buyer.

Claims for shortages in shipment shall be deemed waived by Buyer unless made in writing to Seller within thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.

4. Buyer's Acts or Omissions. If Service Provider's performance of its obligations under this Agreement is prevented or delayed by any act or omission

of Buyer or its agents, subcontractors, consultants or employees, Service Provider shall not be deemed in breach of its obligations under the service

agreement or otherwise liable for any costs, charges or losses sustained or incurred by Buyer, in each case, to the extent arising directly or indirectly

from such prevention or delay. breach of its obligations under the service agreement or otherwise liable for any costs, charges or losses sustained or

incurred by Buyer, in each case, to the extent arising directly or indirectly from such prevention or delay.

5. Taxes and Fees. Unless expressly stated and agreed to in writing by Service Provider, quoted prices do not include any shipping and handling

charges, sales, use, excise, or similar taxes or duties. Buyer shall pay these taxes directly if the law permits or shall reimburse Service Provider if Service

Provider is required to collect and pay them.

6. Representations and Warranties; Limitation of Remedy.

(a) Service Provider represents and warrants to Buyer that it shall perform Services using personnel of required skill, experience and qualifications and

in a professional and workmanlike manner in accordance with generally recognized industry standards for similar services and shall devote adequate

resources to meet its obligations under the service agreement.

(b) Service Provider shall not be liable to a breach of the warranty set forth in Section 6(a) unless Buyer gives written notice of the defective Services,

reasonably described, to Service Provider with three (3) days of the time when Buyer discovers or ought to have discovered that Services were defective.

(c) The sole and exclusive remedy of Buyer for any liability of Service Provider of any kind, including (i) warranty, express or implied, whether contained

in the terms and conditions hereof or in any terms additional or supplemental hereto, (ii) contract, (iii) negligence, (iv) tort, or (v) otherwise, is limited to

Service Provider's repair or re-performance of Services. The sole and exclusive remedy for goods related to Services shall be Service Provider's repair

or replacement of those related goods the examination of which by Service Provider reveals material defects during the warranty period or, at Service

Provider's option, a refund to Buyer of the money paid to Services Provider for such goods. The warranty period  shall begin on the date of completion of

Services on Service Provider's invoice and shall continue for a period of one (1) year therefrom for all Services. This limited warranty shall not extend to

any Services that have been modified, disassembled, altered, changed, damaged, misused, repaired, misapplied or negligently maintained in any

manner.

(d) EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS LIMITED WARRANTY SET FORTH IN SECTION 6(a) ABOVE, SERVICE PROVIDER MAKES NO WARRANTY

WHATSOEVER WITH RESPECT TO SERVICES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY (i) WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY; OR (ii)

WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE; OR (iii) WARRANTY OF TITLE; OR (iv) WARRANTY AGAINST INFRINGEMENT OF
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF A THIRD PARTY; WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED BY LAW, COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF

PERFORMANCE, USAGE OF TRADE OR OTHERWISE.

7. Limitation of Liability.

(a) SERVICE PROVIDER'S LIABILITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE COST OF REPAIR AND RE-PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES WITHIN A

REASONABLE PERIOD OF TIME FOLLOWING PROPER AND TIMELY NOTICE BY BUYER. IN NO EVENT SHALL SERVICE PROVIDER BE LIABLE

TO BUYER OR TO ANY THIRD PARTY FOR ANY LOSS OF USE, REVENUE, OR PROFIT; OR FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL,

INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING

NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHERWISE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH DAMAGES WERE FORESEEABLE AND WHETHER OR NOT SERVICE

PROVIDER HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ANY AGREED OR

OTHER ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. IN NO EVENT SHALL SERVICE PROVIDER'S AGGREGATE LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THE

SERVICE AGREEMENT, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR

OTHERWISE, EXCEED THE AGGREGATE AMOUNTS PAID OR PAYABLE TO SERVICE PROVIDER. Buyer agrees to indemnify and hold Service

Provider harmless from and against all liabilities, claims, or demands of third parties of any kind relating to Services and the use of any related goods

arising after performance of Services.

(b) The limitation of liability set forth in Section 7(a) above shall not apply to (i) liability resulting from Service Provider's gross negligence or willful

misconduct and (ii) death or bodily injury resulting from Service Provider's negligent acts or omissions.

8. Rejection or Claims. A rejection of Services for non-conformity, or a claim of incomplete performance and/or damage by Buyer, shall not be effective

unless it is made, and written notice thereof is given to Service Provider, within thirty (30) days after Services are provided to Buyer; or, with respect to

any goods related to Services, within thirty (30) days after such related goods arrive at the destination specified in Service Provider's statement of work.

Service Provider reserves the right to inspect the site of supposed non-conforming Services and to determine lack of conformity in its sole discretion.

9. Performance Dates. Service Provider shall use reasonable efforts to meet any performance dates specified in the service agreement, and any such

dates shall be estimates only.

10. Failure to Take Delivery. If Buyer fails to take delivery of any goods related to Services, or any part thereof, such related goods not delivered shall

be held at Buyer's sole risk in all respects. Service Provider, acting as Buyer's agent and at Buyer's expense, may thereafter store, insure and/or

otherwise protect such related goods or may resell same for Buyer's account. The delivery date(s) quoted are based on Service Provider's best estimate

of a realistic time when delivery to the carrier will be made, and are subject to confirmation at time of acceptance of any resulting Service Agreement.

Service Provider reserves the right to make either early delivery or partial delivery upon prior notice to Buyer as provided in Section 23 hereof and to

invoice Buyer accordingly.

11. Title and Risk of Loss or Damage. Title, risk of loss and/or damage shall pass to Buyer when any goods related to Services are made available to

the carrier at Service Provider's facility.

12. Payment Terms.

All payments are due thirty (30) days from date of invoice in U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise specified by Service Provider. Buyer's failure to make

payment when due will be a material breach of the service agreement and these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services. Subject to applicable law,

amounts unpaid after such date may, at Service Provider's discretion, bear interest from the date of the invoice at a rate of one and one-half percent

(1.5%) per month, or eighteen percent (18%) per annum. Service Provider shall be entitled to reimbursement from Buyer for all costs and fees, including

reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by Service Provider in the collection of any overdue amounts. Service Provider, at its sole option and without

incurring any liability, may suspend its performance of Services until such time as any overdue payment is made or Service Provider receives

assurances, adequate in Service Provider's opinion, that the payment will be promptly made. In the event of such suspension of performance of Services

by Service Provider, there will be an equitable adjustment made to the remaining performance schedule and pricing to reflect the duration and cost

resulting from such suspension. Buyer may only suspend performance upon Service Provider's written consent. In the event of such Buyer suspension,

the performance time will be changed, taking into account the suspension, and Buyer will promptly pay Service Provider for all costs, including related

overhead costs, resulting from such suspension. All terms of the Credit Application are incorporated into and are part of this Agreement.

For your convenience, Badger accepts payment in multiple forms including check, ACH, EFT, and certain credit cards. To the extent permitted by

applicable law, payments made by credit card are subject to a surcharge equal to 3% of the transaction amount (or the highest percentage permitted by

applicable law, if less than 3%).

13. Cancellation. Except as otherwise expressly provided in a statement of work, the service agreement shall be cancelled only by mutual written

consent of the parties. Notice is hereby given that Service Provider shall not consent to cancellation if Buyer has bound itself to purchase Services. If

Buyer is in default by failure to pay any previous invoice within credit terms at the expected date of performance of Services or any part thereof, has not

otherwise performed or complied with any of the terms of the service agreement, in whole or in part; or becomes insolvent, files a petition for bankruptcy

or commences or has commenced against it proceedings relating to bankruptcy, receivership, reorganization or assignment for the benefit of creditors, or

if Service Provider has received any adverse credit information about Buyer, Service Provider may delay performance and/or cancel performance of

Services without liability. In the event of U.S. or foreign government intervention, trade restrictions, and/or quotas, which may delay or prevent

performance of Services or any part thereof, Service Provider, at Service Provider's option, may cancel the performance of Services without liability. In

the event any Services shall become subject to any governmental fees or duties not presently in effect or to any increase in any existing fee or duty,

including any antidumping duty or countervailing duty, Service Provider shall have the right to cancel performance of Services without liability.
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14. Default. If Buyer breaches or is otherwise in default under the service agreement or under any other contract between the parties hereto, Service

Provider at its sole option, may defer performance of Services until the default is cured, or may treat the default as a repudiation by Buyer of the service

agreement in its entirety, and hold Buyer liable for such damages as Service Provider may incur, including consequential and incidental damages. For

purposes hereof, Buyer's insolvency shall be a default.

15. Waiver. No waiver by Service Provider of any of the provisions of the service agreement is effective unless explicitly set forth in writing and signed by

Service Provider. No failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any rights, remedy, power or privilege arising from the service agreement operates or may

be construed as a waiver thereof. No single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder precludes any other or further exercise

thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or privilege.

16. Force Majeure. Service Provider shall be free from any liability for delay or failure in performance of Services arising from strikes, lockouts, labor

troubles of any kind, accidents, perils of the sea, fire, earthquake, civil commotion, terrorist acts, war or consequences of war, government acts,

restrictions or requisitions, failure of manufacturers or suppliers to deliver, bankruptcy or insolvency of manufacturers or suppliers, suspension of shipping

facilities, act or default of carrier or any other contingency of whatsoever nature beyond Service Provider's control affecting production and performance

of Services, including disturbances existing on the date of the service agreement or a statement of work. In such a situation, if performance is not made

during the period contracted for, Buyer shall accept performance under the service agreement when performance is made; provided, however, Buyer

shall not be obligated to accept performance if performance is not made within a reasonable time after the cessation of the aforementioned impediments

or causes.

17. Intellectual Property. All the designs, know-how, innovations, inventions and discoveries related to Services provided under this transaction shall be

and remain the property of Service Provider.

18. Confidential Information.

(a) All non-public, confidential or proprietary information of Service Provider, including, but not limited to, trade secrets, technology, information pertaining

to business operations and strategies, and information pertaining to customers, pricing, and marketing (collectively, the "Confidential Information"),

disclosed by Service Provider to Buyer, whether disclosed orally or disclosed or accessed in written, electronic or other form or media, and whether or

not marked, designated or otherwise identified as "confidential," in connection with the provision of Services and the service agreement is confidential,

and shall not be disclosed or copied by Buyer without the prior written consent of Service Provider. Confidential Information does not include information

that is (i) in the public domain; (ii) known to Buyer at the time of the disclosure; or (iii) rightfully obtained by Buyer on a non-confidential basis from a third

party.

(b) Buyer agrees to use the Confidential Information only to make use of Services, and deliverables.

(c) Service Provider shall be entitled to injunctive relief for any violation of this Section.

19. Integration. The service agreement, these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services, and a statement of work supersede all prior negotiations,

representations, agreements, quotes and catalogues, whether written or oral, and shall not be modified, supplemented or interpreted by evidence of

course of dealing, course of performance or usage of trade. To the extent the provisions hereof conflict with any prior or subsequent agreement of the

parties, these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services will control. Any amendment to these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services must be in

writing and signed by both parties.

20. Assignment. Buyer acknowledges that no service agreement or statement of work, nor the obligations represented thereby, may be assigned or

delegated, in whole or in part by Buyer, without the prior written consent of Service Provider. Buyer's unauthorized attempt to assign or delegate any

rights or obligations shall serve as grounds for termination of the service agreement.

21. Severability. Service Provider and Buyer agree that each and every paragraph, sentence, clause, term and provision of these Standard Terms and

Conditions of Services is severable and that, in the event any portion hereof is adjudged to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining portions shall

remain in full force and effect to the fullest extent permitted by law.

22. Relationship of the Parties. The relationship between the parties is that of independent contractors. Nothing contained in these Standard Terms

and Conditions of Services or the service agreement shall be construed as creating any agency, partnership, joint venture or other form of joint

enterprise, employment or fiduciary relationship between the parties; and neither party shall have authority to contract for or bind the other party in any

manner whatsoever.

23. Notices. All notices, requests, consents, claims, demands, waivers and other communications hereunder (each, a "Notice") shall be in writing and

addressed to the parties at the addresses set forth in the service agreement or to such other address that may be designated by the receiving party in

writing. All Notices shall be delivered by personal delivery, nationally recognized overnight courier (with all fees prepaid), facsimile (with confirmation of

transmission) or certified or registered mail (in each case, return receipt requested, postage prepaid). Except as otherwise provided in the service

agreement, a Notice is effective only (a) upon receipt of the receiving party, and (b) if the party giving the Notice has complied with the requirements of

this Section.

24. Governing Law; Venue. All matters involving the validity, interpretation and application of these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services will be

controlled by the laws of the State of Indiana, United States of America and Buyer and Service Provider hereby irrevocably consent to the jurisdiction of

the state and federal courts located in Marion County, Indiana for the resolution of any disputes arising under these Standard Terms and Conditions of

Services and the service agreement.

25. Collection, Use and Disclosure of Information.
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Notwithstanding section 18, by submitting an application for the Services, Buyer consents to and authorizes Service Provider and its service providers to

use the personal information, confidential information, financial information and other details (collectively "Information") about Buyer that Buyer has

provided to:

(a) Exchange Information and reports about Buyer with credit reporting agencies, credit reporting services including Creditsafe USA Inc., and other

lenders (collectively "Credit Agencies") prior to the commencement of Services for the purposes of Service Provider providing credit to Buyer, including

in the form of an outstanding receivable with the Service Provider for Services to be performed pursuant to these Service Provider's Standard Terms and

Conditions of Services;

(b) Conduct, or arrange for a Credit Agency to conduct, "soft" or "hard" credit checks from time to time for up to one year after Buyer submits an

application and Service Provider exchanges Information with Credit Agencies;

(c) Conduct, or arrange for third parties to conduct, risk assessments and identity and payment verification checks from time to time;

(d) Assess Buyer's application for the Services based on the results of the credit, risk assessment, and identity and payment verification checks;

(e) Periodically review and verify Buyer creditworthiness, establish credit and hold limits, help Service Provider collect a debt or enforce an obligation

owed to Service Provider by Buyer, and/or manage and assess risk; and

(f) Issue a decision to grant or deny Buyer's application for credit.

Service Provider shall determine in its sole discretion whether to grant any credit to Buyer and, if so, the amount of any such credit. Service Provider has

no obligation to grant any credit, and any granting of credit is without commitment to provide any future credit. Buyer shall be responsible for all credit it

receives from Service Provider, whether or not such credit exceeds authorized credit limits. In the event that Service Provider grants credit to Buyer and

for a reasonable period of time afterwards, Service Provider may from time to time disclose Buyer's Information to other lenders and credit reporting

agencies requesting such Information. Service Provider may obtain Information and reports about Buyer from third party providers such as Creditsafe

USA Inc., and other Credit Agencies. Once Buyer has applied for credit with Service Provider, Buyer may not withdraw their consent to this exchange of

Information.
For more information about the Service Provider's privacy policy and our collection and use of personal information, please see: https://
www.badgerinc.com/learn-about-badger/privacy[1]antispam-web-policy/.

End
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ADDENDUM TO 

BADGER DAYLIGHTING CORP. 

HYDROVAC SERVICE PROPOSAL 

 

Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 7 (the “District” or “Buyer”) and Badger Daylighting 
Corp. (“Badger” or “Service Provider” and, together with the District, collectively, the 
“Parties”) hereby agree that by the Buyer’s execution of the Hydrovac Service Proposal from 
Badger dated August 29, 2024 (the “Proposal”), constitutes the agreement between the Parties to 
the Service Items and Standard Terms and Conditions set forth therein subject to the following: 

1. All communications to the District shall be delivered to:   
 
Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 7 
141 Union Boulevard, Suite 150 
Lakewood, CO 80228 
Attn:  District Manager Peggy Ripko 
Email:  pripko@sdmsi.com 
 
With copy to: 
 
Project Manager Michael Tamblyn 
Email:  mtamblyn@thekroenkegroup.com 
 

2. The amount the District agrees to pay for the Services shall not exceed the amount set 
forth in the Proposal unless any additional amount is requested in advance from Badger 
and approved in writing by District Project Manager Michael Tamblyn. 
 

3. Paragraph 12, Payment Terms, is hereby amended to provide that payments shall be due 
sixty (60) days from the date of invoice. 

 
4. Section 24, Governing Law, is hereby amended to provide that all matters involving the 

validity, interpretation and application of the Standard Terms and Conditions of Services 
will be controlled by the laws of the State of Colorado, and jurisdiction of the state and 
federal courts of Adams County, Colorado. 

In the event of any conflicts between the Proposal (including the Standard Terms and 
Conditions) and this Addendum, the terms of this Addendum shall control. 

APPROVED:  APPROVED: 
   
By:   By:  
 President 

Prairie Center Metropolitan District No. 7 

  Authorized Representative 

Badger Daylighting Corp. 

Date:     Date:  
 

9/16/2024

Alexis Smith -Contract Specialist 

9/16/24

mailto:pripko@sdmsi.com
mailto:mtamblyn@thekroenkegroup.com
Alexis Smith
Typewritten Text
These terms only apply for CPQ-106344v1 and CPQ-106350v1
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6300 - THF Realty:311 - 6300 - Village 1 PCMD #7
Village 1 PCMD #7
Prairie Center Metro District #7
C/O Clifton Larson Allen
Greenwood Village, CO 80111-2814
Phone: Not on File

270 Interlocken Blvd
Broomfield, CO 80021
Phone: 303-466-9196

Proposal

Date

Quote #

10/9/2024

867

Project

Holiday Decorative Lights 20241009

Site Location

Prairie Center Metro District #7
Greenwood Village, CO 80111-2814

Description TotalQty Rate

1Holiday Lighting - NIC
Install and maintain decorative light strings during the holiday season on 72
trees: including dismantling and storage.
***Contingent on the availability of power outlets at the proposed locations (See
attached map)

$18,000.00$18,000.00

Date Total: $18,000.00

Subtotal: $18,000.00

Tax: $0.00

Thank you for your business.

Approval Signature
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QUOTE INFORMATION
11470.1

QUOTE DATE 08/27/24

TURNAROUND

BILL TO

Special District Management 
Services, Inc.
Charlie Hogue
141 Union Blvd Ste 150
Lakewood, CO  80228-1898

CONTACT
QUOTE ID

Special District Management 
Services, Inc.

CUSTOMER

SALESPERSON
Erik BechtoldESTIMATOR

12x18 reflective no solicitation signsCUSTOMER PO

12x18 reflective no solicitation signs
501 4/0 12x18 reflective no solicitation signsDescription Qty

Flatbed Printer (Aluminum (white reflective) .080 
(12x18))

Printing $192.3512 x 18 inches

Item Total $192.35

$38.47Unit Price

502 U_Channel_Sign_Post_8ftDescription Qty

Service Price $373.18

Item Total $373.18

$74.636Unit Price

503 Installation (2 men, standard tools, ladder, 
etc...)

Description Qty

Service Price $1,125.00

Drive u-channel posts directly into the dirt (landscape only, 
not concrete or asphalt), locations to be provided by client 

Memo

Item Total $1,125.00

$225.00Unit Price

104 Utility locates Description Qty

Service Price $200.00

Pre-mark 5 locations and call in locate requests for all 
locations 

Memo

Item Total $200.00

$200.00Unit Price
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QUOTE INFORMATION
11470.1

QUOTE DATE 08/27/24

TURNAROUND

BILL TO

Special District Management 
Services, Inc.
Charlie Hogue
141 Union Blvd Ste 150
Lakewood, CO  80228-1898

CONTACT
QUOTE ID

Special District Management 
Services, Inc.

CUSTOMER

SALESPERSON
Erik BechtoldESTIMATOR

12x18 reflective no solicitation signsCUSTOMER PO

12x18 reflective no solicitation signs

$1,890.53TOTAL QUOTE

Waiting on sign locations
NOTES

ACCEPTED BY____________________________                                            DATE ___________________________
Above prices do not include shipping fees or sales tax.  Prices based upon receipt of "press ready" artwork.
Graphic design and artwork correction services available at $100 per hour.  Rush turnarounds subject to approval
and availability.  All quotations are valid for 30 days.  

Due to increased bank processing fees, we must now impose a 3.5% credit card convenience fee on all orders paid by credit 
card. Thank you for your understanding.
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Estimate #: 9214
4720 S. Santa Fe Circle, Unit 4
Englewood, CO 80110
Ph:  (303) 795-6551
FAX:  (303) 703-6075
Web:  http://www.royalsigns.com

Royal Signs

Email:

Salesperson: House Account

8/29/2024  11:30:46AMCreated Date: SDMSPrepared For:
Charlie HogueContact:

Email:

Address:

Chogue@sdmsi.com

kristin@royalsigns.com

(303) 703-6075

(303) 795-6551

Office Fax:

Office Phone:

Cell Phone: (303) 908-4825

141 Union Boulevard

Suite 150

Lakewood, CO  80228

Description: No Soliciting Signs

 5Product:

Subtotal

$184.90 

Unit Price

$924.50 1

Quantity

Description:

-

No Soliciting Signs

12" x 18"

Black with White lettering

on a 2" Alum Post -Painted Black

 5Product:

Subtotal

$273.594 

Unit Price

$1,367.97 2

Quantity

Description:

-

Install 5 Post and panel signs 24" in the ground.

Install in a neighborhood in Brighton.

NOTE:  Someone will need to meet us onsite to tell us where to install signs. 

NOTE:  Price is assuming install happens during normal business hours.

Notes THIS QUOTE GOOD FOR 60 DAYS

TERMS  & CONDITIONS:

If we provide work pursuant to this proposal but it is not signed, the terms of the proposal shall become our agreement. Any changes 

or additions to the proposed work shall incur additional charges whether or not agreed to in writing. Payment is due in full when the 

work is complete, unless Terms of Payment are specifically listed on this proposal to indicate otherwise. Proposals/Invoices not timely 

paid will accrue interest at the rate of 18% per annum until paid in full. If there is any claim the work was performed incorrectly, you 

shall give us written notice and a reasonable chance to correct it. In the event you fail to pay all amounts due and owing, you shall also 

pay all our costs and attorney's fees incurred in the collection of such amounts, including post-judgment collection costs and attorneys 

fees.

$2,292.47 Subtotal:

$74.42 Taxes:

Total: $2,366.89 

Payment Terms: Payment Due Upon Receipt

Client Reply Request

Estimate Accepted "As Is".  Please proceed with Order.

Changes required, please contact me.

Other:

/    /SIGN: Date:

Print Date:  8/29/2024  11:31:02AM



4720 S. Santa Fe Circle, Unit 4

 Englewood, CO 80110

303.795.6551    phone

303.703.6075        fax

www.royalsigns.com

PAGE 1 of 1

4

 1
2 

in
 

 18 in 

 1
2.

01
 in

 

 2
3.

57
 in

 
.080 Alum with Digital print and UV Laminated
Mounted to a 2” sq. Alum post. 

Qty: 5

8.29.24
SDMS 
No Soliciting
Signs



ESTIMATE

Services qty

Prairie Center - UChannel Sign Installation 1.0
PPE Required - Steel toe boots, eye and ear protection.

Metro Denver & Surrounding Areas - 40 miles range 1.0
G-FORCE™ Parking Lot Striping of Denver will provide services as described below, including crew,
transportation, set-up, and breakdown costs. This proposal covers all labor, materials, and equipment
required to perform the work safely and following best construction practices.

*Estimate quoted based on completion of work during normal business hours, Mon-Fri, 7am-7pm. To
minimize traffic congestion during peak hours, work hours may be adjusted.

*Minor cleaning only, including light sweeping or debris removal, will be performed before work begins at no
additional charge.

*Additional trips due to work area availability (excluding weather) will incur a $500 Mobilization charge per
trip.

*This proposal includes only the work specified in the provided plans. G-FORCE™ of Denver is not
responsible for omissions, errors, or subsequent revisions.

U-Channel - 12"x18" Sign w/ Driven Post U-Channel 9' 5.0
Standard-sized 12"x18" "NO SOLICITATION" Sign Installation. If underground obstructions are found,
additional charges may apply.

Notes - 811 DIG - Disclaimer 1.0
***Customer agrees to be the primary point of contact for 811 DIG services initiated by G-FORCE™ Denver
and will make a good faith effort to be physically present during locate services. Additional mobilizations will
be assessed if site is not properly marked in advance.***

G-FORCE of Denver

SDMS
Prairie Center Neighborhood, 2795 Kestrel St 
Brighton, CO 80601

 (720) 303-9856
 chogue@sdmsi.com

CONTACT US

9542 W 69th Pl 
Arvada, CO 80004

 (720) 803-0483
 damian@gogforce.com

ESTIMATE #2333
ESTIMATE DATE Aug 27, 2024
EXPIRATION DATE Sep 26, 2024

TOTAL $1,147.75

G-FORCE of Denver https://www.gogforce.com/denver-co/ 1 of 2

https://www.gogforce.com/denver-co/


The Customer acknowledges and agrees that G-FORCE™ Denver will contact the appropriate local utility
marking service, commonly known as 811, to locate and mark any underground utility lines or items on the
property before the commencement of any work performed by G-FORCE of Denver. The Customer assumes
sole responsibility for protecting all underground items, including but not limited to utility lines, pipes, cables,
and other buried infrastructure, to prevent damage or disruption during the execution of the contracted
services. G-FORCE of Denver shall not be liable for any damages, costs, or delays arising from the failure of
the Customer to identify and protect underground items properly.

Additionally, it is highly recommended that the Customer pursue a Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) scan in
addition to utility marking services to further mitigate the risk of underground obstructions or hazards.

By signing this contract, the Customer acknowledges their responsibility for compliance with all local
regulations and procedures regarding underground utility marking and protection.

Subtotal $1,147.75

Total $1,147.75

***Payments via Zelle, ACH, Cash, or Check are appreciated.***
48 Locations Nationwide, All Veteran-Owned and Operated. 
We appreciate your business!

G-FORCE of Denver https://www.gogforce.com/denver-co/ 2 of 2

https://www.gogforce.com/denver-co/


 
141 Union Boulevard, Suite 150 

Lakewood, CO 80228-1898 

303-987-0835 ● Fax: 303-987-2032 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
TO:    Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Christel Gemski   
  Executive Vice-President   
 
DATE:  September 23, 2024 
 
RE:  Notice of 2025 Rate Increase 
 
 
  In accordance with the Management Agreement (“Agreement”) between the 
District and Special District Management Services, Inc. (“SDMS”), at the time of the annual 
renewal of the Agreement, the hourly rate described in Article III for management and all 
services shall increase by (2.5%) per hour.   
 
  We hope you will understand that it is necessary to increase our rates due to 
increasing gas and operating costs along with new laws and rules implemented by our 
legislature.   
 

 



 
 

2025 NOTICE OF LEGAL SERVICES AND FEE SUMMARY 
 

The following is a summary of fees and charges for legal services being offered by Altitude 
Community Law P.C. for 2025.  For more details, contact your Primary Attorney or email us today 
at hoalaw@altitude.law.   
 

No signature is required at this time, as this is a notice only. 
Existing clients will be billed at our new 2025 rates effective with their January billing. 

Please note:  We do not accept credit card payments for legal services. 
Clients remain on their current billing structure (retainer/non-retainer, etc.) until we are 

notified otherwise. 
 
Our retainer programs reduce your association’s legal expenditures and simplify the budgeting 
process by establishing a fixed monthly fee. This fee purchases the essential legal services your 
association requires, making us available to you as needed. We offer three retainer packages to 
better fit your needs.  
 
RETAINER SERVICES AND BENEFITS 
For a monthly fee of $275, retainer clients receive the following legal services and benefits without 
further charges: 
 

Phone Calls.  We will engage in unlimited telephone consultations with a designated board 
member or association manager regarding legal and other questions and status of ongoing work 
we are performing for you, exclusive of litigation, foreclosure, covenant enforcement, and 
document amendments. Written consultations/communications such as emails, written 
correspondence, and calls with multiple board members at the same time will be billed at our 
reduced hourly rates, as will our time to review governing documents, correspondence, etc., if 
necessary to answer a question.  
 
Reduced Hourly Rates.  For legal services billed hourly beyond what is included in the retainer, 
we will provide those services at $20 per hour less than our non-retainer rates for attorneys, 
$10 per hour less than our non-retainer rates for paralegals, and $5 per hour less than our non-
retainer rates for legal assistants.  
 
In-Office Consultation.  We will meet with a designated board member and/or the association’s 
manager in our office or virtually for 30 minutes on any new matter.  If the meeting extends 
beyond the 30 minutes, you will be billed at our reduced hourly rates. 
 
Attendance at Board Meeting.  At your request, we will attend one board meeting per twelve-
month period for up to one hour. While our attendance at said board meeting is provided at no 
charge to retainer clients, we will bill at our reduced hourly rate for travel time to and from the 



Altitude office location that is closest to the meeting/court appearance. As a retainer client, we 
will prioritize attending the board meeting of your choosing. If our attendance exceeds one 
hour, you will be billed at our reduced hourly rates. 
 
Audit Response Letter.  We will prepare a letter to your financial auditor in connection with 
your annual audit indicating pending or threatened litigation.  We will also review your annual 
financial audit upon completion. 
 
Periodic Report.  We will prepare and file your periodic report with the Secretary of State if 
you have designated us as your registered agent.   
 
DORA Renewal.  We will prepare and file your renewal report with DORA if requested. 
 
Credit Card Payments.  For Retainer clients, we will accept homeowner payments via credit 
card.  

 
RETAINER PLUS SERVICES AND BENEFITS 
For a monthly fee of $350, we will provide the following legal services and benefits without further 
charges: 
 

In addition to the services provided to Retainer clients, Retainer Plus clients will receive the 
following additional services: 
 
Email Consultations.  We will engage in 30 minutes of email consultations every month with 
a designated board member and the association’s manager regarding legal and other questions 
and the status of ongoing work that we are performing on your behalf, exclusive of litigation, 
foreclosure, covenant enforcement, and document amendment matters.  Additional written 
consultations and communications will be billed at our reduced hourly rates.  If it is necessary 
to review governing documents, correspondence, etc. to answer a question, you will be billed 
at our reduced hourly rates.  

 
PREMIUM RETAINER SERVICES AND BENEFITS 
For a monthly fee of $600, we will provide the following legal services and benefits without further 
charges: 
 

In addition to the services provided to Retainer and Retainer Plus clients, Premium Retainer 
clients will receive the following additional services: 
 
Email Exchanges.  We will engage in 90 minutes of email consultations every month with a 
designated board member and the association’s manager regarding legal and other questions 
and the status of ongoing work that we are performing on your behalf, exclusive of litigation, 
foreclosure, covenant enforcement, and document amendment matters.  Additional written 
consultations and communications will be billed at our reduced hourly rates.  If it is necessary 
to review governing documents, correspondence, etc. to answer a question, you will be billed 
at our reduced hourly rates. 
 
Attendance at One Additional Board Meeting per Year.  At your request, we will attend a total 
of two board meetings per twelve-month period for up to one hour each.  While our attendance 



at said board meetings is provided at no charge to retainer clients, we will bill at our reduced 
hourly rate for travel time to and from the Altitude office location that is closest to the 
meeting/court appearance if in-person attendance is requested instead of virtually. If our 
attendance exceeds one hour, you will be billed at our reduced hourly rates. 

 
RETAINER SERVICES GENERALLY 
Clients on retainer will remain on their chosen level of retainer until we are notified otherwise in 
writing.  
 
FIXED FEE SERVICES  
Altitude Community Law offers fixed fee services.  The association will pay Altitude Community 
Law (the Firm) for performance of the services as outlined in a proposal for services, plus costs.  
The association understands that it is not entering into an hourly fee agreement for that specified 
service, except as otherwise set forth.  This means the Firm will devote such time to the matter as 
is necessary, but the Firm’s fee will not be increased or decreased based upon the number of hours 
spent. 
 
NON-RETAINER SERVICES AND BILLING TERMS 
If you desire representation on a non-retainer basis, you will be billed hourly for all work 
performed unless a fixed fee (such as collection matters or amendment of documents) has been 
agreed to in advance.  Our hourly rates for 2025 non-retainer clients are $120 - $160 for legal 
assistants/paralegals, $350 - $380 for attorneys.  Non-retainer clients are billed hourly for all phone 
calls.  Our attendance at meetings will be billed hourly.  Our travel time to and from the attorney’s 
primary office location will also be billed hourly if in-person attendance is requested instead of 
remote or virtual attendance. 
 
TERMINATION OF REPRESENTATION 
You may terminate our representation at any time by notifying us in writing and we may resign 
from representation by notifying you in writing.  In either case, you understand that court or 
administrative rules may require us to obtain a judicial or administrative order to permit our 
withdrawal.  We agree that upon receipt of your termination notice, we will take such action as is 
necessary to withdraw from representing you, including requesting any necessary judicial or 
administrative order for withdrawal. However, whether you terminate our representation, we cease 
performing further work and/or withdraw from representing you, as allowed under the Colorado 
Rules of Professional Conduct or for your failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement, you 
understand and agree that you continue to be responsible to us for the payment of all fees and 
expenses due and owing and incurred in withdrawing from representing you, including any fees 
and expenses we incur to obtain, and/or during the time we are seeking to obtain, any necessary 
judicial or administrative order to approve our withdrawal. 
 
If you so request, we will send to you your files in an electronic format as soon as a particular 
matter is concluded.  If you do not request your files, the firm will keep the files for a minimum 
of 10 years, after which it may retain, destroy or otherwise dispose of them. 
 
PRIVACY POLICY 
Attorneys, like other professionals who provide certain financial services, are now required by 
federal and state laws to inform their clients of their policies regarding privacy of client 
information.  Attorneys have been and continue to be bound by professional standards of 



confidentiality that are even more stringent than those required by this new law.  Thus, we have 
always protected the privacy of your confidential information. 
 
In the course of providing legal services, we sometimes receive significant nonpublic personal 
information from our clients.  As a client of Altitude Community Law, you should know that all 
such information we receive from you is held in confidence.  We do not disclose such information 
to anyone outside the firm except when required or authorized by applicable law or the applicable 
rules of professional conduct governing lawyers, or when authorized by you in writing. 
 
We retain records relating to professional services that we provide so that we are better able to 
assist you with your professional needs and, in some cases, to comply with professional guidelines.  
In order to guard your nonpublic personal information, we maintain, physical, electronic and 
procedural safeguards that comply with our professional standards. 
 
If you have any questions or would like more information about our privacy policies and practices, 
please let us know. 
 
GENERAL TERMS FOR ALL CLIENTS 
We represent the association as a corporate entity. We will take our direction for work as instructed 
by the board or by the manager on behalf of the board. We do not represent any individual board 
members or homeowners. 
 
Clients are required to reimburse us for cost advances and other out-of-pocket expenses.  
Reimbursement is made at actual cost for outside charges such as court recording fees, filing fees, 
service of process charges, computerized legal research, expert witness fees, title searches, 
deposition reporting and transcription fees, outside photocopying, etc.  Typically, we do not charge 
for internal photocopies, faxes, postage and long-distance telephone calls unless these charges are 
extraordinary.  We provide monthly statements for services and expenses incurred.  Unless other 
arrangements are made and agreed upon in writing, all charges are due and payable upon your 
receipt of the statement.  A finance charge of 12% per annum may be imposed upon any amount 
not paid within 30 days of becoming due.  Fees may be modified upon 30 days prior written notice.  
If it becomes necessary to file suit to recover unpaid attorney fees, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to receive its attorney fees. 
 
In the event we have not been provided with, or our files do not contain, all of the recorded 
documents of the association, we retain the right to obtain any such recorded documents to 
supplement our file without association approval and at the association’s cost. The association’s 
cost will include, but not be limited to, hourly charges for procuring the documents and copying 
or downloading costs. In order to provide you with the most efficient and effective service we will 
unless otherwise directed, work through your manager if appropriate. 
 
Please see Exhibit A to Legal Services and Fee Summary Agreement for 2025 Legal Collection 
Services. 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call any of our attorneys.  We are happy 
to answer any of your questions or meet with you at no charge to discuss our services and fees in 
greater detail 
 



EXHIBIT A TO LEGAL SERVICES AND FEE SUMMARY AGREEMENT 
FOR 2025 LEGAL COLLECTION SERVICES 

 
Fee Structure 
This is a flat fee agreement for collection services.  The Association will pay Altitude Community 
Law (the Firm) for performance of the services described below, plus costs.  The Association 
understands that it is not entering into an hourly fee agreement for collection services, except as 
otherwise set forth below.  This means the Firm will devote such time to the representation as is 
necessary, but the Firm’s fee will not be increased or decreased based upon the number of hours 
spent. 
 
The Association has the right to terminate the representation at any time and for any reason, and 
the Firm may terminate the representation in accordance with Rule 1.16 of the Colorado Rules of 
Professional Conduct.  In the event that the Association terminates the representation without 
wrongful conduct by the Firm that would cause the Firm to forfeit any fee, or the Firm justifiably 
withdraws in accordance with Rule 1.16 from representing the Association, the Association shall 
pay, and the Firm shall be entitled to, the fee or part of the fee earned by the Firm as described in 
paragraph 1 above, up to the time of termination.  If the representation is terminated between the 
completion of increments (if any), the Association shall pay a fee based on our standard hourly 
rate set forth in our standard fee agreement.  However, such fees shall not exceed the amount that 
would have been earned had the representation continued until the completion of the increment, 
and in any event all fees shall be reasonable.  Once the work is performed, the Fee will be deemed 
earned and is due upon receipt of an invoice. 
 
Case Intake, Review and Assessment - No charge 
We do not charge you to review new collection cases and make recommendations.  However, if 
we receive open collection files from another attorney, there will be a $100 set-up and review fee 
per file  
 
At the rates set here in, upon receiving a new turnover, we will perform the following work for 
due diligence and to put the Association in the best possible collection position: Assessment Lien 
Package (if a lien has not already been recorded), Demand Letter, Public Trustee Search, and 
Bankruptcy Search. Next steps after this work depends on the homeowner’s response, balance due, 
history, information acquired, and other factors.  
 
Demand Letter - $195 
Preparation of a demand letter includes reviewing the ledger or equivalent record to ascertain the 
amounts owed including interest, late charges, fines and charge backs, if relevant, and review prior 
notice given to owner to meet statutory requirements; drafting and mailing the demand letter to 
the homeowner; follow-up, including telephone calls with the management company and 
homeowner, negotiation of an acceptable payment plan; follow up letter (as needed) to confirm 
payment arrangements.  All correspondence other than the initial demand and payment plan letter 
is $50 per letter (e.g., follow up demand letter, breach of payment plan letter). 
 
Super Lien Demand Letter - $110 
Preparation of a demand letter post foreclosure includes reviewing ledger to ascertain amounts 
owed; verifying party to whom demand should be sent; drafting and mailing demand letter: or if 



request is received from a lender for the super lien amount, drafting a response. All discussions 
with the owner or lender after the letter are billed hourly. 
 
Assessment Lien Package - $110  
This charge includes preparing both the lien and the lien release.  It also includes verification of 
ownership with either the assessor’s office or title company. 
 
Lien Review - $70 
If your management company prepares and files liens, we will, on your behalf, review the lien to 
verify validity, compliance with law, and handle the recording and release of the lien in order to 
protect your association from liability. 
 
Lawsuit: - $455 plus costs 
This charge includes preparing the summons and complaint, filing these papers with the court, 
appearing at the return date and obtaining default judgment.  It also includes all negotiations and 
telephone conferences with the owners prior to an answer being filed with the court.  
 
Lawsuit:  Trial - Hourly rates apply 
All preparation for trial and appearances in court are billed on an hourly basis.  If the association 
prevails at trial, it can recover its attorney fees and costs from the delinquent owner. 
 
Lawsuit: Eviction - Hourly rates apply 
All preparation of eviction lawsuits, trials, and all appearances in court are billed on an hourly 
basis. If client requests assistance with drafting or posting notices, the services will also be billed 
hourly, or will be billed the actual costs thereof. 
 
Interrogatories - $130 
We prepare and file a motion with the court to request the court to order an owner to answer a 
series of questions from us about the owner's assets.  We will use the answer to help satisfy any 
judgment obtained by the association. We will also arrange for service of the order on the client 
and monitor and evaluate answers received from the owner. 
 
Contempt Citation - $155 
If an owner fails to answer the interrogatories as ordered by the court, we will prepare and file all 
the necessary paperwork to require the owner to appear before the judge to explain why the 
questions were not answered.  Appearances at court, including the Contempt Citation hearing and 
any continuances thereof, as well as bond return hearings will be billed on an hourly basis. 
 
Garnishments - $205 (each) 
We will identify entities (usually banks, employers or tenants) which owe or have money of the 
owner and prepare documentation to be filed with the court to order the entity to release all or a 
portion of the money they hold for or are obligated to pay the owner to the association.  We will 
arrange for service of the necessary documentation and will monitor for responses.  Appearances 
at Court, including any hearings regarding the garnishment, will be billed on an hourly basis. 
 
Payment Plans - $135 - $225 (each) 
We will charge a fee depending upon the length of the payment plan to prepare the necessary 
documentation, monitor and process payments and close the file.  Unless we are instructed 



otherwise, we may agree to payment plans of up to 24 months with any homeowner. We request 
that interest and late fees not be added to the ledger during payment plans, as long as the 
homeowner pays as agreed. Monthly payments amounts are calculated based on no additional 
interest or late fees being incurred during the payment plan. 
 
Motions and Responses - Hourly rates apply 
Occasionally, certain motions may be necessary in a case in order to get the court to issue a ruling 
without further legal action. These will be prepared, filed, monitored and argued before the court, 
if necessary. 
 
Outbound Phone Calls - $55 
Once we obtain a phone number for an owner, we will make up to 3 outbound calls to an owner to 
secure payment. All other calls with an owner will be at no charge. 
 
Payoff Calculations - $130 
It is important for your management company or treasurer to confirm all payoff amounts with us 
prior to issuing status letters or advising owners of balances so that all legal costs and fees can be 
included. We will also insure that all fees necessary to close or dismiss a file are included. Rush 
charges do apply. 
 
Monitoring Lender Foreclosure - $220 (one-time charge) 
It is important to monitor lender foreclosure through the sale and redemption period.  We obtain 
periodic ownership and encumbrance reports, if needed, and routinely verify the status of the 
foreclosure action.  We advise you of the association's rights and options throughout the process.  
Once a sale is completed, we advise the association of the new owner and the association’s rights. 
 
Monitoring Bankruptcy - $230 Chapter 7; $495 Chapter 13 (one-time charge) 
We prepare and file a Proof of Claim, if necessary, monitoring the bankruptcy through discharge.  
Our services include reviewing the plan (if Chapter 13) to make sure it includes provisions for 
payment of pre- and post-petition assessments, and checking with the trustee and debtor's attorney 
to determine if property has been abandoned.  If it becomes necessary to file any motion with the 
court, we charge fixed fees as follows: 
 

Additional Proof of Claim: $160 
Motion to Dismiss: $595 
Motion for Relief from Stay: $795 
Objection to Plan: $395 
Objections to Confirmation: $205 for Motion, then hourly if we proceed to an evidentiary 
hearing 
Post-Petition Demand Letters to the bankruptcy attorney and owners: $50 
Motion for Late Filed Claim:  $395 
Post-Petition Fees Notice: $395 
All preparation for and appearances in court are charged on an hourly basis. 

 
Assessment Increase Notice - $395 
We prepare notice to bankruptcy court of any increase in ongoing debt owed to the association 
upon receipt of notice from you, including filing proof of claim and letter to bankruptcy attorney 
or debtor.  



 
Public Trustee/Bankruptcy Search - $30 (each) 
Verifying whether a property is in foreclosure or subject to a bankruptcy before filing a lawsuit 
can save the association hundreds of dollars.  So, we will search both the public trustee and 
bankruptcy records and then advise the association if different action is necessary.  
 
Receiverships (County Court) - $450 initial, then hourly.  Costs are approximately $250 
We will prepare pleadings and appear in court to obtain appointment of a receiver to collect rents 
where the property is abandoned or being rented by the owner. Once appointed, we supervise 
disbursement of the monies collected by the receiver at an hourly rate. 
 
Lien/Judicial Foreclosures (District Court) - Hourly rates apply 
We recommend foreclosure be considered a viable collection remedy in all problem cases.  Our 
fee is based on complexity of circumstances and should reflect value you will receive from 
monetary results of the foreclosure.   
 
Lien Sales - $1,000 
We list all liens that are potentially available for sale on our website at 
https://Altitude.Law/general-topics/liens-for-sale/ at no cost.  In the event a lien is sold we collect 
our fee from the purchaser of the lien.  In order to handle quickly, within the legal time limits, we 
reserve the right to sell liens, without prior approval if the purchase price is equal to or more than 
the balance due. 
 
Intent to Redeem - $1,500 plus costs 
We prepare all documents necessary to file and execute an Intent to Redeem with Public Trustee. 
 
Status Report - $75/month (if not accessed electronically) 
We provide online access to each association’s collection status report.  For more information 
please contact us.  If your association chooses to have us prepare your status report, there will be 
a monthly fee. 
 
Asset/Person Locations - $25 - $100 
From time to time we must locate debtors and/or their assets in order to secure payment for you. 
We will use various databases for which there is a cost to us, to secure possible leads. This 
information is then reviewed and analyzed to develop the best strategy for quickly and efficiently 
securing payments. 
 
Entry of Judgment - $150 each 
We will prepare Motion and Affidavit to obtain judgment on a stipulation if owner fails to complete 
it successfully. 
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